
Date Published:20 February 2023     

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 28 February 2023 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES Chair

2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 24) Chair

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST Chair

4  WORK PLAN (Pages 25 - 26)

Members to review the work plan attached and discuss any additional 
items. There are three items in red which were requested at this month’s 
Lead Members meeting.

Forthcoming Executive Decision List

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=
0K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisi
ons&V=1

Council Strategy

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/building-back-
better-in-gloucestershire/

Chair

5  FINANCE UPDATE (Pages 27 - 38) Paul Blacker

6  STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE REPORT 3RD QUARTER (Pages 
39 - 114)

Rob Ayliffe

7  CORPORATE RESOURCES PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 
115 - 136)

Steve Mawson

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=1
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=1
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?&RP=0K=0&DM=0&HD=0&DS=1&Next=true&H=1&META=mgforthcomingdecisions&V=1
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/building-back-better-in-gloucestershire/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/building-back-better-in-gloucestershire/


    

Membership –  Cllr Phil Awford (Chair), Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr John Bloxsom, Cllr Ben Evans, 
Cllr Stephan Fifield, Cllr Andrew Gravells MBE, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Jeremy Hilton, 
Cllr Dr Andrew Miller, Cllr Vernon Smith, Cllr Lisa Spivey and Cllr Chloe Turner 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
(Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the 
start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Senior Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
Wednesday 7 December 2022 at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Cllr Phil Awford (Chair)
Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr John Bloxsom
Cllr Ben Evans
Cllr Stephan Fifield
Cllr Andrew Gravells MBE

Cllr Terry Hale
Cllr Colin Hay
Cllr Jeremy Hilton
Cllr Vernon Smith
Cllr Lisa Spivey
Cllr Chloe Turner

In attendance virtually:

Substitutes:

Cllr Stephan Fifield

Cllr Susan Williams

Officers in attendance: Rob Ayliffe, Paul Blacker and Mandy Quayle

Apologies: Cllr Andrew Miller and Steve Mawson

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes from the meeting held on 25 May 2022 were agreed and signed as a 
correct record.

Members requested an action log be produced and added to the minutes going 
forward to enable them to keep track of outstanding actions.

ACTION: Democratic Services

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations were received.

4. WORK PLAN 

Looking forward the next meeting of this Committee, budget scrutiny in January, a 
member raised that officers and Cabinet Members should be prepared to present 
and respond to questions on commissioning intentions, as well as budget 
allocations. 

For their February 2023 meeting, members requested a summary of the budget and 
commissioning intentions agreed at the full Council budget meeting, in order to help 
the Committee better plan for next year’s meetings.

ACTION: Democratic Services

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

5. STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE REPORT 2ND QUARTER 

5.1 Rob Ayliffe presented the report which provided an overview of performance 
at the end of Quarter 2 2022-23.

5.2 Members noted that in certain cases, risks can be made worse by external 
factors, despite the efforts implemented to mitigate them (as in the case of 
rising ICT security risk). In some cases, there was also a requirement for a 
period of change before the risk levels began to be affected by measures or 
strategies implemented.

5.3 It was questioned what other strategies were ongoing in the council that had 
mitigating effects on climate change (beyond just attempting to slow it down 
through carbon reductions etc.). The officer explained that there were a 
series of adaptation plans that were at various stages of implementation. 
This included things such as; improving buildings on the council estate to 
better handle extreme heat and cold, flood resilience and alleviation plans, 
public health campaigns over the summer and business continuity plans.

5.4 A member raised concern that even though social placements and care 
packages were being implemented successfully, this wasn’t resulting in an 
improved situation in emergency departments by freeing up hospital beds. It 
was explained that whilst care provision can affect the flow of patients out of 
hospital, it was not the only factor involved. In many cases, a discharge from 
hospital is reliant on other parts of the health system, rather than social care. 
As the government has discontinued the collection and publication of data, 
but we continue to track local measures in order to ensure that brokerage 
are enabling timely hospital discharges.

5.5 In response to a question on the impact of financial assessment delays on 
‘bed-blocking’ it was explained that the delay affected the decision-making 
process for families who were having to decide on care provisions without 
knowing the full financial assessment. Officers were investigating ways to 
improve this process such as by moving to paperless solutions.

5.6 Another question was raised over the status of funding for the previously EU 
funded GEM project. It was explained that the EU GEM funding was due to 
end regardless of Brexit and was due to be replaced by the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund in 2024. This new fund would have a different mechanism 
for access but will provide the same amount of money overall.

5.7 Several members expressed concern over staffing issues, particularly within 
social care. Members queried whether exit interviews were being used to 
their full potential to understand more about the reasons behind staff 
turnover. It was explained that both online questionnaires and face-to-face 
interviews were offered to staff leaving employment. These interviews were 
then reviewed and key issues analysed. At the moment, the main reasons 
given by staff for leaving were workload and supervision. 1 in 5 leavers 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

report ICT problems as a side frustration but not as their core reason for 
wanting to leave. 

5.8 From an ICT perspective this was an improvement from last year where it 
was cited much more frequently as a core issue. The sense from reviewing 
these exit interviews was that staff satisfaction was improving from a period 
that had been very difficult. It was also explained that whilst skeleton staffing 
was in operation for adult social care over weekends, there was sufficient 
support in place. A member added they were concerned to understand that 
care workers were not paid for time spent travelling.

5.9 The Committee agreed to recommend the possibility of a Scrutiny Task 
Group to the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee to look 
at social care staff shortages and retention. This was subject to 
understanding whether such work was already ongoing within the 
Committee’s work plan.

ACTION: Democratic Services

5.10 In response to questions about staffing for buses, it was explained that the 
response to the immediate issue of replacing lost bus routes had been 
effective and that attention could then turn to long-term staff shortages.

5.11 Members raised concern over tree planting targets, noting that a significant 
number of those already planted died over the summer due to a lack of 
watering and extreme temperatures, and how this would affect future targets. 
It was explained that current targets only measured the planting of trees, it 
was therefore unknown how many trees had died. It was proposed that this 
should be referred to the Environment Scrutiny Committee, and the Lead 
Cabinet Member, for further investigation.

ACTION: Democratic Services

5.12 Noting the level of risk around child Education, Health and Care Plan 
(EHCP) assessments, it was explained that  the Ombudsman complaints 
procedure was leading to fines being imposed on Councils both nationally 
and in our case for loss of education due to delays in the process. Officers 
were currently working to understand what staffing improvements were 
needed to help resolve these issues.

5.13 The risk around the implementation of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
had been considered at length by scrutiny recently, and it remained a 
significant issue for the Council. It was accepted that the only way forward 
was to work in close partnership with district colleagues but it was also 
legitimate for GCC to first understand its legal position to help support these 
discussions.

5.14 A member raised concern that only 34% of staff were receiving regular 
appraisals. It was explained that the recent staff survey reported that 85% of 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

staff had received an annual appraisal so there was some inconsistency with 
reporting that was being investigated. The Committee stressed that 
managers needed to be encouraged to perform 100% of appraisals without 
fail. The officer confirmed they would take away the Committee’s comments 
and concerns. 

5.15 Members thanked officers for the report and answers to their questions, as 
well as for working with the Committee on improving the accessibility of this 
report over the past few years. Members were very pleased with the result. 

6. CORPORATE RESOURCES PERFORMANCE REPORT 

6.1 Rob Ayliffe presented the attached report, which members took as read and 
the Chair opened up for questions.

6.2 A member questioned how performance targets were set. Officers shared 
that it varied depending on the measure. Some goals were set externally, by 
the Information Commissioner for example, whilst some were based on 
benchmarking against counties of similar make-up.

6.3 Multiple members raised concern over the fact that complaints were shown 
to be increasing, as well as similar complaints recurring. It was queried how 
the council was analysing and learning from complaints.  It was explained 
that whilst similar themes did arise, this was not due to a lack of 
understanding and learning. 

6.4 The detailed circumstances of individual complaints tended to be very 
specific to that situation, which meant there were limits to what changes 
could be made more generally. Nevertheless, where more general patterns 
are identified, the complaints team work within the service area to develop 
improvements. In comparison to complaint numbers in other similar councils 
it was reported that GCC compared well and that whilst there would always 
be complaints that reoccur, patterns amongst complaints were looked for 
and acted on where possible. 

6.5 A member asked specifically about the Local Transport Plan and what was 
being done about the fact that numerous indicators were not on target. It was 
explained that this was a subset of metrics that were being measured and 
many indicators that were on target were not presented in this report. 

6.6 There were also concerns raised by multiple members about agile working 
plans. Concerns over what the exact policy was, how policy could vary 
depending on department and grade, and how this would affect aspects of 
council work such as in-person meetings, developing council culture and 
maintaining standards, particularly after quite a significant investment into 
Shire Hall buildings. 

6.7 It was explained that across the council people were working roughly 2 days 
a week in Shire Hall. There was a clear awareness that different roles and 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

different departments had different needs. For some, it was much more 
important to be on premise, for others it was not. 

6.8 At the moment, officers were trying to map out policies to be applied across 
different service areas such that agile working could be leveraged as a 
benefit to working for the council from a recruitment perspective and 
maximising productivity. This would take the form of an agile toolkit for each 
team. It was added that particular teams (the example given being social 
care workers) would spend almost no time on council premises so whilst the 
average was around 2 days a week, this was likely being brought down by 
those whose job role required them to be out in the county. It was confirmed 
that relocation packages were still available for certain jobs if required.

7. FINANCE UPDATE 

7.1 Paul Blacker presented the attached report which provided an update on the 
County Council's Revenue & Capital Forecast Outturn Position for 2022/23.

7.2 Concern was raised again over the overspend on Children’s Services, the 
number of children in care and being placed out of county and whether 
proposed increased staff salaries had been incorporated in the budget 
proposals. It was also queried whether a preventative approach would be 
more appropriate in these circumstances.

7.3 It was stressed that this was a very difficult budget to predict, 
notwithstanding that it had to be set 18 months in advance. The process for 
agreeing the budget started with it being set at the lower end of prediction, 
and then ensuring reserve funds were built in and available, should the 
actual spend end up higher. Members noted that the main difference 
between Gloucestershire and its neighbouring county councils was the 
length of time our children were spending in care, not the numbers. This was 
where future focus would be concentrated.

7.4 It was a legal obligation to balance the budget and across the council the 
budget set each February has been very closely stuck to throughout that 
financial year. The Children’s Services budget had been increased by 
around £12-14 million each year, the overspend had resulted due to the 
demand and unit cost of placements increasing significantly, alongside the 
expected level of service going up too. Whilst a £10 million overspend can 
seem like a significant amount, it was reminded that it represented less than 
2% of the total budget and balanced out with underspends elsewhere. It was 
added that the budget did take account the proposed 4% salary increase.

7.5 Officers added that there was a major focus on prevention, particularly for 
those children at risk of being referred into care. Councils were also 
beginning to explore setting up ‘in-house’ facilities to reduce the need to refer 
to private care services, but it would take time before this led to any tangible 
changes in overall demand.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

7.6 In response to a question over the Dedicated School Grant, the officer 
explained that the deficit in the grant was around £20 million and that an 
overspend of £6.4million was forecast specifically for high needs. This was 
unfortunately a national problem and one that the Department of Education 
was currently working with local authorities to fix. There had been an initial 
review and audit into the grant and it showed that the current demand far 
outpaced expectations on a national level.

7.7 There was a discussion about the underspend on health services and how 
this was being addressed. Members noted that the underspend was linked to 
lower public take-up in particular services. There was a lot of effort going into 
proactive engagement with the public to make the most of available 
provisions, but any underspend was also put directly back into the public 
health fund.

8. ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT 

Members welcomed the opportunity to receive this draft report prior to it being 
considered by full Council. The following amendments were requested:

 Outcome summaries to added to all sections
 A section to be added around this Committee’s review of performance data 

and how the accessibility of the data had been improved over the previous 
two years.

They noted that the vast majority of pre-scrutiny items had been considered at 
Environment Scrutiny, and this may be something they would want to consider 
recommending to other scrutiny committees in the New Year.

9. BUDGET SCRUTINY PROCESS 

Member were content with the proposed running order for the 4 January 2023 
budget scrutiny session.

It was requested that officers were clear they needed to reference both the budget 
and the commissioning intentions for their directorates throughout the day.

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 12:55

Page 6



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 7 DECEMBER 2022

TOPIC ACTION RESPONSIBILITY PROGRESS

1 Work Plan Provide a summary agreed of budget and commissioning intentions to 
help consider their work plan for 2023/24.

Democratic Services A copy of the budget 
council minutes will be 
provided.

2 Strategic 
Performance Report

Advise as to where Local Transport Plan (LTP) targets on transport 
decarbonisation are reported and monitored.

Rob Ayliffe
LTP targets are reported 
annually and published on 
the Council's website.

Scrutiny of the LTP falls 
within the remit of the 
Environment Scrutiny 
Committee.

3 Strategic 
Performance Report

The Committee agreed to recommend the possibility of a Scrutiny 
Task Group to the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee to look at social care staff shortages and retention. This 
was subject to understanding whether such work was already ongoing 
within the Committees workplan.

Democratic Services Email sent to the Chair of 
Adult Social Care and 
Communities Scrutiny

4 Strategic 
Performance Report

Refer the issue of how many of the trees planted as part of GCC’s 
target had died so far, particularly due to the extreme temperatures 
and dry conditions experienced this summer, to Environment Scrutiny 
and the LCM.

Democratic Services Email sent to the Chair of 
Environment Scrutiny

P
age 7

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/transport/gloucestershires-local-transport-plan-2020-2041/ltp-monitoring/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/transport/gloucestershires-local-transport-plan-2020-2041/ltp-monitoring/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
Wednesday 4 January 2023 at the Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Cllr Phil Awford (Chair)
Cllr John Bloxsom
Cllr Ben Evans
Cllr Terry Hale
Cllr Colin Hay

Cllr Dr Andrew Miller
Cllr Vernon Smith
Cllr Lisa Spivey
Cllr Chloe Turner

In attendance:

Virtually in attendance:

Substitutes:

Cllrs Paul Hodgkinson, Roger Whyborn, Cate Cody, Paul Baker, Gill 
Mosley, Graham Morgan

Cllrs Stephan Fifield, Matt Babbage, David Drew, Wendy Thomas, 
Chris McFarling and Linda Cohen

Cllr Bernard Fisher

Officers in attendance:

Cabinet members in 
attendance:

Rob Ayliffe, Peter Bungard, Colin Chick, Jason Humm, Steve 
Mawson, David Owen, Mark Preece, Claire Procter, Professor 
Sarah Scott and Chris Spencer

Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE, Leader of Council
Cllr Stephen Davies, Children’s Safeguarding and Early Years
Cllr Kathy Williams, Adult Social Care Delivery
Cllr Carole Allaway Martin, Adult Social Care Commissioning
Cllr David Gray, Environment and Planning
Cllr Lynden Stowe, Deputy Leader and Finance and Change
Cllr Dave Norman MBE, Fire, Community Safety and Libraries
Cllr Philip Robinson, Education, Skills and Bus Transport 

Apologies: Cllr Andrew Gravells MBE and Cllr Jeremy Hilton and Cllr Dom Morris, 
Cabinet Member for Highways and Flooding

1. SCRUTINY OF THE DRAFT 2023/24 BUDGET & REVIEW OF COUNCIL 
STRATEGY 

1. INTRODUCTION & COUNCIL STRATEGY

1.1.Cllr Mark Hawthorne and Pete Bungard introduced the context, revenue, 
and capital budget in turn. Members noted the following:

 The current Council Strategy remained sound and relevant as was 
published this time last year. What members needed to consider this time 

Page 9

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s87216/Council%20Strategy.pdf


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

was how major events over the past year had affected the context of the 
budget and MTFS, such as: Ukraine, inflation, cost of living, NHS 
pressures, 6.4% Local Government pay rise, Prime Ministerial changes 
etc.

 The budget discussions and process started in July, before inflation had 
peaked, and at that point there existed a large gap between what 
services wanted and the likely funding that would be available. On that 
information, there was a series of Star Chambers through October, of 
which the main objective was to ensure funding was fairly allocated 
across the board. 

 What still remained outstanding at this point was the Government 
settlement and what their rules on taxation would be, so the decision was 
taken to go out to consultation on an unbalanced budget on 8 December 
2022, which is the consultation document published for today’s meeting.

 The Government settlement was confirmed on 19 December 2022 which 
allowed for a 3% council tax increase and 2% adult social care levy 
increase at council choice, and additional, targeted funding for frontline 
support.

 Cabinet will set a draft budget on 25 January 2023 and recommend it to 
full council for discussion at the 15 February 2023 budget meeting.

 This proposed revenue budget was £560m, which amounted to a £39m 
increase on the current year. The additional funding was: £13.5m for 
Adult Social Care, £17.6m for Children’s Social Care and £9.3m for 
Environment and Economy.

 There was also a built in Children’s Services reserve to try and reflect the 
difficulty in balancing out the children’s placements budget, in addition to 
£7.2m built into the budget itself.

 Balancing this budget had been challenging considering this year’s pay 
award (which settled at 6.4% but was budgeted at 2%) and inflationary 
pressures.

 The proposed increase would be paid for by using £10.3m from reserves, 
£8.4m from additional income (half of which was due to a better return on 
investments from increased interest rates) and £4.2m additional from 
Javelin Park due to the energy price increase.

 Whilst officers felt they were heading towards a balanced and good 
budget for this year, there was a warning for the 2024/25 budget as the 
council could not continue to use reserves in this way.

 Whilst acknowledging there was a period of uncertainty awaiting the 
Government settlement, Cllr Hawthorne paid tribute to the County 
Council network who did a fantastic job lobbying on many fronts. 

 What resulted was a much better settlement than was expected, but this 
was against a backdrop of a higher pay award settlement plus the impact 
of inflation. 

 Government also agreed to delay the implementation of the Adult Social 
Care Act by 2 years, allowing more time to discuss the true cost of the 
implementation for upper tier authorities.

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

 The capital budget for this year was proposed at £231m which included 
additional £44m of new spend for 23/24, leaving the total capital budget 
for 2023/24 onwards totalling £531m. This was where the delivery of 
headline schemes will come from (e.g., M5 Junction 10 improvements).

 The proposed budget will take the full council tax and social care levy 
increase offered from Government which together amounted to a 4.99% 
increase. This was not a decision the council took lightly, it would be 
amongst 85% of upper tier authorities across the country taking the same 
decision, which reflected the huge demand on services at the moment. In 
addition, it was advised that the Government settlement each year 
assumed that councils took the total tax rise on offer and then adjusted 
the revenue support grant accordingly.

2. ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND COMMUNITIES

2.1.Cllr Kathy Williams, Cllr Carole Allaway-Martin, Cllr Mark Hawthorne and 
Cllr Dave Norman outlined the commissioning intentions, ambitions and 
budget changes detailed in the draft MTFS and Council Strategy relating to 
Adult Social Care, Public Health, and Communities. In particular members 
noted the following:

 Over the past 18 months there had been two significant changes 
announced: the further implementation of the Care Act and the 
introduction of a National Quality Assurance Process by the Care Quality 
Commission. Although both implementations had been delayed for the 
moment, the service would continue to implement its Transformation 
Programme, which began to encompass the required changes.

 Officers continued to build on work and lessons learnt during the 
Pandemic, including the progress made in helping rough sleepers off the 
streets.

 The Ukrainian refugee resettlement programme continued to be a high 
priority, as did domestic abuse which had received Government funding 
to provide additional support for victims of domestic abuse and their 
children in safe accommodation, including the provision of additional 
Places of Safety; and funding to increase capacity in the young person’s 
healthy relationship service. 

 Pressures remained, most particularly in relation to the cost of living, fuel 
crisis and recruitment being at an all-time low.

 This was both a short and long-term demand led service, which was 
continually confronted with demands and change, its delivery and budget 
needed to be flexible but also have built-in surety that it can be delivered 
and sustained.

 Trading Standards, Civil Protection and Coroners, although reasonably 
small services, were significantly important to residents of 
Gloucestershire. There would be further investment of £163,000 for an 
additional area coroner to increase service resilience and to cover an 
increase in pathology fees. Trading standards would be receiving extra 
funding to enable enactment of additional statutory requirements from the 

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Food Standard Agency and to explore succession planning for the 
service.

2.2.A member raised that the guidance from the LGA on reduction of carbon 
emissions within social care services was not referenced in either the 
commissioning intentions or outcomes. It was advised that work was being 
done, such as trying to reduce travel between client groups and making 
sure social workers could work in smaller localities, but the monitoring of 
this was looked at as a council wide approach. An action was taken to 
review the suggested guidance. 

ACTION: Sarah Scott

2.3.There was a discussion around the detail provided to help members 
understand the delivery, foreseen outcomes, and risk management of all 
commissioning intentions. Some members felt that it would be useful to 
understand what commissioning intentions had been carried forward from 
previous years and the timescale for delivery. It was explained that each 
service reviewed their risk registers regularly, as well as the council-wide 
corporate registers. The commissioning intentions provided today were the 
high-level intentions, the bridging gap between the council’s strategic 
priorities and what services were doing on an annual basis. Members were 
aware that further detail would be provided prior to the full Council meeting 
next month

2.4.Officers were still working to understand the detail of the Social Care Grant. 
As mentioned previously, the settlement provided by Government was likely 
to be more than expected, but there were some indications that certain 
sums would be tied to specific activity. The further clarification was awaited 
from Government to ensure the council was allocating it to the right areas.

2.5.A member was concerned that the service was under massive pressure and 
reports to scrutiny regularly reflected officers not feeling there was enough 
money to deliver what was required. It was felt that the vast majority of the 
budget increase was essentially to meet inflationary pressures. 

2.6. It was acknowledged that the sector did have massive challenges and 
pressures, not least with trying to recruit staff and there was not enough 
money in the system to fix these issues, which were often national. This was 
a significant budget, but it had a lot to deliver within it and officers were 
trying to deliver the best they could within the money available. Members 
were asked not to underestimate the significant financial pressures at play 
nationally and globally at the moment. This budget remained a growth 
budget, and thankfully services were not being cut in order to produce a 
balanced budget. The Leader added that if members were hearing 
examples of residents waiting or being stuck in hospital, they needed to be 
flagged urgently with the team as the data being received was not telling 
that story.

Page 12



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

2.7.Noting the need to take money from reserves for this year’s budget, it was 
questioned whether officers felt the remaining reserve was sufficient. 
Members were advised that officers regularly carried out risk assessments 
of the council’s financial position to try and assess if the general reserves 
available were sufficient. At the moment it was felt £12m was probably not 
quite enough and work would continue to manage this going forward. In 
terms of helping to manage volatile areas of the budget such as social care, 
specific reserves had been set up.

2.8. Public Health

 Officers were largely focused on delivering statutory responsibilities, work 
to address health inequalities and promote healthy lifestyles, delivery of 
the Gloucestershire domestic abuse strategy, supporting vulnerable 
individuals in community and accommodation-based support and 
overseeing the delivery of the Homes for Ukraine programme. 

 The proposed budget for this service area was £35.5m, just over £25m of 
which comes from a ring-fenced government Public Health grant, and it 
was awaited to see if there will be an uplift in the grant for the 23/24 
financial year.

 Some of the proposed budget increase for 23/24 related to contract 
inflation and covering the costs of uplift in pay for NHS staff who were 
commissioned in contract delivery for the council with respect to the 
provision of sexual health services and the public health nursing service.

 It was noted that Public health had also taken on a number of additional 
responsibilities in recent years (the Covid response, Ukraine settlement 
programme and the Levelling Up agenda), delivering a huge amount of 
change.

2.9. In relation to the Build Back Better councillor fund, it was confirmed about 
half of the available funds had not been spent which amounted to around 
£1.4m (since the date of the meeting, the unspent funds now total £1.2m), 
the amount each councillor had spent of their individual pot varied. A piece 
of work was ongoing to work out how much each individual councillor had 
left and a reminder to be sent out. A member suggested that some form of 
central coordination arrangement would be useful to help members who had 
requests for joint contributions across divisional boundaries.

2.10. There was a question about how effectively GCC was working with district 
partners in this area. Members heard that there was a lot of work streams 
that required joint working, for example, Ukraine resettlement, Covid 
response, Levelling Up etc. Officers felt there were strong relationships in 
these areas, and there had been very good examples, especially during 
Covid, where all 6 councils had sensible discussions to understand the 
issues, allocated funding (when available) where need was greatest and 
ensured the right authority was delivering the best solution available for the 
county as a whole.

Page 13



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

2.11. Referencing page 71 in the consultation report, a member questioned how 
much of the ongoing cost of Covid was now being absorbed into budgets. It 
was advised that officers would no longer be able to differentiate ongoing 
Covid costs in the budget but what they were no longer seeing was one off 
associated Covid costs. This budget was now working with the ‘new normal’ 
and areas Covid had impacted for the foreseeable had been readjusted as 
appropriate e.g., the impact on parking income had meant going forward it 
will be readjusted at a lower income level.

2.12. A member raised concern that this area was not being funded sufficiently. 
This was not a growing area of the budget as all increases related to 
inflation and pay changes. It merely tried to maintain the status quo whilst 
members were aware of issues such as children’s mental health waiting 
times. While acknowledging the point made, it was suggested that a 
significant part of public health’s work involved enabling and influencing 
wider partners in the system and working through others. Part of the 
solution would be lobbying health colleagues as many services, such as 
mental health care for children and young people were delivered through 
other organisations e.g., the Clinical Commissioning Group (now Integrated 
Care Board) and part of Public Health’s role in the wider system was to 
influence the spend elsewhere. It was not for council budgets to fund all 
NHS provided services. It was suggested that pressures in children’s mental 
health services may be a good issue to explore via the Health Scrutiny 
Committee.

ACTION: Democratic Services

2.13. Members noted the importance of monitoring service changes that had been 
made following the pandemic, such as the introduction of virtual 
appointments to ensure there were no adverse effect on residents. 

3. CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

3.1.Cllr Stephen Davies and Cllr Phil Robinson outlined the Commissioning 
Intention, ambitions, and budget changes detailed in the draft MTFS relating 
to Children and Young People. In particular members noted the following:

 Cabinet in November had reported an overspend of £14.992m, with 
significant variances in external placements, safeguarding staff costs, 
children with disabilities and home to school transport.

 It was outlined that there would be significant investments in the budget 
for vulnerable children (10.4% increase), particularly around external 
placements (£6.235m), and pay award commitments (£3.769m). 

 There would be significant investment in education, particularly around 
home to school transport (4.649m) and support for children with SEND 
(£1.411m).

 Members were informed of the work in terms of implementing the 
sufficiency strategy to ensure the right mix of placements available and to 
deliver in-house provision to reduce costs and provide more appropriate 

Page 14



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

placements. The placement market was currently driven by private 
investment, and this was leading to increased costs.

 It was explained that the Edge of Care Service would be further 
developed and the continuation of the workforce strategy. 

 In terms of risks, the rise in children in care numbers (883) and those on 
child protection plans and further demand pressures around the ongoing 
impact of Covid were outlined. 

 School performance had improved considerably. Secondary school 
performance was the best in the South West. There was now a greater 
proportion of good and outstanding schools. SEND was a major focus. It 
was estimated a further two special schools would be required in the near 
future. 

 The increase in agency workers had a financial cost as well as a quality 
cost in terms of continuity. This was an important area to continue to work 
to address. Members understood the ‘grow our own’ strategy in terms of 
the development of social workers through the academy.

3.2.Reflecting on the overspend, it was suggested that there was a clear 
strategy to reduce that with the right intervention at an early stage to move 
away from costly placements and to reduce the proportion of agency 
workers.

3.3. It was explained that £16m costs were for home to school transport and 
£10m of that was in relation to SEND. This was one of the reasons for 
embarking on the Edge review to look at producing savings through 
changing practices such as sharing taxis. Through appropriate consultation 
with parents and schools, better solutions could be found to help reduce 
costs and improve the independence of young people.

3.4. ICT floorwalkers were being removed as many of the problems in ICT had 
been addressed and there were no longer the same numbers of individuals 
in the office. There was an alternative service in place which better reflected 
what was required and it was cheaper and more efficient. 

3.5. In relation to how children in care numbers were being forecasted it was 
explained that it was challenging as there are multiple variables such as 
long-term implications of Covid and service change that should reduce 
numbers. The number of children in care should be able to be reduced as 
currently the level was higher than average. The forecast was based on the 
fact that with better practice those numbers should fall but there were other 
factors to consider, including pressures within schools. Improved practice 
and early, effective intervention was the answer. 

3.6.Some members stated that they did not have confidence in the forecasting 
as the figures had previously been wrong. They suggested additional 
investment in improving practice. One member suggested that the increases 
in the budget was attempting to catch up with increasing costs and that this 
did not represent real increases. In response the Cabinet Member stated 
that the budget showed the continued intention to improve practice and 

Page 15



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

invest. Small numbers of people had huge cost implications on the budget 
which accounted for a large proportion of the overspend.

3.7.With regard to commissioning intentions, it was explained that some things 
were extended because they were working well, and that additional 
commissioning was carried out. The intentions represented long term aims. 
Some members were looking for additional detail on plans developed from 
these and detail of outcomes from previous commissioning intentions. It was 
important to understand timescales around delivery.

3.8.Members raised the educational attainment gap between black and ethnic 
minority groups and white children and the gap in relation to household 
income. There were a number of programmes schools were encouraged to 
participate in, with one specific one in Gloucester City. Details could be sent 
out to the member.

ACTION Chris Spencer

3.9.One member asked what children’s services as doing to monitor and bring 
down carbon emissions and to take a leadership role with schools with 
regards to climate change. The Edge review of home to school transport 
was looking to have carbon footprint considerations as well as to achieve 
value for money. Schools were encouraged not to use single use plastics. 
Leckhampton school had been opened which was built to be carbon neutral. 
Cllr Phil Robinson as Cabinet Member outlined that for all capital investment 
there was a consideration in terms of how that related to the Council’s 
carbon reduction targets. In addition, the introduction of electric vehicles and 
being able to work remotely in terms of social workers filling in paperwork 
after a visit were all given as examples. 

3.10. There was a discussion around timeliness of EHCPs and how the work to 
improve performance in this area was reflected in the budget. Details were 
given around the challenges of maintaining the 40% target in this area.

3.11. One member was looking for an overall number of students who had been 
through the Social Work Academy and suggested that there was a danger 
that some may only stay a short period in Gloucestershire before moving 
elsewhere. 40 students per year were supported through the Academy with 
the hope that they would choose to stay in Gloucestershire once qualified. 
This supported the ‘grow our own’ principle. There was some discussion on 
the power of recruitment agencies and the pay differential that was created 
by that.

3.12. One member asked what mitigations were in place to ensure children 
services could continue in the face of climate change, in particular in relation 
to schools. In response it was explained that these considerations were at 
the heart of all capital investment. The member queried if new schools were 
equipped for the outside temperature to reach 40 degrees. Examples were 

Page 16



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

given of design considerations that helped to regulate the temperature in an 
environmentally friendly way. 

4. FIRE AND RESCUE

4.1.Cllr Dave Norman outlined the commissioning intentions, ambitions and 
budget changes detailed in the draft MTFS and Council Strategy relating to 
Fire and Rescue. In particular members noted the following:

 The revenue budget would be increased by around £3m overall for 
2023/24, with additional funding for staffing to ensure continued progress 
was made on fire fighter safety, prevention, and protection activities, and 
to continue to positively develop its organisational culture.

 There had been support from reserves to enable formation of a 
Programme Management team to manage the delivery of the Service’s 
improvement plan objectives.

 Due to the fact that currently 51% of operational staff were in their 
development stage, coupled with an increase in specialist function within 
the remit of a fire fighter’s role, budget allocations of £400,000 for core 
training, £175,000 for courses and £225,000 for additional training hour 
per week for on call staff would be allocated.

 A further £25,000 had been provided to ensure annual fitness tests that 
complied with national standards, £174,000 to ease inflationary 
pressures, £758,000 for new schemes of capital investment which 
includes improvements to Stroud Community Station, equipment, and 
improvements to fleet. 

 There were no savings or requirements for efficiency, the focus was on 
investment and improvement.

4.2.Work was ongoing in respect of addressing the Service’s Scope 3 
emissions. They were exploring things such as improving station premise 
(through the use of photovoltaic panels for example), incorporating electric 
vehicles into the fleet and investing in the best low emission technologies. 

4.3.Members were advised that the improvement journey in response to the 
previous HMIFRS inspection continued. The inspection had highlighted 2 
main areas of concern, which resulted in an improvement plan that 
produced 11 areas for improvement (around 100 changes). A significant 
portion of the £984,000 allocated for staff investment was to employ 
additional staff, the inspection had brought out that some of the cultural 
challenges were due to workload demands and a lack of work/life balance. 
Referencing the recent national report on culture and behaviour in 2 London 
services, the Cabinet Member was clear that all fire services should be 
paying attention to these issues and should ensure anything done, said, or 
seen at any station was reported immediately and challenged head on.

4.4. It was explained that the £720,000 of backpay from last year covered the 
previously discussed 4% difference in the pay award for staff. It was funded 

Page 17



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 10 -

this year through reserves but there had to be a permanent budget 
adjustment for service’s going forward.

4.5.The Chief advised that the investment in treadmills was in relation to the 
requirement of all Service staff to undergo an annual occupational health 
assessment. These tests were required to be run in-house to avoid staff 
needing time away from duties, but currently the on-call fire station did not 
have properly calibrated machines. The Service had a duty of care to staff 
to ensure they were fit and able to undertake these annual assessments. 
The Chief had suggested investing half of the allocated budget to begin with 
to ensure the demand was there.

ACTION: Mark Preece
Explore issues reported around customer access to trading 
standards.

5. ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMIC GROWTH

5.1.Cllr David Gray, Cllr Philip Robinson and Cllr Dave Norman outlined the 
Commissioning Intentions, ambitions, and budget changes relating to 
Environment and Economic Growth, including Road Safety and Libraries. In 
particular members noted the following:

 The attached presentation outlined the overall picture of a sustainable 
economic future delivered via a number of projects, as a result of the 
revenue budget allocated to the department to lobby and secure funding 
from external partners. Projects such as M5 Junction 9 was not only a 
road improvement scheme but would also enable the delivery of a 
sustainable garden town of 15,000 new homes and 20,000 new jobs. 

 The annual resurfacing programme was on track, a record level of 
resurfacing was delivered last year with 16,000 tonnes of black top laid 
in one month alone.

 The team repaired over 40,000 potholes and delivered an effective 
emergency response to adverse weather impacts.

 A highways transformation board had now been created to review how 
to improve its customer services.

 The backdrop of a very difficult few years in relation to public transport, 
due to Covid impacts, withdrawal of services by Stagecoach, inflationary 
pressures etc., had been met with significant investment and showed the 
council’s commitment to public transport provision.

 £1.352m for rollout of The Robin initiative in rural communities, £305,000 
for bus service contracts, £398,000 one off increase for contract inflation, 
£148,000 for public transport procurement and £500,000 had been 
proposed for ITU and education teams to review home to school 
transport.

 The Council had now adopted a refreshed Road Safety Policy and were 
working with colleagues across the county via the Gloucestershire Road 
Safety Partnership. The budget proposed £155,000 for additional staff to 

Page 18



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 11 -

support the technical requirements around assessing accident hotspots, 
analysing statistics and to deliver any requirement education/training. 

 A further £400,000 capital (in addition to the existing £600,000) to tackle 
the highest priority KSI sites.

 Any remaining capital from the £600,000 Community Speedwatch fund 
will be rolled over into 2023/24 to enable scheme delivery from Phase 2 
bids to continue.

 There remained a dedicated desire to continue to enhance the library 
service. The programme had received a successful NPO bid of £750,000 
over the next 3 years for cultural activity development.

 Capital was key to a lot of infrastructure improvements, facilitating 
growth and helping to offer residents a green future.

 Flood alleviation was a very important part of council activities, since 
2007 there had been £59m capital spend and over £2m per year to help 
protect communities. 

 This budget reflected the council’s continued commitment to addressing 
climate change, whilst offering value and excellent services to residents.

 There would be a continued spend of £1m per year directly on 
addressing climate change through things such as tree planting, officer 
support in areas such as biodiversity, the roll out of electric vehicle 
chargers and commitment to Climate Leadership Gloucestershire.

 The impact and pressure of inflation amounted to around £3.5m within 
the Environment and Planning portfolio alone.

 Decarbonisation of transport remained key for future work, GCC was 
working with UK100 group on how to implement it alongside district 
colleagues.

 The success of the Energy from Waste scheme would result in £4m 
worth of income for 2023/24 which was ahead of where we expected it to 
be by this point.

 Cabinet members felt this was another very positive budget for this area 
which reflected the strengths of county and the council, the continued 
hard work done by the officers and commitment to deliver.

5.2. It was confirmed that the additional £400,000 within road safety would be 
used in areas where the data, including from the Community Speedwatch 
initiatives, identified the greatest need for road safety improvements and to 
benefit of the vast majority of residents.

5.3.On the issue of transport decarbonisation, a member questioned where the 
budget would seek to address journeys that could not be achieved by a 
change to walking or cycling, noting that Mass Rapid Transport (MRT) 
solutions had been discussed. It was advised that there was no ‘one’ 
solution for long journey decarbonisation. The types of activities the council 
was actively involved in and promoting would include things like the MRT 
under the heading of the £1m fund for future resilience, there was also the 
rollout of electric vehicle infrastructure and rail connectivity improvements. 
Another key addition to these alternative travel options would be Transport 
Hubs. Although there was no specific location yet identified, it was proposed 

Page 19



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 12 -

that between £100-200,000 be made available per district to deliver at least 
one. The council continued to participate in progressing this agenda within 
Climate Leadership Gloucestershire and were due to go live with a public 
consultation on their decarbonisation action plan shortly.

5.4.There was concern the tree planting programme was not progressing as 
needed to hit the target of 1 million by 2030. It was acknowledged that this 
was an ambitious target and the council remained committed to delivering it. 
Such programmes were usually slowest at the start as it took a lot of time to 
identify sites and officer capacity, partners to help deliver etc. it will therefore 
begin to accelerate. In addition, there was also a commitment that for every 
tree removed from the highway (for example due to Ash Dieback disease), it 
would be replaced with two, be that where it stood before or in a more 
appropriate place.

5.5.Officers clarified that the Highways & Transport Transformation Fund was 
purely allocated to explore how the highways maintenance function 
performed, and how it could be improved to provide a better service for 
residents. There was currently a mismatch between statistics and feeling 
within communities, this fund would help officers get within that thinking, 
reflect on the service provided and better understand what residents 
expected.

5.6.A member quired the figure provided for the Energy from waste contract 
benchmarking on page 85 of the consultation document. It was advised that 
in previous years this cost had not changed much contract to contract but 
due to the exceptional economic situation at the moment, some of the 
contract terms had increased and therefore needed to be met with 
additional budget. It was stressed however that these costs were more than 
offset by the increased revenue received from Javelin Park through energy 
sales.

5.7.Noting the cost reductions on page 86, officers explained that the reduction 
in relation to road sweepings was as a result of a review of the service that 
found there was much more opportunity to recycle street sweepings rather 
than treating the entirety as residual waste. The street lighting reduction was 
as a result of plans to phase in a reduction of brightness in particular areas 
as well as investing in more efficient technologies.

5.8.Concern was raised that little was being done in this budget to help promote 
walking in the county. It was advised that there was a lot of money spent in 
this area, repairing and resurfacing pavements for example, but these 
ongoing costs would not be reflected specifically in this budget as it primarily 
focused on changes. Another example was the proposed Cheltenham Mini 
Holland Scheme which, if progressed and successful, could provide a 
business case for further projects going forward.

5.9.A member questioned how this budget would help address the remaining 
areas not reached by the Fastershire Broadband programme. It was 

Page 20



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 13 -

explained that the programme had realistically now been rolled out as far as 
it could without a significant cost soar. What the Council would now look at 
was other ways of enabling residents to access that connection, for 
example, providing a local subsidy or exploring alternative technologies. 

6. CORPORATE

6.1.Cllr Lynden Stowe outlined the Commissioning Intentions and budget 
changes detailed in the draft MTFS relating to Corporate Resources. In 
particular members noted the following:

 This budget area covered the provision of resources to enable services to 
be delivered.

 A proposed increased of £7.7m, of which £5m related to pay awards.
 £800,000 increase for legal costs, specifically in children’s social care 

and due to the court backlog.
 £800,000 for investment into staff retention and an increase in 

information requests and complaint handling.
 £1.135m around IT upgrades, cyber essentials and ensuring staff have 

better equipment for agile working progress.
 This budget also included the pay contingency for next year’s pay award 

which had been proposed at 4% with an additional 0.5% reserved.

6.2. It was confirmed that there was a capital budget of £12m per year allocated 
for property improvements to ensure they were rentable where needed. 
There was a continued review of the use of Shire Hall to understand the 
impact of changes to working patterns caused by Covid. It was Covid 
impacts on working patterns, acknowledged that such projects were likely to 
result in a positive return.

7. SUMMARY

7.1.The Committee had the opportunity to feed back to the Chief Executive and 
Leader of Council on the themes and trends that had been identified over 
the course of the day.

7.2.Members had been advised to consider how effectively the proposed 
budget responded to:

 The changing needs of Gloucestershire residents and communities
 The priorities and ambitions set out within the Council Strategy
 Any legislative or other changes in national policy or guidance

7.3.While the Committee did not make any formal recommendations, the 
significant comments raised by Members at the end of the day are listed 
below.

7.4.Adults Social Care and Communities

Page 21



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 14 -

 Explore opportunities to expand the detail available to members on 
understanding the delivery and risk management of all Commissioning 
Intentions – noting more detail will be provided at council in February 
(discussion at 2.3).

 Suggestions on reviewing whether additional funding could be provided 
via the Build Back Better Fund in the future and whether a central 
resource could be made available to help coordinate members in pooling 
their funding allocations for larger/cross divisional projects (discussion at 
2.11).

 Proposed Health Scrutiny item around sufficient funding of areas such as 
children’s mental health services which was the responsibility of partners 
outside the Council (discussion at 2.15).

7.5.Children and Families Scrutiny Committee

 Commissioning intentions – some members were looking for additional 
detail on plans developed from these and detail of outcomes from 
previous commissioning intentions. It was important to understand 
timescales around delivery and why some had continued over a number 
of years. 

 Pressure created by recruitment agencies and the importance of the 
social work academy.

 Importance of effective forecasting with some members suggesting a lack 
of confidence in the budget being able to meet demand. There was 
recognition that small numbers of children sometimes made-up large 
amounts of the overspend and that this was difficult to forecast. 

7.6.Feedback to the Leader and Chief Executive

In addition to the above points, members of the Committee fed back the 
following observations and suggested actions:

 Some members highlighted the need to spend as much as possible on 
prevention and intervention, particularly within Adult and Children’s Social 
Services.

 To ensure the budget and commissioning intentions satisfy new 
obligations on local authorities via the Environment Act 2021. This was 
not currently explicitly referred to within the consultation document.

 Each department within the council should have an understanding and 
ownership for their own climate change implications, particularly Scope 3 
Emissions arising from their activities. This should not just be held 
centrally.

Page 22



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 15 -

 The Committee understood the reason behind the council tax increase 
but remained concerned about the impact this will have on residents, 
particularly considering the ongoing cost of living crisis.

 Noting the significant pressures faced over the past few years, through 
extraordinary events such as Covid, energy crisis etc., and the impact 
these have had on the council’s transformation programmes, a member 
raised concerned that this may become the ‘new normal’ and what this 
would mean for future improvement plans.

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 16:45.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
WORK PLAN 2022 - 23

28 February 2023  Finance Update
 Strategic Performance Report 3rd quarter
 Corporate Resources performance report

19 April 2023  IT improvement strategy
 Consultation Process

Date change
9 June 2023

 Finance Update (year-end)
 Strategic Performance Report 4th quarter
 Corporate Resources performance report

26 July 2023  Finance outturn
 Performance Benchmarking
 Customer Experience

27 September 2023  Finance Update
 Strategic Performance Report 1st quarter
 Corporate Resources performance report
 Annual Overview of Need and Council Performance
 Council Estate

6 December 2023  Strategic Performance Report 2nd quarter
 Corporate Resources performance report
 Finance Update
 ‘Gloucestershire Needs and Performance’
 Annual Scrutiny report 2022/23

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 ash

Financial Monitoring Report 2022/23
Purpose of Report:  To provide an update on the County Council's Revenue & Capital 

Forecast Outturn Position for 2022/23.

Officer:                      Paul Blacker, Finance Director (01452) 3258999
                Paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.ukash

Revenue Expenditure 2022/23

A. Revenue Forecast Outturn Position 2022/23

1. The current forecast of the year end revenue position is an overspend of £4.874 million 
against the revenue budget of £521.330 million, based on forecasts in December 2022 
(Period 9) after utilising grants for Covid-19 expenditure. 

2. The largest non-Covid-19 variances are the £10.640 million forecast overspend in Children 
and Families, £350k forecast overspend in Economy, Environment & Infrastructure and 
£480k forecast overspend in Community Safety – partially offset by the £6.553 million 
underspend in Technical & Countywide. 

3. The Council’s forecast additional cost from the Covid-19 pandemic (excluding expenditure 
funded from specific grants) is estimated to be £8.674 million in 2022/23 which matches the 
funding carried froward from the 2021/22 Covid-19 Emergency Grant. A balanced position 
is therefore forecast for Covid-19 related activity. 

4. An analysis of the current forecast outturn position is provided in the table and narrative 
below. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Directorate Breakdown for Cabinet Report - Position December Forecasts 2022 (P9)

Variance

Revised 
2022/23 
Budget

Forecast 
excluding 
Covid-19

%

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 %

Adults 165,574 165,574 0 0 0 0.00%

Prevention & Wellbeing 35,777 36,241 464 656 -192 -0.54%

Children & Families 145,143 161,552 16,409 5,769 10,640 7.33%

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure 84,755 85,105 350 0 350 0.41%

Community Safety 21,748 22,236 488 8 480 2.21%

Corporate Resources 40,791 43,181 2,390 2,241 149 0.37%

Total for Services 493,788 513,889 20,101 8,674 11,427 2.31%

Technical & Countywide 27,542 20,989 -6,553 0 -6,553 -23.79%

Total 521,330 534,878 13,548 8,674 4,874 0.93%

Additional Funding Covid-19 including 
carry forward to be allocated 8,674 0 -8,674 -8,674 

Revised Total 530,004 534,878 4,874 0 4,874 

Covid-19 
ForecastService Area

Forecast 
Outturn 
Position

Forecast 
Outturn 
Variance

Page 28



Adult Social Care 

5. Adult Social Care (ASC) is reporting a balance position, with an underlying overspend of 
£2.324 million. The outturn forecast includes unachieved MTFS savings targets totalling £2.262 
million for 2022/23 and £2.896 million brought forward from 2021/22. Although no formal 
request is being made to Cabinet to use ASC reserves at this point, the current forecast 
overspend would be covered within the Vulnerable Adults Reserve if required at the end of the 
financial year. 

6. Adult Social Care reserves currently stand at £11.926 million. £9.164 million as Vulnerable 
Adults Reserve, £2.144 million Care Act Reserve, and £618k Ordinary Residents Reserve.

7. There are several significant ongoing financial risks impacting on Adult Social Care budgets; 
the ongoing impact of COVID-19, responding to winter/hospital pressures, the Adult 
Transformation Programme (ATP), Assurance Self Evaluation report and uncertainty about  the 
Adult Social Care Reforms.

8. Learning Disabilities (LD) External Care including the Transforming Care Programme (TCP) is 
forecasting a £1.842 million underspend, with £641k of savings achieved to date. This forecast 
acknowledges that some of the current individuals under the TCP will not now move during 
2022/23, which is an underspend of £1.745 million. The LD External Care budget, excluding 
the TCP underspend, is underspending by £97k relating to decreases in ongoing cases. The 
underspend relating to the TCP is a one-off underspend, being used to cover the overall 
overspend against Disabilities this financial year, as the funding will be required when the 
individuals move in future financial years.

9. Older People (OP) and Physical Disabilities (PD) External Care is reporting a £5.838 million 
overspend, with £1.083 million of savings achieved to date. The overspend is split across 
individual service budgets with OP forecast at £2.659k and PD £3.179 million. The current 
overspend relates to the brought forward underlying financial position, voids relating to homes 
run by a major provider (forecast £2.166 million, partially covered by COVID grant last financial 
year), increased cover for bad debts and additional demand and winter/hospital pressures.

10.The Mental Health position, as calculated by the Gloucestershire Health and Care NHST 
Finance Team, is a £608k overspend. A long-term plan continues to be developed with 
Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Trust to address the underlying overspend. The S117 
backdated refunds for former residents discharged from the service will continue to be 
progressed during 2022/23 with refunds of £769k being paid and £708k remaining.

11.Housing, Community Equipment Service and Telecare is reporting a £273k underspend. 
Funding held by the Programme Director – Housing, Health and Care is reporting an 
underspend of £268k, with Telecare forecasting to underspend by £261k and Community 
Equipment having an overspend of £257k. The Programme Director is undertaking further 
negotiations with the NHS Gloucestershire Integrated Care Board to secure recurring funding 
for the Housing Strategy.

12.Other Services comprise of staffing budgets for Adult Social Care, as well as several specific 
commissioned contracts. Forecasts for these services net to a £826k overspend, including the 
following significant variances:

 £3.105 million significant overspend relating to unfound 2022/23 MTFS savings of 
£1.708 million; £1.397 million net overspend for Enhanced Independence Offer (EIO).

Page 29



 £2.279 million significant underspends, mainly due to vacancies: £311k Head of 
Integrated Commissioning EIO; £883k Integrated Social Care Management (ISCM); 
£633k LD Assessment, Support Planning & Management Teams; and £453k net 
underspend comprising of smaller variances. 

13. The Unallocated Budget is reported as £2.833 million underspent, currently used to offset the 
External Care overspend. This includes the corporately transferred pay award budget that 
needs to be transferred to individual cost centres.

Partnership Working

14. The Council manages £240.699m under Joint Funding Partnership agreements held with NHS 
Gloucestershire Integrated Commissioning Board (‘the ICB’).  These agreements are funded 
from a combination of partner organisations’ base budgets and grants, including the Better 
Care Fund.  The financial position for services covered by the agreements is included both 
within partners’ own Finance Reports, and in a combined Report to the Joint Finance 
Partnership Executive (JCPE).

The most recent JCPE Report includes a forecast overspend of £4.421m, of which £1.873m 
relates to overspends within GCC services (£1.666m Children’s, £0.207m Adults).  These 
variances are included within the revenue forecast position covered by this report, not in 
addition to it.

Prevention and Wellbeing 

15.Services within this area include Public Health, Supporting People and a number of smaller 
budgets covering the prevention hub team and grants. In total Prevention Services are 
forecast to be £464k over-spent but this includes £656k of Covid-19 general expenditure 
related to the build back better project which will be funded from the general COVID grant. 
After excluding COVID expenditure, the underlying position is £192k under-spent with the 
significant part of the variance due to supporting people framework lots not being called off 
due to grant funding being used prior to further procurements and delays due to staff capacity.

16.The Covid-19 grants (COMF and Test and Trace) carried forward totalled £8.262 million and 
this funding is committed to supporting the recovery of vulnerable groups and communities 
following the impact of the pandemic.

17. In total, excluding COVID expenditure, Prevention and Well Being is forecast to be £789k 
under-spent and this takes account of funding part of the child weight management pilot 
project in-year. Public Health services are funded by a ring-fenced grant which, if unspent, is 
required to be carried forward in a specific reserve. The Public Health (PH) position is forecast 
to be £597k under-spent as a consequence of activity related costs in sexual health, 
substance misuse and healthy lifestyles, commitments against contracts for healthy lifestyles, 
sexual health and substance misuse and, lower staffing costs in year. Any balance will be 
transferred to the PH reserve at year end therefore the forecast under-spend, net of the 
transfer to the PH Reserve, is £192k.

Page 30



Children & Families

18.The outturn forecast for non-DSG funded services is an over-spend of £17.844 million (12.3% 
of budget). Included within these figures is the forecast additional cost of the impact of Covid-
19 on budgets which totals £3.35 million giving an underlying forecast over-spend of £14.494 
million, an increase of £3.258 million since the previous report due to increased activity in the 
external placement budget. The £14.494 million net overspend has been reduced by £3.854 
million by applying one-off unallocated covid grant giving a reported overspend of £10.64 
million. 

19.The over-spend continues to be primarily against the external placements budget, due to 
increasing numbers of children in care and the cost of placements due to limited market 
availability, both of which are national issues. The forecast also includes an estimate for the 
additional cost of contract uplifts for home to school transport providers to support the 
sustainability of the market due to rising costs. 

20.Additional forecast expenditure linked to the impact of Covid-19 covers two areas including the 
additional cost of accommodation for care leavers, with the majority of care leavers moved to 
more appropriate accommodation by the end of September, and support to vulnerable pupils. 

21.Activity levels within social care continue to cause significant budgetary pressures, in particular 
for external placements and social care staffing. Referrals so far in 2022/23 are in-line with the 
2021/22 average whilst children in care numbers in November were 877, compared to 2021/22 
average of 830. Gloucestershire’s number and rate of children in care (67 per 10,000 children 
in care) is above statistical neighbours (54) and the same as the England average (67).

22.The current forecast over-spend against the external placement budget is £13.635 million 
(34.3% above budget). The forecast also includes the estimated impact of Covid-19 on care 
leavers which totals £3 million, resulting in an underlying over-spend of £10.635 million. The 
underlying over-spend is due to the number and cost of residential placements (62 FTEs) and 
support packages for young people and the cost of supported living placements with a £3.918 
million increase since the last forecast reported in October. The four most complex placements 
are forecast to cost £5.4 million in 2022/23. There are currently 481 external placements, of 
which 128 are residential and 126 supported living placements. 

23.Against safeguarding staffing budgets, there is a forecast over-spend of £1.8 million (8.4% 
above budget). Turnover of staff continues to rise and has been between 23.1% and 28.7% 
over the last six months. At the end of November there were 130 agency workers in post, and 
this compares to 85 agency workers in August 2021. To reduce costs action has already been 
taken to replace interims with permanent appointments and increase the number of newly 
qualified staff with the majority now in post.

24.Services for children with disabilities are forecasting to over-spend by £1.2 million due to the 
increased cost and number of care packages and agency costs within disability service 
staffing.

25.Home to school transport is forecast to overspend by £1.2 million which is the estimate for the 
additional cost of contract uplifts for providers to support the sustainability of the market due to 
rising costs and ensure the availability of provision. If costs continue to rise, this may result in 
further increases to the forecast.

Page 31



26.Offsetting variances include in-house fostering and adoption services which are under-spent by 
£969k due to activity being below budgeted assumptions and also funding allocated for 
commissioning development being released to offset placements costs (£1 million).

27.To continue to support vulnerable families during this year, Gloucestershire has been awarded 
£5.286 million from the DfE to provide holiday activities, food provision and essential items and 
a further grant of £3.692m for the Household Support Fund has been awarded for the period 
October to March 2023.

28.To address the significant over-spend position the senior leadership team has established a 
budget working group which is meeting weekly to review the budget recovery position. Further 
impetus will be provided by a Financial Recovery Oversight Group comprising of the Council 
Leader, Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer, along with children’s services senior 
leadership. The financial recovery strategy aligns with the improvement strategy by focussing 
on early intervention to avoid the need for a costly social care response and bringing the child 
in care population more in line with statistical neighbours over the coming years. This will 
involve a range of workstreams, each with a designated lead, which aim to impact on both 
numbers and associated costs, including:  
 Further developing our edge of care offer to support children at home and avoid entry into 

care, linking with youth support and early help teams.
 Continuing to develop our permanence planning to reduce drift and delay by achieving 

permanence or reunification as appropriate in a timely manner.
 Reviewing the entire children in care population to ensure care packages continue to reflect 

needs, ensuring value for money and taking advantage of where costs can be reduced 
while continuing to deliver the right outcomes for the young person.  This will include work 
with partners around their contributions.

 Transformation of the in-house fostering service to drive up capacity, improve matching and 
increase family/connected carers.

 Continuing to develop our own placement capacity with providers to exert a greater 
influence on the market and control costs.

 Detailed review of staffing establishment, supply lines for practitioners and use of agency 
workers.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) position

29.Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funded services are forecast to be over-spent by £28.456 
million in 2022/23, which includes the deficit carry forward of £20.8 million on high needs and 
the in-year deficit budget for high needs of £6.347 million. The deficit budget results from 
setting realistic budgets within high needs services, reflecting growth trends and existing 
activity demands on special school and independent provision and top up budgets. Due to the 
number of Education, Health and Care Plans being requested and granted, tops ups are 
forecast to overspend by £1.5 million. 

30.The High Needs Strategy that was approved by the Council is in the implementation 
phase with revised top-up banding systems being consulted on, a review and redesign 
of care pathways taking place as well as the setting up of digital systems to improve 
processes. The proposed additional funding in the MTFS 23/24 to provide additional 
capacity within SEND teams will seek to reduce the pressure on the budget. This work 

Page 32



will support the DfE programme of reviewing Local Authority expenditure on SEND 
through ‘Delivering Better Value’. The review will further assess local processes and 
plans, carry out data analysis leading to identifying the cost drivers and the cause of 
the pressure on budgets and look at what additional action can be taken to resolve the 
deficit position setting out improvement and DSG management plans. 

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure

31.Economy, Environment, and Infrastructure are currently forecasting a overspend position of 
£350k against a total budget of £84.755 million which is 0.41% of the overall budget. 

32. In year pressures of £1.00 million made up of £450k against additional investment on roads 
and repairs and £550k relates to loss of income which is split £450k against parking and £100k 
for libraries. We are forecasting to absorb £650k of the overspend through a combination of in 
year vacancies estimated to be at £450k and a £200k reduction in recycling credits paid out. 

Community Safety Directorate

33.The Community Safety Directorate has a forecast year end position which shows an overspend 
of £488k including costs attributed to COVID-19 of £8k. Excluding COVID 19 costs the forecast 
outturn shows an overspend of £480k.

34.The majority of the overspend is staff related, including overtime for operational staff and non-
achievement of vacancy management savings. 

35.There are some underlying risks to achieving this position which include:

 The volatility of the on-call service. It can be difficult to accurately predict on-call costs due to 
the demand-led nature of the service.

 Potential higher overtime costs due to sickness. 
 Within Coroners, the impact of the 50% increase in post-mortem charges

Corporate Resources

36.Corporate Resources are forecasting an overspend of £2.390 million (5.86% of the budget). 
Included within these figures is the forecast additional cost of the impact of COVID-19 on 
budgets which totals £2.241 million giving an underlying overspend of £149k.

37.The additional forecast expenditure of £2.241 million for the impact of Covid-19 including 
£1.859 million for costs associated with post covid recovery.

Technical and Countywide

38.Following the in-year service budget realignment of specific contingencies and corporate 
transport savings, the forecast outturn position for Technical and Countywide budgets is a 
£6.553 million underspend. The main areas of variance are highlighted in the paragraphs 
below.

39. Interest income is forecast to be £2.881 million higher than originally forecast due to better than 
expected returns on investments and cash balances. 

Page 33



40.The 2022/23 budget includes a savings contingency. This was approved by Council to reflect 
the high-risk nature of some of the savings programmes in demand led areas in 2022/23. 
£1.230 million is being used to support the overall budget position for 2022/23. 

41.The capital financing budget is forecast to be £2.441 million underspent following reductions in 
capital financing costs due to slippage on approved capital schemes.

 

B. Delivery of Savings Programme

42.At the end of Quarter 2, £6.772 million savings have been achieved, 61.64% of the annual 
target, and a further £2.131 million savings are forecast to be delivered against a target of 
£10.987 million. 

43.  A total of £2.520 million is forecast to be at risk of being delivered by the end of 2022/23, 
which would represent 22.93% of the annual target. The most significant elements at risk being 
£2.262 million Adult Social Care Savings and £240k income target across Economy, 
Environment & Infrastructure. These at risk savings are included in the outturn forecasts for the 
relevant Directorates.

C. Capital Expenditure 

Current Spend 2022/23

44.The current capital budget for 2022/23 is £150.974 million. Actual spend against the capital 
programme as at the end of November is £73.551 million.

Budget and Forecast Outturn Position 2022/23

45.The forecast outturn position for 2022/23, based on forecasts made in December (P9), is 
£132.756 million, against the budget of £150.974 million, giving a forecast in-year slippage of 
£18.218 million.

Page 34



Service Area

Reprofiled
Budget
2022/23

Current
Year

Spend
2022/23

% Current
Year

Spend
Against

Reprofiled
Budget

Forecast
Outturn
2022/23

Forecast
Year-end
Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Capital Receipts Works Before Sale 0 0
Adults 10,984 7,052 64 10,748 -236
Childrens Services

Schools 24,917 18,190 73 25,978 1,061
Non-Schools 2,585 297 11 1,222 -1,363

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
Transport & Highways 79,874 43,206 54 77,702 -2,172
Planning & Economic Development 5,057 280 6 957 -4,100
Environment & Waste 1,078 85 8 681 -397
Libraries & Registration 770 116 15 971 201

Community Safety
Fire and Rescue Service 781 172 22 393 -388
Trading Standards 39 16 41 31 -8

Corporate Services
AMPS 8,098 2,653 33 7,281 -817
ICT Projects 4,836 1,483 31 4,536 -300
Business Service Centre 145 0 0 145 0
Archives & Information Management 90 1 1 91 1
Corporate Resources Misc 0 0 0 0 0
Digital Innovation (Customer) 20 0 0 20 0
Investment and Transformation Fund 11,700 0 0 2,000 -9,700

Total 150,974 73,551 49 132,756 -18,218

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2022/23

Childrens Services Capital Programme 2022/23

Schools

46.The Schools capital programme is forecasting an in year overspend of £1.061 million against 
the current budget. This is mainly due to increased forecast spend on the Capital Maintenance 
Programme. This will be covered by a combination of revenue contributions from schools and 
the 2022/23 Schools Condition Allocation (capital grant) that has been received but is currently 
profiled to be spent in 2023/24.

Non-Schools

47.The Non-Schools capital programme is forecasting slippage of £1.363 million against the 
current budget. This is mainly due to delays to the Southfields and Townsend House projects 

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure Capital Programme 2022/23

Transport & Highways

48.The Transport and Highways Capital programme is forecasting slippage of £2.172 million. This 
relates to land acquisitions related to J10 for which there was £5 million programmed spend.  
An assessment of the land acquisitions has been carried out, given there are third parties 

Page 35



involved and timescales are not entirely within GCC’s control, and a risk factor has been 
applied to allow for a proportion not completing by the end of the financial year.  

Planning & Economic Development

49.The Planning and Economic Development Capital programme is forecasting slippage of £4.100 
million. £3.880 million of this relates the reprofiling of the Fastershire Broadband programme 
over the next 2-3 years based on the ability to deliver and the need to utilise BDUK grant 
funding first. The remaining £220k relates to three Flood Alleviation projects, Upton St 
Leonards, Coleford and Nailsworth. Coleford is experienced delays due to modelling and 
design being adapted to meet local constraints, with delivery now planned for 2023. The 
forecast for Upton and Nailsworth has changed due to the need for further investigation, 
monitoring and modelling which will be funded from revenue, with delivery now planned for 
2023. 

50.The Fastershire Broadband budget will be reprofiled to reflect the current forecast. This 
ensures the latest figures are included in the MTFS 2022/23 but does not affect the whole life 
approval of the capital project.

Environment & Waste

51.The Environment and Waste Capital Programme is forecasting slippage of £397k, this is a 
combination of the programme slippage of Wingmoor Farm HRC refurbishment and the 
suspending of the spend on the Hempsted HRC flood alleviation programme in order to 
prioritise a programme of essential HRC repairs at all sites.

Corporate Resources Capital Programme 2022/23

AMPS

52.AMPS is forecasting slippage of £817k, an increase of £35k from last month and mostly due to: 
 £350k Mechanical and Electrical Corporate Property Condition Data works delays
 £400k Quayside Multi Storey Car Park delays

ICT Projects

53.The ICT Capital Programme is forecasting slippage of £300k on the Desktop Hardware 
scheme, due to not purchasing laptops at the rate originally targeted.

Investment and Transformation Fund

54. Investment and Transformation Fund is forecasting slippage of £9.700 million.  We have been 
working on a number of schemes, but due to increased build costs it now looks like most of the 
build will come later. We are still waiting to hear if some schemes in Children’s Social Care will 
be required in 2022/23

Other Services Capital Programmes

55.All other services are forecast to spend within £250k of the current budgets.

Page 36



Changes to the Capital Programme in 2022/23 and future years

Adults

56. It is proposed that Cabinet support an increase of £3k in the Adults programme funded by a 
revenue contribution from the Corporate Transport Unit revenue budget towards the GIS 
Replacement Vehicles project.

Schools

57. It is proposed that Cabinet support an increase of £299k in the Schools capital programme 
funded by the following developer s106 contributions:
 £100k from a development at The Leasows, Chipping Campden towards an existing project 

for the expansion of Chipping Campden School.
 £49k from a development at Nupend Farm, Horlsey towards a new project to provide 

additional toilets at Horsley C of E Primary School.
 £150k from developments at Wainlode Lane Norton, Ash Lane Down Hatherley and Yew 

Tree Farm Twigworth towards a new project to provide additional pre-school and primary 
space at Norton Primary School.

Transport & Highways

58. It is proposed that Cabinet support an increase of £590k in the Transport and Highways capital 
budget as summarised below:

 £176k revenue contribution from Highways Locals revenue budget. This transfer from 
revenue to capital is standard practice and reflects the fact that members have chosen 
to put forward schemes that are of a capital nature. £118k of this funding will be used 
to finance 15 minor works schemes, with the remaining £13k allocated towards three 
larger resurfacing projects.

 £10k revenue contribution from Capacity Fund 21-22 Grant towards Estcourt Road 
project junction design. 

 £5k revenue contribution from Capacity Fund 21-22 Grant towards Road condition 
Surveys.

 £230k contribution from Monmouthshire County Council as part of their 50/50 funding 
of the Tintern Wireworks Bridge project.

 £184k contribution from Monmouthshire County Council as part of their 50/50 funding 
of the Brockweir Bridge Refurbishment project.

 -£9k reduction in the contribution from Stroud CIL towards the Newman Henders 
Bridge refurbishment project, as the allocation was previously overstated.  

 -£4k reduction in the contribution from Stroud CIL for the Stroud Valleys Cycle Trail, as 
the allocation was previously overstated.

 -£2k reduction in the contribution from Eastington Parish Council towards the bus 
shelter project, as the Parish are ordering the work directly from the supplier.

Environment & Waste Disposal

59. It is proposed that Cabinet support an increase of £317k in the Environment & Waste capital 
programme budget as summarised below:

 -£102k Woodland Trust Emergency Tree Fund grant, this is the element of the award 
which is intended to support the delivery of work that is revenue in nature.

 £123k Forestry Commission Local Authority Treescape Fund grant 2021-22, in 
addition to the £159k approved by Cabinet in December 21, as the entire grant is 
capital funding.

 £286k Forestry Commission Local Authority Treescape Fund grant 2022-23
 £7k revenue contribution from the climate change budget to provide partial match 

funding of the Woodland Trust capital grant to GFirst LEP.

Page 37



 £3k revenue contributions form AMPS and Flood Alleviation teams towards the 
Bournside Railway Green Corridor project.

Overall

60.  As a result of the above changes, the overall capital programme will increase by £1.209 
million. 

Page 38



Strategic Risk 
Monitoring Report

Quarter Q3,  2022/23

RISK IMPACT / CONSEQUENCE

LIKELIHOOD
Insignificant 

(1)
Minor (2)

Moderate 

(3)
Major (4) Critical (5)

Almost certain (5) 5 10 15 20 25

Highly likely (4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable (3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible (2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare (1) 1 2 3 4 5

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 6



Summary overview

Ref Risk Owner Strategic Risks Residual risk score Direction of travel

SR 10.4 Mark Preece Insufficient Business Continuity Management High 20

a
 

SR 10.8 Colin Chick Dept for Transport's Covid Bus Recovery Subsidy (BRS) is withdrawn High 20 [

SR 5.3 Sarah Scott Adult Social Care provider failure High 20 [

SR 8.1 Mandy Quayle Difficulties in recruiting and retaining experienced workers High 20 [

SR 2.4b Paul Blacker Changes to future funding High 20 [

SR 7.6 Sarah Scott Unable to support all those who can, to live independently at home High 16 [

SR 14.1 Colin Chick Implementation of the Community Infrastructure Levy High 16 [

SR 3.1 Mandy Quayle Failure to ensure ICT remains fit for purpose. High 15 [

SR 3.2 Mandy Quayle Failure to protect the council's key information and data from Cyber Attack. High 15 [

SR 7.5 Chris Spencer Insufficient workforce capacity in Children's services Medium 12 [

SR 7.7 Chris Spencer Failure to develop sufficient placement capacity Medium 12 [

SR 10.6 Mark Preece Capacity and capability to deliver Fire Service improvement Medium 12 [

SR 11.1 Rob Ayliffe Failure to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of information. Medium 12 [

SR 7.10 Sarah Scott Implementation of the ‘Care Cap’ cost of care exercise Medium 10

[

P
age 40



Summary overview (continued)

SR 7.1 Sarah Scott Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire Medium 10 [

SR 12.1 Colin Chick Failure of GCC/Gloucestershire to mitigate and adapt to a more volatile climate Medium 10 [

SR 10.7 Mandy Quayle COVID19 - Inability to protect and support GCC employees and partner/contractor key workers Medium 9

[

SR 8.2 Mandy Quayle Staff fatigue and ‘burnout’ Medium 9

[

SR 1.2 Rob Ayliffe Capacity for Procurement activity Medium 9 [

SR 7.4 Kirsten Harrison Failure to Close the gap in Educational Outcomes (SEND) Medium 9

[

SR 7.8 Sarah Scott Risk of legal action being taken due to failures in completing Deprivation of Liberty assessments. Medium 9 [

SR 7.2 Chris Spencer Ineffective Social Care Practice Medium 9 [

SR 1.1 Rob Ayliffe Failure in corporate governance Medium 8 [

SR 1.4 Rob Ayliffe Contract management capacity Medium 8 [

SR 6.1 Pete Bungard Relationships with key partners Medium 8 [

SR 7.9 Siobhan Farmer Insufficient planning and oversight of international resettlement and asylum immigration Medium 8 [

SR 1.5 Rob Ayliffe Compliance with Public Sector Equalities Duty Low 6 [

SR 1.3 Steve Mawson Failure to ensure the effective management of Health and Safety Low 6 [

SR 2.4a Paul Blacker Reductions and changes to funding (current year) Low 5 [

P
age 41



Matters arising this quarter: This section is to highlight for discussion at CLT 

and will be removed before public/Cabinet stages of reporting.

Risk scoring queries:

1. 10.4 - BCM risk escalated significantly. It lists ICT disaster recovery, power blackout planning and industrial action threats in it’s reasoning, and is 

connected to the 2 new risks being suggested below. Are CLT happy that this progresses to the Cabinet report highlighted in this way?

2. 3.1 and 3.2 – ICT/Cyber risks not increased, despite recent issues, due to security sensitivities. Are CLT assured that there is sufficient assurance 

here for Cabinet/Scutiny?

Suggested new risks, raised by Community Safety:

1. “Uncertainty of possible industrial action by strategic partners or GFRS impacts on delivery of key objectives, or the resilience of business 
continuity planning”.  Note from Mark Preece: The FBU is currently balloting its members on their willingness to undertake Industrial Action with 
the ballot taking place between the 5th until the 30th January 2023. It is anticipated the FBU’s members will vote in favour of participating in IA with 
the earliest date this action taking place being the 14th February 2023 due to having to give Employers a statutory period of notice.

We need this risk at GFRS/directorate level, but shouldn’t it be covered within business continuity planning (10.4)?

2.           Backup for winter power outages or blackouts may not be sufficiently planned to maintain essential services. Suggested by Civil Protection.

Again – covered in business continuity? CLT may want to request more detailed assurance on the power outage planning/generator 

availability?

Notice of removal of a risk:

1. 10.7 (from Gold register) ‘protecting staff (from Covid/flu outbreaks)’ will be merged with 8.2 (staff burnout/welfare) and removed in Q4.

P
age 42



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 10.4: Insufficient Business Continuity Management

Due to insufficient business continuity management arrangements failure of 

the Council or a key partner to effectively deliver their statutory services, 

resulting in community disruption and failure of corporate objectives.

Current controls:
Council Business Continuity Policy and associated Role & 

Responsibilities guidance

Corporate BCM Assurance Board 

Business continuity included in Managers Governance 

Checklist (work in progress as at August 2021).

Guidance developed and published to help ensure 

awareness of business continuity in Procurement, 

including appropriate business continuity references in the 

draft Contract Procedure Rules (July 2021); guidance also 

published re. business continuity in Project Management. 

Overall, the guidance developed aims to encourage early 

consideration of BCM so as to help "design-in" business 

continuity from the start of key council change and 

procurement activities.

Business continuity programme overseen by a lead officer 

for BCM within the Civil Protection Team, Community 

Safety Directorate

Period comments:

The overall assessment for the business continuity risk this quarter has worsened since the previous quarter – increased impact and increased likelihood. This is because:-

1. Despite the additional time allotted by CLT for completion of the BCM programme of work (an additional six months through to the end of December 2022), the work required has not been completed by many business 

continuity plan (BCP) owners across the council. The end Q3 position is provided below. Furthermore, because of the delays in completing BCPs, minimal BCP exercising has been undertaken meaning plans have not been validated. 

% up-to-date BIAs BCPs

Last quarter: end Q2 2022-2023     71% 55%

This quarter: end Q3 2022-2023     66% 53%

2. Since the Q2 report, issues have been raised with the council's ability to recover effectively from disruption. This is being addressed, but raises the risk level in the short term.

3. Also since the Q2 report, it has become clear that the council has not thoroughly considered the risk of electricity supply disruption. Generator provision across the GCC estate has gaps and has no strategic plan. Furthermore, 

some key premises (e.g. GCC locations which accommodate in-house care and respite services) have not been added to their energy suppliers' Priority Services Registers.

4. There is an increased likelihood of disruptive incidents taking place e.g. the threat of rota disconnection of electricity supplies in the UK given the potential for gas-fired generation capability being insufficient this winter, 

combined with knock-on impacts from industrial action at partner organisations and, potentially, at GFRS (subject to FBU ballot).

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

12

Risk Owner: Mark Preece, Chief Fire 

Officer

Cabinet Member: Cllr Dave Norman

20

P
age 43



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 10.8 - Dept for Transport's Covid Bus Recovery Subsidy (BRS) is withdrawn (new risk 

transferred from Gold register)

Community isolation, operational and financial impacts through the withdrawal of the Government’s Bus Recovery Subsidy (BRS) prior to 

passenger levels returning to pre-covid levels; and the reduction/withdrawal of specific bus services by the existing contractor and 

difficulties in the market with attracting alternative contractors.

Additional GCC financial support has been provided to protect passenger routes in response to the sharp fall in revenue caused by 

Government advice initially to avoid passenger transport & subsequent customer confidence of using the services during the pandemic.

Current controls:
1) Integrated Transport Unit will develop a post-pandemic ‘bus 

service strategy’ to outline what actions will be required should the 

DfT’s Covid bus service revenue support grant be withdrawn

2) Work with bus operators to explore the formation of ‘recovery 

partnerships’ to stabilise the bus network after the DfT’s Covid Bus 

Service Support Grant ends and new networks emerge in 

response to changes in passenger demand

3) Lead Cabinet Members informed on status of existing contracts

4) Delay re-procurement of high value bus service contracts until 

second half of 2021

5) Bus Service improvement plan in progress.

6) The county council has joined other local authorities in asking 

central government to not withdraw the grant - awaiting 

government response.

7) Support grant will be in place until October 2022.

8) Underspend on concessionary fares is being redirected to 

provide a package of interim support until April 2023. 

9) Support grant has been extended until March 2023, but funding 

beyond this will be directed to areas of the country that need it 

most.

10) Significant risk raised with Cabinet Members and MPs.

11) Savings have been reinvested to provide an 8% inflationary 

uplift to contracted providers.

Period comments:
The Government support scheme has been extended and is now scheduled to end 

on 31 March 2023. There may be further extension to this although we have no 

information at this stage. If the scheme were to end there would be no immediate 

impact, however in the long term some bus services may no longer be viable.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

Risk Owner: Colin Chick, Exec. Director of 

Economy, Environment and Infrastructure

Cabinet Member: Cllr Phillip Robinson

20 20

P
age 44



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 5.3: Adult Social Care provider failure

Provider failures in the Adult Social Care market result in the council being 

unable to achieve its strategic objectives.

Risk Owner: Sarah Scott, Exec. Director of 

Adult Social Care

Cabinet Member: Cllr Carole Allaway-Martin

Current controls:

Business continuity planning, including 
for partners and providers

Supporting providers to tackle 
recruitment and retention issues

Contract management and monitoring

Period comments:

The independent market continues to be in a state of uncertainty due to the continuing impact of the pandemic and the current economic tensions in relation to costs for staff, utilities, 

food and fuel. There is some improvement in the home care sector with an overall increase of 12% in delivery of home care hours with the same number of staff, as a result of the 

introduction of hyper local commissioning of home care. We continue to work with the sector to improve recruitment and retention of the adult social care workforce and to try and 

balance supply of staff with the need for home care across the county.

Care homes are still holding high levels of vacancies and coupled with increased costs, the risk of homes becoming unviable/unsustainable remains high. Work on changing the model 

for hospital discharge so more of the market can benefit from the short-term funding is underway and an update will be provided at the end of Quarter 4.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

20 20

P
age 45



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 8.1 Difficulties in Recruiting and Retaining Experienced workers

Difficulties in recruiting and retaining experienced workers in hard to fill roles leading to 

vacancies and/or high numbers of agency staff in some areas. This is particularly 

prevalent for social workers but is also increasingly a factor for other professional roles.

Current controls:

1. Risks identified as part of appraisal process
2. Communications strategy/framework
3. Supervision 1:1
4. Workforce/Organisational Development Strategy
5. Strategies for business critical areas

6. Performance management (including absence 
management)
7. Health and safety policy
8. Business planning process
9. Portfolio and programme management processes
10. Workforce planning Leadership/manager
11. Structured training programmes
12. Leadership development
13. Redeployment arrangements
14. Support to Commercial review.

Period comments:
National and regional labour markets remain extremely tight with full employment reported against all or most salary levels. Competition for highly 

qualified and specialist staff is particularly fierce and the Council continues to make available a range of market related additional reward payments. The 

removal of the bottom point of the national pay spine should help at the lowest pay levels but recruitment and retention will remain high priority areas for the 

foreseeable future.

We are introducing an employer brand to promote the council in the market place in a more favourable way together with greater use of social media to target 

and attract candidates. 

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

20 20

Risk Owner: Mandy Quayle, Director 

of People and Digital Services

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

P
age 46



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 2.4b Changes to Future Funding

Reductions and changes to funding for future financial years, potentially impacting, in 

particular, Core Services

Current controls:

MTFS process

Management of Reserves

Period comments:

The draft 2023/24 budget has been consulted on, and will be presented to Cabinet on the 25th January, and full 

Council on the 15th of February. A balanced budget presented for 2023/24.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

20 20

Risk Owner: Paul Blacker, Director of 

Finance

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

P
age 47



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 7.6: Unable to support all those who can, to live independently at home

Unable to support all those who can, to live independently at home, because 

demand for home care services outstrips available capacity. Resulting in the 

reliance on temporary respite/alternative bed based care in lieu of home care

Current controls:

Integrated Brokerage: Last September we 

centralised the brokerage of respite/bed based care 

(into our enhanced brokerage team) provision for 

people who are waiting for a care package to enable 

them to stay in their own home. This has enabled 

us to respond quicker, with less people being 

unnecessarily delayed in leaving hospital.

Shift in commissioning approach : One of the 

impacts of a shortage in the supply of Home Care 

Services has been the use of out of county 

providers, which brings disadvantages such as 

higher costs & care workers travelling greater 

distances to see clients. We introduced 'guaranteed 

hours' to support local providers, and are focussed 

on encouraging more care workers to work in the 

Gloucestershire Home Care sector. Alongside this 

we have enabled Hospices (who provide end of life 

care) to work with Home Care providers, for 

example offering a 'hospice at home' package and 

upskilling home care workers in end of life care

Period comments: 

The situation continues to be difficult but work on the localising of home care is increasing the available capacity. There 

has been a 12% increase in hours purchased since April 2022.

The risk is more in the ability to manage the change to localised working as the process for managing bought capacity is 

dependent on staff. We are working with the Performance team on ways to automate the process but are reliant on 

support from ICT to implement this. This at a time when there are numerous calls on their time for multiple change 

projects.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

Change

16 16

\

Risk Owner: Sarah Scott, Exec. Director 

of Adult Social Care

Cabinet Member: Cllr Kathy Williams

P
age 48



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 14.1 Implementation of the Community Infrastructure Levy

The implementation of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in Gloucestershire has resulted in a 

decrease in the County Council’s developer contributions receipts. This has placed significant 

additional pressures on the relevant County Council’s budgets, such as education, transport and 

highways.

Risk Owner: Colin Chick, Exec. Director of 

Economy, Environment and Infrastructure

Cabinet Member: Cllr David Gray

Current controls:

COMT and LCM made aware of 
issue.

Regular engagement with all 
relevant stakeholders.

Period comments: 

Ongoing discussions with all of the District Councils.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

16 16

P
age 49



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 3.1. Failure to ensure that ICT remains fit for purpose

Failure to ensure technology managed by ICT (including communications abilities) 

remains fit for purpose

Current controls:
Director level ownership of the ICT Managed 
Service contract with Cantium (Service Review 
Underway)
ICT client team staffing structure re-
developed - e.g. greater engagement with all 
Directorates via ICT Business Relationship 
team, underpinned by an internal Strategy & 
Architecture function.
Governance in place to ensure any ICT 
operational risks and issues are appropriately 
managed
ICT Strategy, Service Plan and strategic 
roadmap in place to address ageing and legacy 
technological products and solutions
Comprehensive MTFS/capital expenditure 
activity to address a legacy of under-
investment in technology and digital solutions
Significant project activities have been 
undertaken to modernise/stabilise critical 
infrastructure, focused on a journey to cloud 
technologies via improved WAN / LAN / 
telephony / Wi-Fi services.
The new Digital and ICT operating model is 
governed through a robust set of meetings 
including a structured Digital and ICT Senior 
Management Team meeting that reviews all 
aspects of the service delivery.

NOTE: not all council systems and/or data is hosted and 
supported within the technological environment 
managed by the ICT Service. This should be the focus of a 
separate corporate risk register.

Period comments:

Our programme of ICT replacement and improvement continued in the last period with good progress on network 

infrastructure, M365 roll out and wider hosting programmes. Our contract with support partner stable with positive 

relationships, performance of the service desk improving. Feedback from users is also improving. The new 

hosting model increases resilience, however more work to do to complete programme.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

15 15

Risk Owner: Mandy Quayle, Director 

of People and Digital Services

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

P
age 50



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 3.2 Failure to protect the council's key information and data from Cyber Attack.

Failure to protect the council's key information and data from Cyber 

Attack.

Current controls: 
ICT Managed Service contract with Cantium in place to 
provide technological controls and measures against cyber 
attack (and service review underway)

ICT client team staffing structure has been re-
developed to give closer working with the Information 
Management Service.

Governance in place via the Information Board to ensure 
any technical and non-technical operational risks and 
issues are appropriately managed

Cyber & Information Management (Procurement) Policy in 
place

Comprehensive MTFS/capital expenditure activity to 
address a legacy of under-investment in technology and 
digital solutions

The annual Independent IT health check has been 
completed and remediating any issues found in 
partnership with suppliers.

Significant change activities have been undertaken to 
modernise/stabilise critical infrastructure, e.g. telephony, 
Wi-Fi, video-conferencing, etc.

Regular communications are circulated 
and training provided to ensure that staff are fully aware 
of their responsibilities to help in the fight against cyber-
crime.

The Digital Governance Board is now established to control 
and manage data and information across the council

Internal audit has a programme of cyber audits for 
2021/22 - the first 2 completed

NOTE: Not all council systems and/or data is hosted & 
supported within the technological environment managed 
by the ICT Service. This should be the focus of a separate 
corporate risk register.

Period comments: 
Programme of cyber improvement is progressing positively with achievement of our 
PSN accreditation evidencing that improvement. The current data back up solution 
was implemented earlier in 2022 and has recently been independently assessed as 
fit for purpose. Additional proactive monitoring of our estate has been 
implemented. Further work ongoing to achieve cyber essentials plus.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

15 15

Risk Owner: Mandy Quayle, Director 

of People and Digital Services

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

P
age 51



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 7.5: Insufficient workforce capacity in Children’s Services

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely impacting on 

pace and sustainability of improvement and contributing to discontinuity 

in social engagement with children and families

Current controls:
1. Risks identified as part of appraisal process

2. Communications strategy/framework

3. Supervision 1:1

4. Workforce/Organisational Development Strategy

5. Strategies for business critical areas

6. Performance management (including absence 

management)

7. Workforce planning Leadership/manager

8. Structured training programmes/Academy

9. Leadership development

Period comments: 

Turnover and vacancies are showing signs of improvement however the proportion of agency workers that we 

have continues to be a challenge. Our ASYE cohort have been assimilated in to our establishment and we continue 

to make use of a wide range of routes in to social work as part of our 'grow your own' strategy. We are 

progressing with the implementation of systemic as our model of practice.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

12 12

Risk Owner: Chris Spencer, Exec. 

Director of Children’s Services

Cabinet Member: Cllr Stephen Davies

P
age 52



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 7.7: Failure to develop sufficient placement capacity

Failure to develop sufficient placement capacity to meet the needs of children 

looked after

Risk Owner: Chris Spencer, Exec. 

Director of Children’s Services

Cabinet Member: Cllr Stephen Davies

Current controls:

Sufficiency Strategy

Foster Care

Period comments: 

The placement provider market is fragile and lacking capacity, particularly for the most vulnerable and complex 

children. Our revised Sufficiency Strategy, which will be considered by Cabinet in January, sets out a programme 

to increase our influence in the market and develop capacity in co-operation with established, high quality 

providers.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

12 12

P
age 53



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 10.6: Capacity and capability to deliver Fire Service improvement

Insufficient workforce capacity and capability adversely impacting the pace and sustainability of 

improvement that will potentially contribute to an increased risk to firefighter safety, failure to 

meet our statutory obligations and/ or capability to deliver emergency services to the community.

Risk Owner: Mark Preece, Chief Fire 

Officer

Cabinet Member: Cllr Dave Norman

Current controls:

Improvement plan

Improvement Board oversight

Additional resources for recruitment and 
retention

Period comments: 
Recruitment and selection processes have taken place to fill substantive posts. Operational Staff posts have largely been filled, 

however we continue to struggle to fill Support Staff posts with the skills required. Additional funding will provide the finance needed 

for additional resource and training, but capacity will only improve if we can fill posts. It is still recognised that there are ongoing 

work pressures on staff and we are providing awareness training, additional wellbeing advice and are trialling an improved workplace 

induction. 

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

12 12

P
age 54



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 11.1 Failure to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of information.

Failure to comply with data protection and to protect the confidentiality, integrity and 
availability of information.

Current controls:
Governance:

Strategy and Policy: 

Privacy notices:

Data Subject's Rights:

Training & Awareness:

Recruitment:

Contracts:

DPO & Specialist Support:

Resourcing:

Information Asset Owners (IAOs):

Security incidents:

Physical security:

Monitoring:

Technical security controls in place

Period comments: 
The roll out of new M365 software, tools and technology means that the risk of information security breaches remains higher than target. As 

the software is launched, it is being supported by policies, guidance and e-training being deployed to all users, and information breaches 

continue to be monitored. Despite the heightened risk environment, the number of actual breaches that are assessed as being of a 

significant nature (and hence reportable to the ICO) remain very low. CLT took part in a cyber resilience exercise on 17 November to reflect 

the fact that this remains a signficant risk affecting all local authorities.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

12 12

Risk Owner: Rob Ayliffe, Director of 

Policy, Performance & Governance

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

P
age 55



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 7.10: Implementation of the ‘Care Cap’ cost of care exercise 

Implementation of the ‘Care Cap’ cost of care exercise (section 18.3 of the 

Care Act) leads to significant resource pressures and overspend

Risk Owner: Sarah Scott, Exec. Director of 

Adult Social Care

Cabinet Member: Cllr Carole Allaway-Martin

Current controls: 

Adults Transformation 
Programme is realigning 
resources to focus on 
achievement of the necessary 
changes, including approval of 
increased resources.

Period comments: 

National implementation of the ‘Care Cap’ has been moved from October 2023 to 2025 following the Chancellors autumn statement. The extra 
time provided by this decision mitigates some of the resource pressures and overspend by allowing a longer timeframe for planning and 
delivery. 

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

15

\

10

P
age 56



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 7.1: Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire 

Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire from abuse neglect in 

situations that potentially could have been predicted and prevented.

Risk Owner: Sarah Scott, Exec. Director 

of Adult Social Care

Cabinet Member: Cllr Kathy Williams

Current controls:
Board and governance controls:
1. GSAB in place since 2009 with an Independent Chair and 

membership of 29 including statutory partners, District Councils and 
voluntary sector organisations

2. GSAB reports to Health &Wellbeing Board and the Adult Social Care 
and Communities Scrutiny Committee

3. GSAB risk register and strategic plan in place and updated quarterly
Policy and partnership controls:
1. Countywide Multi Agency Adult Safeguarding Policy and Procedures 

in place and implemented across all partner agencies
2. GSAB sub groups chaired by representatives from partner agencies. 

Learning from audit and SAR subgroups disseminated 
3. Constitution, Memorandum of Understanding & Register of GSAB 

Member Interests in place
4. GSAB partners undertake an annual self-assessment which is peer-

reviewed
Quality Assurance, Performance and Inspection controls:
1. Statutory Safeguarding Adults and deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 

returns completed and returned annually to NHS Digital 
2. CQC, Commissioning and Safeguarding Adults GSAB group is well-

established and updates quarterly. 
3. The multi agency Audit sub group of GSAB meets quarterly to audit 

Section 42 enquiry work. 
4. Escalation policy in place to challenge decisions
Communications controls:
1. GSAB website in place and regularly updated
2. Learning from Safeguarding Adult reviews disseminated to all multi 

agency partners
3. Multi agency safeguarding adults training embedded and available 

to all multi agency partners. 
4. Ongoing development of relevant information materials for the 

public

Period comments: 
The safeguarding adults team continues to manage the numbers of referrals by periodically carrying out focused work to reduce the 

numbers of cases awaiting a decision; this is maintaining the numbers of cases on the referral centre at an acceptable level.

Two additional specialist practitioners have been recruited, and once in post they will contribute to ensuring decisions about 

safeguarding concerns are made in a timely manner. 

Plans are in place to launch the safeguarding single point of access team, with a proposed start date of April 2023. From this date the 

safeguarding team will screen all safeguarding concerns raised in Gloucestershire.

The Safeguarding Adults Board is commencing a Safeguarding Adults Review into the death of MM. Any learning from the review will 

be disseminated across the multi agency partnership. 

The annual safeguarding adults roadshow will be held in April. This year, the focus is on members of the public, with the aim of raising 

awareness about adult safeguarding and events will be held at various locations across the county.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

10 10

P
age 57



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 12.1: Failure of GCC/Gloucestershire to mitigate and adapt to a more volatile 
climate

Failure to deliver the county council’s climate change strategy, impacting our ability to deliver our 

organisation, partnership, and community activities, and to secure Government funding, and 

therefore limiting our ability to mitigate the impacts of a changing climate on Gloucestershire’s 

natural environment, communities, business and visitors.

Current controls:

Strategy agreed, in place and resourced

Increased resources for sustainability 
team

Countywide Climate Change Coordinator 
post and cooperation in place across 
districts / Leadership Gloucestershire

Period Comments:
Year to date carbon emissions for quarter 2 (reported a quarter in arrears) remains significantly ahead of target. The main difference continues to be a continued significant decrease in: Gas use for space heating, which is likely to 

be a combination of the removal of ventilation requirements under the Covid Pandemic and the hot dry summer; and Fleet fuel use, likely a result of ongoing hybrid working and the introduction of some electric vehicles.

This has more than offset the continued significant increased fuel use by GFRS, due to significantly increased vehicle use as services return to more normal operation following the Covid pandemic and likely increased callouts 

during the summer heatwave.

Defra funding secured for 2 posts to support tree planting, 2-year fixed. Secured Forestry Commission funding, bringing planting to over 80,000 trees this season. Supply contracts awarded, planting underway.

Biodiversity Officer appointed, 2-year fixed, starts January. Youth climate survey almost 3,000 responses.

Environment Scrutiny Committee, Nov - climate change strategy progress and draft 5-year action plan, inc presentation by Glos Youth Climate Group on their assessment. Views reflected in the draft Cabinet report January.

Agreed urgent programme with Property to meet Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) requirements for 30 properties being handed back, including carbon reduction programme. Electricity & gas supply contracts awarded, and 

electricity selling contract for Javelin Park.

Environment & Waste restructure started, to increase capacity to manage and deliver the climate change strategy and programme. CLG Partners including allocations in draft budgets to enable Climate Leadership Gloucestershire 

to continue post June 2023. Funding not yet guaranteed but allocations being made on the basis of increasing the Coordination resource and establishing a fixed fund for common strategic pieces of work.

Good progress has been made on thematic activity with 6 month progress report being well received at Leadership Gloucestershire.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

10 10

Risk Owner: Colin Chick, Exec. Director of 

Economy, Environment and Infrastructure

Cabinet Member: Cllr David Gray

P
age 58



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 10.7 - COVID19 - Inability to protect and support GCC employees and 
partner/contractor key workers (new risk transferred from Gold)

Risk of an inability to protect and support GCC employees and partner/contractor 

key workers through the promotion of wellbeing and guidance on infection 

prevention and control, personal safety, resilience and mental wellbeing.

Current controls:
1) Working from home messaging in place.

2) All front line staff have the correct PPE when 

required.

3) Wellbeing and infection prevention and control 

messaging incorporated into comms plan.

4) EAP and Occupational Health available to provide 

support.

5) Process established for key worker testing. 

6) work nearing completion in making all buildings 

C19 secure

7) Ongoing mental health and wellbeing support 

package for staff developed

8) Team level risk assessments and identification of 

potentially vulnerable staff for further individual risk 

assessment

9) Liaison with BAME staff groups

10) Regular communications with managers on 

importance of risk assessments

11) GCC CLT to consider longer-term staff wellbeing, 

including workload / pressure and personal safety on 

28th August - roll out of resilience training and 1:1 

support now commenced

List continues – see inphase for complete details

Period comments:

This risk is to be closed down and merged with 8.2 on staff welfare.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

Risk Owner: Mandy Quayle, Director 

of People and Digital Services

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

9 10

P
age 59



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 8.2 - Staff fatigue and burnout

Failure to ensure identification and understanding of staff fatigue and ‘burnout’ issues, 

resulting in impact on staff morale and well-being, service delivery, and staff retention.

Current controls:

1-2-1/PDR processes

Welfare and support packages through 

HR, Occ Health etc.

Training for managers

Regular comms via Talksmart and 

Managers Bulletin

Period comments:
There is a significant programme of mitigations to support the wellbeing and health of individuals including advice, guidance, manager training 

and availability of occupational health services and counselling. The risks of physical illness are higher over winter, also many council staff and 

services are struggling with capacity. Colleagues are highly committed, however an extended period of pressure caused by a range of factors 

including the pandemic, required improvement and system pressures means that there is increased risk of impact on the health of our 

staff. Therefore it continues to be important that we keep up the higher level of focus on wellbeing support that was begun during the pandemic.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

9

Risk Owner: Mandy Quayle, Director 

of People and Digital Services

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

12

\

P
age 60



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 1.2 Capacity for Procurement activity 

Resources are insufficient to deliver the volume of procurement and re-procurement 

activity, leading to failure to secure the intended outcomes and/or best value through 

contracts

Current controls:

Pro-contract (procurement system)
Pro-actis (contract management system)
Pipeline used for oversight, forward 
planning and prioritisation of work (used 
in support services meetings etc.)

Period comments:

A procurement toolkit is being developed that will provide commissioners across the council with simplified guidance and a 

suite of templates to support them in procuring lower-value contracts for goods and services. This will help to ensure that 

professional procurement resources are targetted on this highest risk/highest value contracts. The Commissioning 

Intentions included within the MTFS set out the priorities for 23/24 and will be used to prioritise resources 

accordingly. Reports are also being developed which will help Directorates to plan ahead more effectively.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

9

Risk Owner: Rob Ayliffe, Director of 

Policy, Performance & Governance

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

9

P
age 61



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 7.4: Failure to Close the gap in Educational Outcomes

The ability to meet statutory timelines for EHCP assessments, plan issue and annual amendments and the 

associated budgetary commitments, affecting the educational outcomes of vulnerable children, is at risk: 

financially, legally and reputationally through ever-increasing EHCP requests, workforce capacity to process 

these requests and the implications for the outcomes of future local area SEND inspections.

Current controls:

“Reshaping Education" Project focusing 
upon vulnerable children

Development of wide-ranging High Needs 
Programme

Implementation of Inclusion and Joint 
Additional Needs Strategies

Establishment of Schools Partnership Board

Period comments:
EHCP cumulative timeliness has improved April 22 to December 22 and there has been a reduction in the number of plans outside of statutory timeframes - with no plans now 

going over 52 weeks and no increase to plans running over 30 weeks. Service development plans, linked to the MTFS bid, identifies how further improvements can be made 

through ceasing trading of the Educational Psychology Service, the roll out of the non-statutory funding model, the new Banded Funding model going live and the new EHCP 

pathway and digital portal going live. Focused work on retaining the current casework workforce is aimed at maintaining service capacity to maintain and further raise these 

improvements in timeliness. External assessment of the service's improvement journey will be assayed through a Local Government Peer Review scheduled for the end of March 

in anticipation of a Local Area SEND Inspection under the newly signed off inspection framework in 2023.

Demand for EHCP assessment remains high. Pressures on the service and workforce remain high. The trend of increased Ombudsman cases and Tribunals is sustained.

The longer term work targeting increasing inclusive practices in schools is ongoing, but is a challenging culture change. This will also be dependent on work to change parental 

attitudes and confidence in mainstream settings to meet need.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

9

Risk Owner: Kirsten Harrison, Director 

of Education

Cabinet Member: Cllr Philip Robinson

16

P
age 62



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 7.8: Risk of legal action being taken due to failures in completing Deprivation of 
Liberty assessments.

Risk of legal action being taken against the Local Authority due to failure to complete a Deprivation 

of Liberty assessment within the stated time lines. Since a significant and sudden change in the 

law due to a Supreme Court Judgement in March 2014 there is an excessively high demand for 

best interest assessments to be carried out for Deprivation of Liberty (DoLS) authorisations.

Risk Owner: Sarah Scott, Exec. Director 

of Adult Social Care

Cabinet Member: Cllr Kathy Williams

Current controls:

ADASS triage process

Additional resources

Period comments: 
No change to mitigations this quarter, which are: the DoLS team continues to triage applications in line with the ADASS guidance to ensure the 

most urgent cases are assessed and those people have the appropriate authorisations in place. The project group for the DoLS replacement 

(Liberty Protection Safeguards) is meeting again and plans are being made for the changes to the legislation which will mean that the 

authorisation process will move from the central DoLS team to frontline ASC teams. Implementation of this change is not anticipated until 2024 

and there has been no further update from the DHSC on plans to publish the final Code of Practice

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

9 9

P
age 63



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 7.2 Ineffective Social Care Practice

Ineffective social care practice, management oversight and review processes resulting in 

drift and delay for children and young people in situations of harm.

Current controls:

Improvement plan

Improvement Board

Practice audits

Academy training processes

Period comments: 

The Continuous Improvement Plan continues to provide the focal point for improvement activity. Operating 

conditions continue to be challenging - reflected in our performance which is a mix of stability, improvement and 

regression. Turnover and vacancies are marginally improved however agency % remain above target.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

Risk Owner: Chris Spencer, Exec. 
Director of Children’s Services

Cabinet Member: Cllr Stephen Davies

9 9

P
age 64



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 1.1 – Failure in Corporate Governance

Failure in corporate governance which leads to service, financial, legal or reputational 
damage or failure.

Current controls:
1:1 Interviews with Members 
Scrutiny Function
Risk Management Framework
Leadership training
Robust reporting processes/framework
Member / officer protocols
Performance Management
Annual Governance Statement
Job Descriptions
Statutory powers
Section 151 officer/Monitoring Officer/Head of Paid 
Service
Cabinet and Committee reports
Medium Term Financial Strategy
Anti-fraud & corruption policy

Period comments: 

Work is commencing on next year's Annual Governance Statement. Statutory Officers continue to monitor 

complaints, issued referred to and by regulators, audit reports etc. There are no new issues arising this quarter 

which affect the status of this risk

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

8 8

Risk Owner: Rob Ayliffe, Director of 

Policy, Performance & Governance

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

P
age 65



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 1.4 Contract management capacity

Inadequate contract management or quality assurance arrangements result in 

GCC being unable to identify, control or manage risks (including health and 

safety risks) associated with a provider’s actions or failure to act.

Current controls:

Contract managers appointed for each 

contract

Contract management guidance on Staffnet

Implementation and roll-out of ProActis

Failure to fulfil statutory responsibilities or 

requirements as a result of supplier failure

Council is held liable (by regulators, courts or 

public) for failures of contractors

Period comments:

No new issues arising this quarter. The Council's contract management policy has been subject to a light-touch 

review/refresh. A more thorough review will be undertaken following the introduction of the Council's new ERP 

system, though this will not be during the current year.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

8

Risk Owner: Rob Ayliffe, Director of 

Policy, Performance & Governance

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

8

P
age 66



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 6.1 – Relationships with key partners

Failure to maintain effective relationships with key partners and organisations 

and shared funding arrangements, impacting on our ability to meet statutory 

and local requirements.

Current controls:
Constitution
Council Strategy 2011-2015
Sustainable Community Strategy 2007-2017
Code of Corporate Governance (Partnership Governance)

Annual Governance Statement (AGS) - Records the 
governance framework and assurances received for 
significant partnerships
Partnership Boards/Joint Business Plans

Corporate Performance & Risk Management Monitoring 
and Reporting Frameworks

Corporate records maintained which details the Council's 
significant partners, formal procedures in place for 
assessing the suitability of partners, the legality of the 
proposed partnership arrangements and standards of 
financial regularity and conduct required

Information Sharing Protocols - Secure partnership 
Working (GCSX)

Contingency Plans in place to ensure continuity of service 
in the event of partner/supply chain failure

Period comments: 
We have seen highly effective and very positive working relationships with partners and organisations to meet statutory and local requirements both in terms of living with Covid 

and delivering the Homes for Ukraine scheme. The LRF, other emergency management functions and business continuity arrangements remain as good foundations across the 

partner scene.

Leadership Gloucestershire meetings, Leader's Stocktake meetings and regular MP briefings with Health, continue at appropriate frequency. 

Statutory meetings are face-to-face for both Members and Officers and hybrid meeting arrangements are working well for those meetings which have no statutory decision-

making responsibility. We will continue with hybrid working arrangements in the future in keeping with the needs of the business. 

We continue with extensive external consultancy work looking at our NHS relationship, focussed on emergency and urgent care, and as the country finds itself continuing to deal 

with a "cost of living" crisis we will work with partners and local organisations to deliver whatever help we can to Gloucestershire residents.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

8 8

Risk Owner: Pete Bungard, Chief 

Executive

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

P
age 67



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 7.9 – Insufficient planning and oversight of international resettlement and asylum 
immigration

Insufficient planning and oversight of international resettlement and asylum 

immigration including current Ukraine, Afghan, Syrian and Hong Kong programmes, 

alongside other asylum seeker routes including hotel accommodation, could lead to 

unpredictable and unsupportable demand on county council services.

Current controls:
• Utilising current contractual levers to commission 
support through the voluntary sector to support 
refugees

• Working via the Gloucestershire Housing 
Partnership to monitor and track immigration 
numbers, gather needs assessment and collectively 
implement refugee schemes

• Employing additional staff to manage the day-to-
day Homes for Ukraine scheme on a temporary 
basis to settle new refugees

• Data monitoring and analysis daily to track and 
assess suitability of accommodation, needs and 
health of individuals.

• Reviewing all funding streams at a strategic 
countywide level to better plan for future 
international resettlement schemes and 
unpredictable demand from asylum seekers

Period comments: 
Staff in place, district and county working relationships, communication and partnerships are strong. Success so far across all schemes has been good. Better 

planning for overall international migration issues and partnership working across the system is being addressed through the launch of the Gloucestershire 

Strategic Migration Partnership which meets for the first time on 17th January. The partnership will have oversight and ensure sufficient awareness by 

government departments of any issues or emerging demands. Work initiated across districts and county to consider options presented by the new £500m Local 

Authority Housing Fund announced by DLUHC to support new housing for Ukrainian and Afghan refugees. Funding for Ukraine scheme is significant and has 

been extended for a further year, and reserves for other schemes are available. Current work and forward planning underway to secure accommodation and 

support transition for Ukrainians, although this remains likely the biggest residual risk.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

8 8

Risk Owner: Siobhan Farmer, Director of 

Public Health

Cabinet Member: Cllr Mark Hawthorne

P
age 68



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 1.5 - Compliance with Public Sector Equalities Duty

Failure to be able to demonstrate due regard to the Equalities Act 2010, 

within council decision making.

Current controls:

Equality Impact Assessment process

ED&I officers recruited into HR team.

Service User Diversity Report 
prepared and disseminated for 
learning each year.

Period comments:

A working group, including representatives of the Council's employee networks, has undertaken a review 

and updated Equality Impact Assessment guidance, and training is being secured from the Consultation 

Institution to be rolled out to those who undertake these assessments. This work will be encompassed 

into the action plan arising from the recent self-assessment against the Local Government Equalities 

Framework.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

Risk Owner: Rob Ayliffe, Director of 

Policy, Performance & Governance

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

6 6

P
age 69



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 1.3 Failure to ensure the effective management of Health and Safety (new risk)

Failure to ensure the effective management of Health and Safety, resulting in 

death or serious injury to employees/ public and legal action against the 

Council

Current controls:
Reviewed Corporate Health and Safety Policy. 
SHE system procured for accident reporting, risk 
assessments, audits and inspections. 
Training for managers responsible for conducting 
regular risk assessments. 
Managers and staff induction. 
Member and Director SHE Champions. 
Access to competent health and safety advice 
and guidance from the SHE service.
An Employee Engagement and Consultation 
Group is being set up

Period comments:

No new issues arising this quarter.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

6

Risk Owner: Rob Ayliffe, Director of 

Policy, Performance & Governance

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

6

P
age 70



Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Consequence

1 2 3 4 5

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

5

4

3

2

1

Th
is

 p
er

io
d

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
e

ri
o

d

SR 2.4a - Reductions and changes to Funding (current year)

Reductions and changes to funding in current financial year and any additional 

unplanned overspend from previous financial year, with the potential to impact Core 

Services.

Risk Owner: Paul Blacker, Director of 

Finance

Cabinet Member: Cllr Lynden Stowe

Current controls:

MTFS process

Reserves

Period comments: 

The final finance settlement announced was in line with expectations allowing the Council to set a balanced 

budget for 2022/23, and the outturn position for 2021/22 was an underspend, so the level of General fund 

balances has increased by £1.053m to £23.052 million at 31/3/22.

Key:

Target 
score

Risk 
score

5 5

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

ashD

MEETING: Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

MEETING DATE: 28th February 2023

REPORT TITLE: Performance and Risk Monitoring Report Quarter 3 2022/23

Page 73



2

Council Strategy Progress Update Quarter 3 2022/23

Overall status Council 
Strategy Priority Tackling Climate Change 

  At risk - flagged for attention

Key Objectives:

 Deliver a Climate Change Strategy and Action 
Plan that reduces council emissions to net zero 
by 2030 and helps to reduce Gloucestershire’s 
emissions to net zero by 2045. 

 Support communities and businesses to do 
their bit, investing in 1000 electric vehicle 
charge points and to increase Gloucestershire’s 
woodlands and biodiversity. 

 Lead by example, putting climate change at the 
heart of our decisions and working in 
partnership across Gloucestershire’s public 
sector to make the greatest impact. 

Comments 
about overall 
status:

 We continue to maintain lower levels of carbon 
emissions following the pandemic and are performing 
well against target. Levels of emissions show a 12.3% 
reduction from the same period last year 

 Long term deliverability of the 1m trees target by 2030 
will need to address the challenges of availability and 
cost of land supply. This programme is currently 
funded through a combination of Government grant 
and GCC funds. Increased capital and revenue 
funding for maintenance may be required in the latter 
years if grants are not available in future.  

 Slower progress on some projects due to limited staff 
resource has not resulted in significant drop in overall 
performance. This is being addressed through a 
restructure (in progress) to give additional capacity, 
plus external funding securing two tree planting 
support roles for 2 years. 

 Interim Countywide Climate Change Coordinator has 
left to take up a new role, with substantive postholder 
returning from maternity leave on 3 days per week. 
Funding beyond June 2023 to support Climate 
Leadership Gloucestershire is being finalised, with all 
Climate Leadership Gloucestershire partners agreeing 
in principle to future funding.

KEY
  On target - objectives remain achievable
  At risk - flagged for attention
  Compromised - significant issues - action needed
  Completed

P
age 74



3

Progress made 
this quarter:

 Climate Leadership Gloucestershire Partners 
including allocations in draft budgets to enable 
Climate Leadership Gloucestershire to continue 
post June 2023.  Funding not yet Guaranteed 
but allocations being made on the basis of 
increasing the Coordination resource and 
establishing a fixed fund for common strategic 
pieces of work.

 The County council and all six District councils 
signed an agreement to work together on a 
county-wide project to tackle transport 
decarbonisation and achieve net zero 
emissions by 2045.  

 Good progress has been made on thematic 
activity with 6-month progress report being well 
received at Leadership Gloucestershire.

 Workshop held with Thematic Lead officers to 
review progress for the year to date ahead of 
CLG’s AGM in January. Improvements 
identified which will inform the 2023/24 work 
programme.

Actions next 
quarter:

 Climate Leadership Gloucestershire’s First AGM will 
take place in January. Countywide Engagement and 
Business Support strands of the Behaviour Change 
and Economy themes will be the substantive agenda 
items.

 Finalisation of Climate Leadership Gloucestershire’s 
budget beyond June 2023 and recruitment of 
additional coordinator capacity if sufficient budget is 
agreed.

 New library book stock purchased to complement 
current collections – aimed at providing information on 
climate change and sustainability. 

 Library activities planned to promote re-use, recycling 
and sustainability.

P
age 75



4

Overall status Council 
Strategy Priority Improving Our Roads

  At risk - flagged for attention

Key Objectives:

 Invest a further £100M in road resurfacing over 
4 years. 

 Reduce the number of roads which require 
significant repair or replacement. 

 Improve network resilience to adverse 
conditions.

 Improve customer satisfaction with road 
condition.

 Do more proactive planned works and fewer 
reactive pothole repairs.

 Refresh our road safety policy and review 
speed limits where there is an evidenced safety 
concern

Comments 
about overall 
status:

 Construction industry inflation (estimated range 10-
15%) represents significant risk to the price of 
materials and delivery and will impact on the volume 
of work able to be completed for the available 
budget.

 Repair of identified potholes being delivered on time 
and above target.

 105 winter maintenance runs (gritting) carried out. 
This is higher than the same period over the last 3 
years and, depending on weather conditions during 
the remainder of the winter, may impact road 
conditions and the number of defect repairs 
subsequently needed. 

Progress made 
this quarter:

 2022/23 resurfacing programme on track.
 Highways board initiated.
 Road safety policy adopted.
 Proactive comms focus adopted to highlight 

positive actions

Actions next 
quarter:

 Continue with delivery of resurfacing programme.
 Continue completing identified pothole repairs on 

time and within target.
 Highways board to develop and agree objectives, 

outcomes and resources.
 Continue with promoting positive action on highway 

network

P
age 76



5

Overall status Council 
Strategy 
Priority

Sustainable Growth Growth   At risk - flagged for attention
Skills    On target - objectives remain achievable

Key 
Objectives:

 Encourage the development of a single plan for 
Gloucestershire’s future growth, through 
partnership working between all local authorities 
and other stakeholders. 

 Secure the funding for the infrastructure needed 
to deliver this growth. 

 Make sure that the skills, training and education 
are directly linked to the future jobs being 
created. 

 Support delivery of the Gloucestershire Climate 
Change Strategy by ensuring growth is 
sustainable and supports development of green 
skills and jobs

Comments 
about 
overall 
status:

Skills
 The appointment of the Head of Employment and Skills 

and development of the joint Employment and Skills Hub 
and Adult Education facility has resulted in continuing 
improvements in service provision and client experience.

Growth
 The closer working relationship with the Local Enterprise 

Partnership will result in a more coordinated approach to 
strategic growth.  The launch of the development of a joint 
strategic economic plan to be completed in 2023 has 
begun this process. 

 The District Councils lead, as the relevant local planning 
authorities, on determining the scale and nature of future 
development. The County Council is, however, keen to 
take a lead on strategic planning matters in 
Gloucestershire. This would be in close collaboration with 
the six District Councils. It may be that the possible 
emerging action plan associated with the recently agreed 
Gloucestershire Statement of Common Ground enables 
this to occur. 

 Also at risk, is the ability of the County Council to secure 
all of the required future strategic infrastructure as part of 
the development process. This is especially the case since 
five of the six District Councils have implemented 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). To date only one of 
those District Councils (Stroud DC) has paid monies from 
their generated CIL income to the County Council. 
Discussions continue with the other four District Councils 
with regard to reviewing their CIL arrangements and 
ensure that the relevant governance is in place to 
distribute CIL funds. 

P
age 77



6

 GCC continues to support the delivery of the 
Gloucestershire Climate Change Strategy through various 
channels. These include: commenting on planning 
applications, making representations on emerging Local 
Plans, becoming a formal funding partner to the emerging 
Joint Strategic Plan, etc. 

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

Skills
 SGS College ‘skills for low carbon’ project 

underway
 Consortium of Gloucestershire colleges delivering 

Agri-Tech, Digital, Electric and Hybrid Vehicles, 
Green Construction, Green Energy project. 
Provision and target audiences clarified.

 Education and Skills (E & S) Hub working with 
Green Kerb, a company that uses waste and by-
products to make kerbs and kerb drainage 

 GCC Adult Education continuing to deliver 
courses in sustainable development, sustainable 
communities, sustainable energy management, 
waste management, sustainable transport. 

 E & S Hub employer engagement team 
supporting ‘green’/sustainable jobs and skills

 E & S Hub and Adult education services both 
working with the Forum development and Kier

 GCC input to November ‘green skills roundtable’ 
event

Growth
 Development of the strategic Economic Plan has 

been launched at Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Committee

 All 6 library Innovation Labs open with increasing 
membership. 

 Negotiations and discussions continue with all 
District Councils and other stakeholders. 

Actions next 
quarter:

Growth
 Stakeholder engagement will begin on the Strategic 

Economic Plan
 Formal representations will be made on the relevant Local 

Plans. 
 Ongoing discussions / negotiations with the District 

Councils. 
 Report on future strategic development going to 

Environment Scrutiny Committee in November 2022. 

Skills
 Review combined SW LEPs and Energy Hub research into 

‘green’/sustainable jobs and skills needed and inform job 
brokers in E & S Hub and Adult Education managers and 
lead co-ordinators

 Arrange for Gloucestershire colleges to report back to the 
Gloucestershire Skills Advisory Panel (GSAP) on progress 
with their two projects (SDF and SEDF-funded)

 Brief incoming Employer Engagement Broker about need 
for focus on ‘green’/sustainable jobs and skills

 Draft E & S Hub employer engagement strategy and 
include ‘green’/sustainable jobs and skills strand

 Work with successful Electric Vehicle charge point 
installer/s and maintenance provider/s in Gloucestershire 
to provide employment and work experience opportunities

 Work with local sustainable construction companies to 
provide employment and work experience opportunities 
(this will tie in with the Forum, AccXel, GC’s new 
construction provision in Cheltenham and with other 
construction work in county)

P
age 78



7

 Clarify the Gloucestershire colleges’ (Gloucestershire 
College, South Glos and Stroud College, Hartpury 
College, Cirencester College) provision and target 
audiences regarding their successful DfE Strategic 
Development Fund bid

Overall status Council 
Strategy 
Priority

Securing Investment for Gloucestershire
  On target - objectives remain achievable

Key 
Objectives:

 Support the delivery of major transport 
investment.

 Progress the delivery of the Gloucestershire 
Sustainable Travel Corridor. 

 Bid for funding to improve M5 Junction 9 and re-
route the A46 to help deliver the Garden Town 
proposals.

 Work with the Western Gateway Partnership to 
secure improved rail connections that support 
business and leisure needs.

 Secure nationally important investment 
programmes to create improved job 
opportunities, including 

 Cyber Central as part of the Golden Valley 
development, and bidding to host the UK’s first 
Nuclear 

 Alternative Energy development at Berkeley 

Comments 
about 
overall 
status:

 GCC continues to implement the recently adopted Local 
Transport Plan (LTP), including the 26-mile cycle route 
through the spine of the county. The LTP will be reviewed 
later in 2023.

 GCC was able to secure in excess of £500k revenue 
funding from Active Travel England to continue to promote 
active travel, continue to develop the Gloucestershire 
Cycle Spine and prepare for future capital funding 
opportunities. 

 Work is progressing on a business case for a Mass Rapid 
Transit scheme for Gloucestershire. 

 The M5 J9 project continues to progress, with the 
submission of the SOC in September 2022.

 Engagement continues with the Western Gateway 
Partnership, including discussions and negotiations about 
improvements to the county’s rail infrastructure. 

 Key development proposals such as Cyber Central and 
the wider Golden Valley proposals are all progressing. 
Gloucestershire was unfortunately unsuccessful in its 
Fusion bid.

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

 Construction continues positively on the 
Llanthony Road improvement scheme funded 
through £9.122 million Levelling Up funding and 
£2million GFirst LEP contributions.  The scheme 
remains on programme with completion 
anticipated in late Summer 2023.

Actions next 
quarter:

 Continue to secure funding for and deliver the 26-mile 
cycle spine.

 Continue to work with all relevant stakeholders to secure 
future, sustainable, green growth.

P
age 79



8

 Delivery of the B4063 ‘cycle spine’ route 
continues with the latest section; Pheasant Lane 
to Arle Court; substantially complete pending final 
snagging.

 The next 2 sections between M5 and 
Brickhampton Golf Course and the Brickhampton 
Golf Course to Elmbridge Court sections both 
commenced on time within this quarter.

P
age 80



9

Overall status Council Strategy 
Priority Levelling Up Our Communities

  On target - objectives remain achievable

Key Objectives:

 Work with local partners to attract national Levelling 
Up Funding to regenerate our high streets, market 
towns and neighbourhoods.

 Listen to local communities about what they want to 
achieve and how.

 Work alongside neighbourhoods to develop plans 
that build on their strengths and attract local and 
national investment to help deliver them.

 Support local residents to develop new skills, 
careers and job opportunities.

 Link local people to jobs by providing sustainable 
transport solutions and reducing barriers to 
employment.

 Shape local community services to make sure they 
can adapt to the needs and aspirations of local 
residents.

 Work with local schools and academies to improve 
the quality of local education provision

Comments 
about 
overall 
status:

 On target - objectives remain achievable for
community engagement/partnership elements 
(objectives 2, 3 and 6) 

 The Levelling Up Together Team held virtual 
drop-ins to explain the application process, 
criteria, and timelines and to answer 
questions.  95 people attended three virtual 
drop-ins held in November 2023.

  On target - objectives remain achievable for
Employment & Skills elements (objectives 1, 4, 5)

 See the detail set out in the progress made 
and next quarter. Over 600 residents 
supported through the Employment & Skills 
Hub. 3,084 learners and 6,200 enrolments 
achieved by Adult Education in academic 
year 2021-22.

  On target - objectives remain achievable for
Education elements (objective 7)

Progress made 
this quarter
Obj 2,3 & 6

Obj 2: Listen to local communities about what they want 
to achieve and how.
Obj 3: Work alongside neighbourhoods to develop 
plans that build on their strengths and attract local and 
national investment to help deliver them.
Obj 6: Shape local community services to make sure 
they can adapt to the needs and aspirations of local 
residents.

 Levelling Up Together Grants Programme 
- launched on 18th October and closed 27th 

November -  a targeted grants programme 
focused on the 10 most deprived LSOAs.  

- Extensive engagement carried out with the 
VCS, education and employment and skills 

Actions next 
quarter
Obj 2,3 & 6

 Q4 work will be focused on the award of the 
Levelling Up Grants. Actions will include: 

- scoring and assessment of applications and 
completion of Officer panels with Public Health, 
Education and Employment and Skills

- Meeting with Division Councillors to discuss 
bids in their areas

- Collation of information from officer panels, 
Councillors and District Council partners to 
present to decision panel to inform allocation of 
grant awards

- Informing applicants of the recommendations 
of the Decision Panel in January/February; and 
completing the Decision Paper. Working 
toward announcing the grants publicly before 
the end of March. 

P
age 81



10

sectors to invite bids to the fund. In total 128 
grant applications were submitted requesting 
£7.4 million.

 Listening to local communities & shaping services:
- Workshop held in November between VCSE 

and GCC Commissioners to explore improving 
working relationships and early involvement in 
service planning and developments.

- Agreement by Children’s Coalition to create a 
VCSE and Children, Families and Young 
People reference group chaired by an 
independent Chair with the aim of building 
better relationships and a channel to listen to 
communities through community led VCS 
agencies.

- Inclusion of an allocated budget for community 
participation in service provision and community 
representation on the tender evaluation panel of 
the Children’s Healthier Lifestyles (Weight 
Management) Service (procurement underway).

 Conversation convened between the VCS and the 
Healthier Communities Together (HCT) Stewardship 
group in November to find out the needs of the 
sector for the following year.

- In collaboration with successful applicants, 
developing impact reporting and learning 
feedback to inform future ways of working. 

 Healthy Lifestyles Service consultation planned for 
Q4 to elicit the views of local communities 
regarding future service proposals.

 Healthier Communities Together stewardship group 
will launch Leadership Programme for VCS and 
public sector leaders and a Trustee training and 
recruitment programme.

P
age 82



11

Progress 
made this 
quarter
Obj 1,4 & 5

Obj 1: Work with local partners to attract national Levelling 
Up Funding to regenerate our high streets, market towns 
and neighbourhoods.
Obj 4: Support local residents to develop new skills, 
careers and job opportunities.
Obj 5: Link local people to jobs by providing sustainable 
transport solutions and reducing barriers to employment

 Employment & Skills Hub – now over 600 referrals 
since opening and supporting some of the most 
disadvantaged residents

 Employment & Skills Hub Outreach (ESHO) Project 
underway to provide local support across the County 
for economically inactive residents via VCSE 
organisations and investment of £400,000 of GCC 
funding. Provision includes specialist support for BAME 
residents, young people

 Work ongoing with all six Districts to seek and secure 
UK Shared Prosperity Fund resources to support 
economically inactive residents from 2024-25 via the 
ESHO project. 3 out of six Districts have confirmed 
inclusion of project in implementation plans signed off 
by Government.

 Employment & Skills Hub job broker team expanded to 
include a broker for residents aged 50+ and ex-
services residents

 Careers Hub now working with over 50 secondary 
schools, academies, colleges and alternative provision 
settings to provide strategic careers programme 
support for young people and interim manager in place

 GCC part of Local Advisory Board for new National 
Careers Service provider (SeeTec Pluss) to ensure 
effective careers support for adults in Gloucestershire.

 All six Library Innovation Labs now open and delivering 
to local residents and school groups

Actions next 
quarter
Obj 1,4 & 5

 Full roll-out of Employment & Skills Hub Outreach 
Project through VCSE partner organisations

 Confirm whether remaining three Districts plan to 
allocate UKSPF funding for the continuation of the 
Employment & Skills Hub Outreach Project

 Management reshape of Employment & Skills Hub 
to ensure ongoing fitness for purpose and better 
balancing of workload

 Explore transition arrangements for Careers Hub 
team from GFirst LEP to GCC’s Employment & 
Skills Hub

 Clarification and promotion of new National 
Careers Service provision and integration via Adult 
Education, Employment & Skills Hub, etc. to ensure 
two-way referrals.

 Finalise monthly local Labour Market Information 
(LMI) reports and implement with customers and 
partner organisations, including 
schools/academies.

 Llanthony Road construction will continue with the 
approval of minor changes to the planning the 
application being progressed.

 An imminent decision is expected from DfT on the 
Stroud levelling up fund bid and the proposed 
connection improvements.

 Subject to DfT’s timescales, bids are expected from 
GCC for Active Travel Fund money for the Stroud 
to Gloucester and Cheltenham Town Centre 
sections for the cycle spine.

P
age 83



12

 Going the Extra Mile (GEM) project celebration event 
November 2022 with contributions from Mark 
Hawthorne and David Owen. Project recognised by 
National Lottery Community Fund as one of their most 
effective national Building Better Opportunities projects 
and monitoring and evaluation report produced and 
disseminated.

 ‘The Robin’, 2 pilot rural accessibility trials providing 
local minibus transport commenced in South Forest 
and North Cotswolds funded by £1.35m from the DfT’s 
Rural Mobility Fund.

Progress 
made this 
quarter
Obj 7

Obj 7: Work with local schools and academies to improve 
the quality of local education provision
 Gloucestershire Education Forum (GEF) chaired by an 

independent challenge partner, Roy Blatchford CBE 
has agreed a sequence of actions contributing to the 
co-production of the design of the local education 
system around academisation and strategic levelling 
up issues. The board is developing and refining its  
strategic role in  the whole county aspects of the 
Education Levelling up programme.

 GEF has representation from all system leaders and 
stakeholders in the Gloucestershire Local Education 
System, including the LA, Diocese of Gloucester and 
Clifton, the chairs of the headteachers associations 
and their local area cluster chairs for all school phases 
(primary, secondary and special), the Teaching 
Schools and the CEOs / senior leader representatives 
of the multi-academy trusts. Meeting venues are 
rotating around the county and include school visits in 
the programme to build relationships and the board’s 
full appreciation of the varied education landscape in 
the county.

Actions next 
quarter
Obj 7

 Forum membership visits have been completed. 
Targeted meetings with key educational groups are 
planned ahead of the next meeting.

 The Forum has pivoted its working around the 
development of a trust-led system in the county 
towards and school-led system, focused on 
common levelling up goals and building closer 
working between schools in different phases to join 
up levelling up projects across the sectors in 
localities.

 Education Policy Institute research project into 
education disadvantage in the county pre and post 
Covid pandemic expected by end of April.

 Forum steering group progressing school to school 
visits programme.

 Roll out of Reading project pilot in South Cotswolds 
school cluster – plans to extend the pilot to a ‘Year 
of Reading’ in other cluster areas.

P
age 84



13

Overall status Council 
Strategy 
Priority

Transforming Children’s Services
  At risk - flagged for attention

Key 
Objectives:

 Improve our early intervention/early help offer 
delivered through a multi-agency Family Hub 
model.

 Continuously improve services through effective 
intervention and development of local provision. 

 Build on our investments to deliver sufficient 
local home and care provision such as Trevone 
House. 

 Invest in social workers and other frontline staff 
by developing our comprehensive training and 
development offer, supported by the Children’s 
Services Academy

Comments 
about overall 
status:

 The Continuous Improvement Plan (CIP) remains the focal 
point for improvement activity going forward. It also 
provided the basis for the Annual Conversation with Ofsted 
which took in place in November. The formal letter from 
Ofsted is expected  in February and anticipated to broadly 
endorse our self-assessment and improvement approach. 
Most CIP actions remain on track for delivery, with twenty-
six showing progress, fifteen show no meaningful change 
and sixteen have regressed. This progress reflects the 
exceptionally challenging context in relation to demand, 
workforce, and the placement market for children in or 
needing our care.

 Performance and Quality Assurance presents a mixed 
picture of marginal improvement, stability and some 
regression. Case file auditing levels and the proportion of 
inadequate cases are broadly in line with target. 55% of 
performance measures evidence ‘Good’ or better 
performance. 38% of measures are within tolerance of 
target. 

 Child protection rates have fallen and are now much more 
in line with statistical neighbours, reducing the 
disproportionate pressure evident at the top of the social 
care system and underlining the importance of more 
effective interventions at early help and child in need 
levels. 

 50% of children’s case audits were rated ‘Good’ or better – 
meeting target for the first time in 2022/23, with 
improvement seen in the quality of assessment and 
management oversight. The proportion of audits rated 
Inadequate reduced to better than target. Taken together, 
this signals an important step towards a service 
characterised by consistently good practice. 

P
age 85



14

 Stabilising our workforce remains the biggest challenge in 
securing our improvement journey. The Quarter 3 data is 
showing some emerging signs of improvement with 
turnover of Children’s Social Care staff (20.9%) and 
vacancy (22.9%) both reducing although the agency rate 
remains high (35.5%).

 The growth in demand for care and packages for our most 
complex disabled children and children with Social 
Emotional Mental Health, including inability to secure 
sufficient registered care homes continues to present a 
significant risk and cost pressure. This, together with 
increasing numbers of UASC creates a significant 
pressure. 

 Recent commissioned activity in relation to short breaks 
for disabled children has not delivered as intended and a 
further tender is required, alongside work to develop the 
market, including the Voluntary and Community Sector if it 
is to deliver as needed.

 Plans for transformation (service remodel) were approved 
by Children’s Transformation Exec in July, with the 
recruitment of a new DCS in December and the process 
now underway to recruit a Director of Safeguarding and 
four senior safeguarding posts over the course of Q4.

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

 The extension in the commissioning timelines 
for Family Hubs and Youth Services will allow 
for a further series of conversations with the 
voluntary and community sector (VCS), which 
will feed into the revised specifications. This will 
enhance the VCS contribution to the 
development of a Family Hub model for the 
county. 

 Further cohorts of practitioners commenced 
their Systemic Training in May and September 
2022. Thirty newly qualified social workers are 
progressing through their Assessed and 
Supported Year in Employment (ASYE)

Actions next 
quarter:

 The Continuous Improvement Plan will continue to provide 
the focus for improvement activity – subject to ongoing 
review through Senior and Corporate Leadership Teams 
and the Continuous Improvement Board and Scrutiny etc. 
It will be refreshed for 2023-24.

 A revised QA and Learning Framework has now been 
completed for consideration by Senior Leadership and 
Continuous Improvement Board and will be supported by 
an implementation plan to ensure the wider range of 
Quality Assurance activity is fully embedded.  

 A draft Workforce Development Strategy will be completed 
for wider consultation and agreement.

P
age 86



15

 Performance and Quality Assurance data 
continues to reflect the very challenging 
operational landscape. We have stretched 
targets whenever appropriate and continue to 
explore underperformance through our 
performance surgeries. Overall performance 
reflects a service requiring further improvement 
to be good. However, those teams that have 
completed their Systemic Social Work training 
and those with a skilled and permanent Team 
Manager, are the teams where we see the 
greatest progress being made.

 Quarter 3 continued to be challenging in relation 
to all key workforce indicators - vacancies, 
agency and turnover. However, we are seeing 
some improvement in turnover and vacancy 
rates.

 Work will progress with our Special Educational Needs 
(SEN) Improvement programme and completion of an 
SEN Self Evaluation in preparation for inspection.

 Youth Justice Board/Ministry of Justice have revised the 
timetable for the revised performance framework for Youth 
Justice and published revised practice guidance.  Work will 
continue by the Youth Justice Management Board to 
ensure we are able to respond to the changes with 
effective from 1st April 2023. 

 Our Turnaround Programme will begin to mobilise in 
Quarter 4, providing additional capacity to support young 
people identified as at risk of offending. 

 A revised Sufficiency Strategy will be completed along with 
a delivery plan setting out a range of proposals to develop 
our accommodation provision over 2023- 2025.

 A draft Early Help Strategy will be completed for 
consideration by Gloucestershire Safeguarding Children 
Partnership.

 A revised Care Leaver Offer is drafted and ready for 
approval – it was shared with Mark Riddell, National Care 
Leaver Adviser during his visit in February.

P
age 87



16

Overall statusCouncil 
Strategy 
Priority

Transforming Adult Social Care
  On target - objectives remain achievable

Key 
Objectives:

 Make early intervention and prevention, together 
with strength-based working, into all aspects of our 
work across the Adult Social Care System, and in 
our engagement with the developing Integrated 
Care System in the county.

 Build a world class ‘model’ of short-term care (the 
‘Enhanced Independence Offer’) together with the 
NHS and other partners.

 Deliver a Technology Strategy: exploring the 
potential of technology to support carers and 
improve the quality of care that people receive.

 Work with independent care providers to address 
capacity gaps and over provision, including use of 
central government funding to improve the terms 
and conditions of care sector staff.

 Respond to Government legislation which will begin 
a once in a generation transformation of adult social 
care.

Comments 
about overall 
status:

 Broadly there is an improving picture across adult 
social care performance. 

 94% of contacts were dealt with within one day, with 
36% signposted. These are consistently at or above 
target. Brokerage has been consistently improving 
over the last three quarters of the year, with average 
waiting times down to 3 weeks from 4.8. Permanent 
admissions 18-64 to residential & nursing care homes 
per 100,000 population have also decreased, from 
13.7 to 6.6 since the start of the year (target 13). 

 The percentage of people who have had a review/re-
assessment of their needs within the last 12 months is 
improving, from 42.8% to 48.6% since April. While we 
are not yet meeting the target of 60%, we are on track 
to achieve this by year end. There are a number of 
data quality issues affecting this indicator which are 
also being addressed to reflect the true picture of the 
number of people in receipt of a service. 

 The number of days lost to stress has also reduced 
from 1.07 to 0.54. Days lost to sickness have reduced 
from last quarter but remain higher than GCC 
average. (3.77 Q2 to 3.21 Q3 days per FTE, 2.44 Q2 
to 1.76 Q3 long term sickness) 

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

 We have commenced our recruitment campaign 
titled: ‘This is Why We Care’. The Social Worker 
recruitment campaign will continue with planned 
events. For the external workforce, our Proud to 
Care Campaign was re - launched. Actions next 

quarter:

 Further recruitment events are planned under our 
recruitment campaigns

 We will continue to progress our work to support the 
external market, specifically developing work around 
our market position statement and the fair cost of care, 
developing our older people’s partnership model, 
continuing to develop our ageing well, Enhanced 
Independence Offer and falls provision and 
progressing our estates strategy. 

P
age 88



17

 We have worked with the Integrated Care Board to 
allocate of £8.7M to support urgent and emergency 
care.  This has been resource intensive, both in 
terms of allocating the funding and responding to 
the reporting regimes, as the funding has to be 
spent by the end of March.  This additional work has 
been delivered alongside all other operational 
pressures and longer-term business as usual.  The 
funding has been allocated to a range of schemes, 
including the purchasing of beds as per national 
guidance, but also initiatives such as purchasing of 
step-down flats for people with housing needs, 
clean up services, provider payment models for 
manual handling assessments and therapy and 
exploring avenues with the VCS. 

 Scoping work has started on an early intervention 
and prevention strategy

 We have continued to work with GHC NHSFT to 
increase the availability of the Enhanced 
Independence Offer.

 We have continued to review all service areas 
against our assurance tool and capture our 
evidence log in preparedness for the forthcoming 
Care Quality Commission assurance process, and 
have developed a milestone action plan to take us 
to our draft self-assessment in March

 We have completed a series of engagement 
activities seeking the views of professionals, 
partners, carers and people with lived experience 
about the current Community Health and Social 
Care Frameworks and the services currently 
provided by Gloucestershire County Council – 
Learning Disability Respite, Day Services and 2 
reablement units.

 We will continue to work with the Integrated Care 
Board and system partners around the delivery plan 
for urgent and emergency care. 

 We will review our current transformation plan and 
develop our plan for the next two years

 We will produce the first draft of our self-assessment 
for Care Quality Commission assurance 

 We will prepare for the launch of our Safeguarding 
single point of contact in April

 We will roll out our new directorate communications 
plan 

 We will plan and deliver re-procurement of our 
external learning management system and our internal 
e-learning platform

 We will progress our plans for our new charging policy 
and consultation 

 We will sign off a Joint GCC/ICS/Safeguarding Inter-
County Strategy regarding the placements made from 
authorities outside of Gloucestershire.

 We will complete a pilot to implement the Provider 
Assessment and Market Management Solution 
(PAMMS) into working age adult care provision across 
Gloucestershire.

 We aim to develop the Carer’s Partnership Board 
Action Plan and increase knowledge and awareness 
of carers as well as reaching a more diverse group of 
Carers in future.

P
age 89



18

Overall status Council 
Strategy 
Priority

Transforming Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 
Service   At risk - flagged for attention

Key 
Objectives:

 Deliver our Service Improvement Plan supported 
by additional investment and resources. 

 Improve the culture of our service.
 Embed the Fire Professional Standards to make 

sure our staff and the communities we serve are 
safe and well. 

 Deliver our Community Risk Management Plan 
(CRMP) to reduce the risk of fire and other 
emergencies in the county.

Comments 
about overall 
status:

Fire Standards
 58% of the 12 fire standards are fully compliant or 

progressing toward compliance with work underway to 
ensure all criteria under each standard is met. 

 Progress needs to be recorded against the remaining 
standards so that these can be monitored.

 Owners and authors have been communicated with and 
signposted to the National Fire Chief’s Council Fire 
Standards Board led implementation sessions. 

Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) 
People
 HMICFRS follow up inspection report on our two Causes 

for Concern has acknowledged the Service is making 
progress towards addressing its culture, behaviours and 
understanding of the importance of equality, diversity and 
inclusion.

 Our Cultural Improvement journey continues with 
significant investment in ‘Above Difference’ who are 
delivering cultural intelligence training to managers at all 
levels.

 At the time of writing this report 22% of the identified 
actions in the service improvement plan have already 
been completed. 25% of the actions are progressing on 
target and 19% are behind schedule/overdue and 34% 
scheduled.  

 The service and Senior Leadership Team are 
encouraging employees to maintain a healthy lifestyle as 
part of the Health and Wellbeing Charter. 

P
age 90



19

 Sickness absence levels have increased, rising from 2.58 
day lost per fte to 3.24. Sickness trends do increase 
during Quarter 3, however there was a noticeable 
increased level of sickness with our On-Call staff in 
December and this will be monitored. 

 A high proportion of days lost due to sickness are caused 
by musculoskeletal and back/neck injuries, with a spike 
in December following 4 months of relatively static 
performance. GFRS are currently working with 
Occupational Health to scope the feasibility and 
associated cost of offering further support around these 
types of injury. 

 Staff turnover has continued to improve for a second 
quarter (13.1%) but remains worse than the low of 9.1% 
in March 2021. The Operational Development Team 
continue to analyse exit interview data to identify any 
trends that can be reduced through targeted work to 
improve recruitment and retention. 

Response and Resilience 
 Our timeliness to responding to incidents although 

improved for Primary and Commercial fires is still below 
what we would expect for responses to Dwelling fires. 
However, assurance has been given that in the main for 
Quarter 3 performance was on target, but that poor 
weather and traffic due to road closures in December 
heavily impacted on-call turnout time which in turn 
delayed overall response times. 

 Where a response standard has not been met reasons 
are being provided to station managers and group 
managers. We continue to complete debriefs on 
incidents and share our learning both internally and 
nationally. 

P
age 91



20

Prevention and Protection
Prevention 
 Safe and Well visits remain low. Initial analysis has 

revealed some insights into the reasons why this may be 
occurring. The service will be establishing a working 
group to review all our work priorities and to ensure we 
listen and engage with staff to understand their views on 
how we can improve and inform our strategy going 
forward. 

Protection 
 Delivery of the Risk Based Inspection Programme 

remains behind our scheduled target and this will need 
focus in Quarter 4. Overall, GFRS are reducing risk with 
a sound methodology which assigns buildings to the Risk 
Based Inspection Programme and ensures all properties 
considered highest risk are having regular inspections. 
There will, however, be a future need to align our 
methodology with the new national definition of risk when 
this is released within the coming year. 

 We will continue to improve our data insights so we can 
monitor all Business Fire Safety work and be assured the 
business premises have been visited and the appropriate 
level of work carried out within a timely period. 

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

Service Improvement Plan 
 Following successful recruitment, Improvement 

Programme Manager appointed.
 Overall progress on the 11 recommendations for 

our two causes of concern areas have been 
good. Due to successful recruitment, team 
capacity in some areas has increased which will 
aid progression on the action plan. 

Service Culture
 Deputy Chief Fire Officer appointed and in post.
 ‘Above Difference’ training workshops started in 

autumn 2022 and will be complete by the end of 
spring 2023.

Actions next 
quarter:

Service Improvement Plan 
 Continue active recruitment to provide dedicated 

resource for the Improvement Programme team. 
Service Culture
 Development of managing stress/stress assessment 

training. 
 Create Personal Development Review (PDR) policy for 

uniformed staff, provide training and add the PDR 
template to our electronic recording system PDRpro.

 Source National Fire Chiefs Council training for GFRS 
staff. 

 Consultation on draft Service Vision has begun and will 
be facilitated by ‘Above Difference’ throughout spring.

P
age 92



21

 Communications Action Plan created following 
the Local Government Association (LGA) Peer 
Review completed in September.

 Communications team recruitment completed.
 Focus groups completed to help with identifying 

staff diversity information and reported to the 
Senior Leadership Team.

 Improvement Focus groups where held in 
autumn.

 Pilot Induction programme with new managers 
completed in December.

 Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Presentations on 
Wellbeing & Diversity and Skillzone Volunteers 
completed in October. 

 Engaged with staff on critical incident diffusing 
throughout November and December 2022.

Embed the Fire Professional Standards
 The Fire Standards Board now totals 12 

standards which encompass a range of areas 
including competence, preparedness and 
safeguarding, an additional six standards are 
planned to be released nationally in 2023. The 
progress of implementation of these standards is 
reported to the Senior Leadership Team on a 
quarterly basis.

Community Risk Management Plan 
 The nine objectives within the Community Risk 

Management Plan are integrated into our 
Portfolio Management Office (PMO) and reported 
through Portfolio Management Board (PMB) 

 People and Social Responsibility and Workforce 
objectives are being driven through the Service 
Improvement Plan. 

 Review information collated at critical incident diffusing 
sessions to create recommendations.

 Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Allies subgroup to submit 
National Fire Chiefs Council maturity model for rating.

 Action recommendations from staff diversity information 
Senior Leadership Team report. 

Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) 
 People and Social Responsibility and Workforce 

objectives are being driven through the Service 
Improvement Plan. 

 Response Arrangements, Response Standard, 
Collaboration and Digital, Data and Technology 
objectives are being driven through the Service 
Improvement Plan or portfolio management office. 

 Prevention & Protection will embed a process for station 
managers to be involved with community safer 
partnerships within six districts, embed an external 
communications programme to promote fire setters’ 
scheme, continue recruitment for community safety 
advisors and road safety coordinator, and review pilot 
safe and well evaluation process. 

 Asset management will create a Gloucestershire Fire and 
Rescue Service asset management plan. 

P
age 93



22

 Response Arrangements, Response Standard, 
Collaboration and Digital, Data and Technology 
objectives are being driven through the Service 
Improvement Plan or portfolio management 
office. 

 Prevention & Protection have successfully 
recruited station manager capacity, “training for 
court” training for relevant staff completed, 
audit process embedded and best practice 
shared by team manager and inspectors working 
to same standards. 

 Response Arrangements - crash data added to 
appliance iPads, and successful managerial 
recruitment.

 Selected an external, independent consultant to 
carry out predictive analysis and modelling.

 Implementation of National Operational 
Guidance, at present 50% of tasks needed to 
adopt the 27 Nationally recognised incident 
‘scenarios’ are completed or on track. The 
remainder will continually be developed until 
2025, this is to ensure that the guidance is fully 
embedded within the organisation; a gap analysis 
identified that additional equipment and training 
was required to support the development and 
maintenance of a competent workforce. The 
Team responsible for delivering National 
Operational Guidance are working to address the 
areas identified within the gap to reduce the risk 
of the Guidance not being fully embedded.

 Asset management - Gloucestershire Fire and 
Rescue Service fleet review working 
collaboratively with Gloucestershire County 
Council Integrated Transport Unit to progress.

 Data and technology - Initial engagement with 
Intelligent I for development of Power BI project.

P
age 94



23

Overall statusCouncil 
Strategy 
Priority

Delivering Our Ambitions - ICT
   At risk - flagged for attention

Key 
Objectives:

 Invest in replacing our core infrastructure. This will 
increase security and allow our staff to be as 
productive as possible, making it easier to work with 
colleagues and partners. 

 Develop our workforces’ digital skills and our ability 
to use digital innovation to improve customer 
experience.

Comments 
about 
overall 
status:

 The Digital and ICT Service are making good progress 
towards delivering a more robust and faster network 
across the whole of the Estate.  All the buildings have 
now got improved networks and we are working to 
complete the removal of legacy equipment at Shire Hall. 
Work continues to move to M365 and Software as a 
Service for many of our applications. However there has 
been some areas of slippage at least partly due to how 
employees have used legacy ICT and the time needed to 
upskill and change behaviour.

 There has been some significant disruption and 
instability in January, some of which was brought about 
by the unforeseen impact of changes we were making to 
improve the network; some of which resulted from 
changes made by Microsoft which affected not only 
GCC, but ICT systems globally.  Nevertheless, overall 
the work that is being undertaken will result in greater 
network stability and security overall.

 Public Service Network accreditation achieved, and 
security improvements continue to be visible and are on-
going.

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

 Roll out of network to all buildings complete.
 Exchange Online including “Bring Your Own Device” 

(BYOD) has started with several service areas 
migrated and reporting real benefits. However 
historic user practice has created need to review 
approach and decision to enhance backup solution. 
Therefore, further phases on hold with view to 
restarting in Jan.

 Liquidlogic hosting platform built and available for 
user testing/proof of concept work.

 Further training and development for staff in all 
aspects of M365

Actions 
next 
quarter:

 Removal of last elements of legacy network equipment 
slightly slipped from Dec to January.

 Completion of Exchange Online migration
 Liquidlogic user testing with a view to Go live in early 

March 2023
 Ongoing change work with teams particularly around use 

of Sharepoint and Teams collaboration via Digital 
Smarties and wider training

 Remaining 365 mobile devices and bring your own 
device deployment

 Ongoing development of the Digital Strategy and next 
phase of the ICT roadmap

P
age 95



24

 Teams collaboration and Sharepoint – service sites 
complete and rolled out to majority of services.  
Some areas considering how to deploy.

 Successfully significantly reduced the number of 
software applications on the blue layer to 13

 Appointment of new Assistant Director of Digital and ICT

P
age 96



25

Overall status Council 
Strategy 
Priority

Delivering Our Ambitions – Equalities, 
Diversity, and Inclusion   On target - objectives remain achievable

Key 
Objectives:

 Recruit from the widest pool of talent and to benefit 
from a diverse and inclusive workforce where all can 
flourish and progress 

 Increase workforce diversity.
 Implement inclusive strategies and policies.
 Collect, analyse, and publish workforce data
 Equality and inclusion learning and development
 Improve health and wellbeing for all

Comments 
about 
overall 
status:

 Activity tracking to plan, however this is a long-term 
programme of work over at least three years to see 
impact

 Local Government Association (LGA) Equalities 
Framework will provide us with measures of success

 Advertising roles on diverse job boards to increase 
diversity of candidate pools.

 Tracking and monitoring completions of Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion learning.

 Silver status achieved for Stonewall.
 Published the Workforce Data Equality Report and 

included the additional recommendations into the main 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion plan.

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

 Celebration on Black History Month with multi-
agency event on 20 October and safe space event 
to encourage honest conversation about day-to-day 
experience of working at GCC

 Completed draft of self-assessment against LGA 
Equality framework into priority programme of work 
– reviewed by Employee Networks, Corporate 
Leadership Team and Member Equality Champions

 Ongoing delivery of Workforce equality action plan.

Actions 
next 
quarter:

 Finalise action plan in response to self-assessment 
against LGA Equality framework with sign off at 
Corporate Leadership Team

 Analysis of equality data regarding the population of 
Gloucestershire recently published following the 2021 
census

 Launch of the Council’s reciprocal mentoring programme
 Ongoing delivery of Workforce equality action plan.

P
age 97



26

Overall status Council 
Strategy 
Priority

Delivering Our Ambitions – Strategic 
Procurement transformation   On target - objectives remain achievable

Key 
Objectives:

 Modernise our procurement and contract 
management IT systems to give us better, more 
complete oversight of our contracts, to help us plan 
further ahead and to identify opportunities to secure 
better deals by joining our buying power across the 
council and beyond

Comments 
about 
overall 
status:

 The Interim Head of Strategic Procurement continues to 
lead the next phase of the transformation journey, 
stabilising the team, developing proposals for its future 
and beginning the roll-out of a toolkit to support 
commissioners across all areas of the Council  

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

 New staff structure devised which links in with the 
service delivery requirements and activity planning

 Recruitment of permanent staff underway.
 Procurement “How to” guide drafted
 Activity tracking and pipeline plan created and 

shared with Directorates. 
 SAP Ariba procurement system purchased which 

will be delivered through the One Programme and 
provide commissioners with a one stop shop for 
procurement needs.

 Procurement staff member seconded to One 
Programme to ensure procurement is forefront of 
One Programme delivery

Actions 
next 
quarter:

 Continue design of phase 2 of the Procurement 
Transformation Programme, including: 

o Proposals for the future structure, role and 
operating model of the team, including how it works 
with Commissioners in Directorate teams 

o Reducing dependency on interims in order to bring 
staffing costs within budget for 2023/24. 

o Defining new “to be” processes for new Enterprise 
Resource Planning solution

o Ensure data integrity and single source of data for 
reporting.

 Design a reporting dashboard that standardises reporting 
for Directorate Leadership Teams and gives clear 
visibility to the pipeline of commissioning activity in order 
to help them plan effectively and oversee their contracts.

 Support the One Programme by continuing to devise 
policy and processes in line with new toolkit.

 Launch “how to” guide with templates for procurement for 
commissioners.

P
age 98



27

Overall status Council 
Strategy 
Priority

Delivering Our Ambitions 
Workforce – Recruitment and retention of hard-
to-fill roles   At risk - flagged for attention

Key 
Objectives:

 Develop ways to improve the recruitment and 
retention of staff in the hardest to fill areas and 
support our partners and providers to do the same

Comments 
about 
overall 
status:

 We have a clear plan of work to improve the recruitment 
and retention of our workforce and activity is tracking to 
plan.  However, the national and local context is 
increasingly challenging and financial constraints limit 
some areas both in terms of pay and resource available.  
Our Proud to Care programme continues to promote 
working with our providers, however our ability to 
influence the wider social care package in order to attract 
care workers in the provider market is limited.

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

 Improve end to end recruitment process and 
relaunched approach to advertising including 
increased use of social media

 Reshaped recruitment team with shift from 
transactional to advisory activity

 Refreshed plans around attracting and retaining 
social workers and wider social care staff and 
relaunched relevant microsites and related activity.

 Really positive progress in Adults around the in-
house services. Previous quarter more than 50 
vacancies and all filled.

 New agency contract was implemented on 5th 
December to source agency workers at competitive 
pay rates.  

Actions 
next 
quarter:

 Launching of new Employer Brand and associated 
campaign

 Continued new focus around hard to fill roles
 Benchmarking and options appraised regarding our total 

reward package
 Action planning in response to employee survey 

feedback to improve retention
 Continue to make greater use of job boards and social 

media to promote our roles.
 Advertise our roles on more diversity job boards to 

increase our candidate pool.  
 Continue with our campaign to attract social workers and 

wider social care staff. 
 Launching an annual rewards statement for all staff to 

promote our rewards package.  

P
age 99



28

Overall status Council 
Strategy 
Priority

Delivering Our Ambitions – Agile working
  On target - objectives remain achievable

Key 
Objectives:

 Continue to provide the tools, technology and 
support that will help our staff to work in a more 
flexible way, travel less, work more easily with 
others and achieve a better work / life balance 

Comments 
about 
overall 
status:

 Our workforce are now largely working in line with the 
agreed principles of agile working with the majority of 
staff splitting their working time between council 
buildings, home and other work places driven by 
business need.

 The Digital & ICT and Buildings & Workspaces aspects 
of the Agile programme continue to make good progress, 
and the process of supporting cultural transformation 
continues.

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

 As part of implementing a revised flexible working 
hours policy, Exec Directors discussed their 
services’ opening hours and agile working 
arrangements with Lead Cabinet Members.

 Additional training, tools and guidance rolled out to 
support managers and staff to work in a more 
flexible way, whilst ensuring a better work / life 
balance.

 Programme of refurbishing office and meeting 
spaces continue.

Actions 
next 
quarter:

 After an initial pilot in Adult’s Services recently, service 
specific facilitated workshops are being delivered to 
support and encourage services to review operating 
methodologies in the light of potential opportunities 
offered by agile working. This work is focused on 
improving services for the people of Gloucestershire 
using agile and will continue, service team by service 
team, for some considerable time.

 By April 2023, basic refurbishment of Shire Hall will be 
complete to enable teams to work in a more agile way, 
including co-location of teams, workspaces that better 
meet their needs, and technology to enable effective and 
productive collaboration wherever members of staff are 
located.

 Physical works commence on locality sites in Stroud and 
the Cotswolds to support agile working, including drop-in 
space for peripatetic staff.

P
age 100



29

Overall status Council 
Strategy 
Priority

Delivering Our Ambitions – Maximising the use 
of our estate   On target - objectives remain achievable

Key 
Objectives:

 Continue to review the council’s estate and how we 
make best use of it. This will include continuing to 
modernise and adapt the Shire Hall complex to 
make it accessible, fit for purpose and more suitable 
for agile working

 Continue to look for opportunities to combine space 
across the council and with our partners; proactively 
seeking ways to reduce the council’s carbon 
footprint and increase renewable energy generation

Comments 
about 
overall 
status:

 Agile planning continues and works to complete the 
Shire Hall adaptations are on track for completion by the 
end of March 2023

 A wider review of property is underway
 Opportunities to save revenue from buildings has started
 Area based reviews are taking place in conjunction with 

our One Gloucestershire Estate partners
 A review of rural land to assess its suitability for 

renewable energy generation is underway

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

 Work has continued creating a new agile 
environment in Shire Hall including new home 
zones for teams These zones include a range of 
facilities to enable staff to work in a flexible and 
agile way, including breakout spaces and a new hub 

 Bearlands café is now fully operational and Spires is 
partially open, plans are being developed in order to 
reopen Spires in some capacity as more staff return 
to the office.

 Some teams are located in the new Quayside 
building alongside the GPs and pharmacy 
o The inclusion of a new community diagnostic 

hub in Quayside has been agreed in principle 
and detailed terms are being agreed.

o Detailed proposals are being developed to 
bring the Fire HQ staff into this building thus 
freeing up space and generating savings from 
the part vacation of Waterwells

 Plans for both Stroud and Cirencester drop in hubs 
have been produced and are being consulted upon.

 Business cases are being developed for changes to 
the way locality services are delivered 

Actions 
next 
quarter:

 Continue to implement agile adaptations in Shire Hall in 
order to complete the first phase of work by the end of 
March 2023. Plan longer term works based on learning 
from early phases of the programme

 Complete the remaining access work in block 1 including 
the new lift and associated works

 Present proposals to Property Board for further 
rationalisation of buildings

 Complete the review of rural land for its suitability for 
renewable energy generation

 Challenge service partners on their continuing need for 
property assets. Update the corporate asset 
management plan to reflect these

 Start the review of the rural estate strategic estate plan 
with a completion date of the end of March 2023

 Receive back 4 care homes and develop proposals for 
their reuse/disposal

 Complete review of highways/waste depots in Gloucester 
and the Forest of Dean

 Prepare business case for the rationalisation of office 
accommodation in Cheltenham and the refurbishment of 
County Offices.

P
age 101



30

 Adaptation and upgrades to the Council Chamber 
have been completed and the facility has reopened 
successfully, works in Block 1 to create a new 
conference/meeting facility are nearing completion.

 Developed more service property plans with 
delivery partners identifying future asset strategies

 Commenced review of highways/waste depots in 
both Gloucester and the Forest of Dean

P
age 102



31

Overall statusCouncil 
Strategy 
Priority

Delivering Our Ambitions – Business 
Intelligence   At risk - flagged for attention

Key 
Objectives:

 Develop business intelligence and analytics tools 
to provide us with a better understanding of 
service need and performance, laying the 
foundations to be able to benefit from 
developments in artificial intelligence and applied 
analytics

Comments 
about 
overall 
status:

 The focus during the last quarter has been on training 
and skills development within the Data & Analysis Team, 
which has meant that a number of team members are 
now proficient and the team has been able to begin 
producing and releasing dashboards and reports to 
service areas.

 Work on the Adult Social Care reporting pack has been 
further delayed by problems with our external consultants 
accessing GCC systems and data.  Despite this, testing 
of the reports has now been completed, and they are 
now scheduled to be released to managers by the end of 
March 2023. 

 There have also been delays to the release of Children’s 
data reports for the same reasons.  In the meantime, 
Children’s Services continue to have access to a 
comprehensive range of reports using our former 
reporting tools. 

 In light of this and the reduction in funding likely to be 
available, the programme is being rescoped. Revised 
priorities will be:

o Developing and restructuring our in-house capacity 
to produce reports and analysis 

o Moving GFRS data into the Azure/Power BI 
environment in order to allow future development of 
reports to support oversight of performance and 
improvement

P
age 103



32

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

 End user testing of Adult Social Care reporting 
pack completed 

 Engaged ‘Changing Social’ for rollout plan with 
Adults Social Care managers.

Actions 
next 
quarter:

 Release and deployment of Adult Social Care reports to 
management

 Planning for of GFRS data transfer 
 Further testing of Children’s Services reporting pack 

(delayed from Q3) 
 Continue training/knowledge transfer with members of 

the Data & Analysis Team

P
age 104



33

Overall status Council 
Strategy 
Priority

Improving Customer Experience
  On target - objectives remain achievable

Key 
Objectives:

 Make it easier and quicker for customers to find 
what they want, get the advice or support they need 
or find who it is they need to speak with and, when 
it’s not us, easily work out who it is that can help

 Wherever possible resolve issues / questions the 
first time a customer contact us

 Look to find the best possible solutions for our 
customer’s problems, even if that means looking 
beyond our role. If there’s a good reason to hand-
off; clearly explain why

 Develop a Customer Improvement Strategy, to 
make sure our staff – and customers – know what 
we expect from them

 Regularly ask customers and staff how things are 
going and respond to what they tell us

 Train and support staff to deliver a consistently 
positive / fair experience for all customers

 Maintain ways for customers to get help and 
information by phone and in person, including those 
that lack digital skills and online access

Comments 
about 
overall 
status:

 The focus this quarter has been building upon the 
governance and foundations from the previous quarter. 
This has led to in depth engagement and consultation of 
a large range of internal services and stakeholders

 Services are, generally, receptive to and supportive of 
the vision of the Customer Experience Programme and 
are proactively supporting these initial projects, though 
co-ordination of large-scale cultural change is invariably 
a gradual process

 There are challenges in creating consistency between 
services with such different focuses however these are 
being tackled through continued joint working and 
stakeholder engagement

 There have been challenges in the discovery phases of 
the projects given the broad scope which has required an 
understanding of previous actions and improvement work 
and the background to many differences between areas

 Over the next quarter the focus will be on utilising the 
engagement of services and driving projects forward to 
begin to deliver tangible change and improvement across 
the organisation 

Progress 
made this 
quarter:

 Project groups have been set-up for:
o Customer Care Standards project
o Customer Experience Training Project
o Website Content Review Project
o Parish Council Relationship Project

 Flooding Communications discovery phase 
completed – feedback and information collected 
from a range of departments and areas involved in 
Flood Risk Management and Floods response. 

Actions 
next 
quarter:

 Complete Flooding Communications options appraisal. 
Develop and implement an improvement action plan from 
the preferred option.

 New website contract planned to be approved and 
awarded in January. Start date of new contract TBC until 
award has been approved, current contract ends Sept 
2023

P
age 105



34

Resultant report and options appraisal currently in 
development.

 Website procurement project is continuing to 
progress with Technical Requirements, 
Specification, call off contract, SLA’s, quality 
questions, security standards and DPIA complete. 
Currently awaiting the supplier response following 
due diligence, deadline is 9/01/23

 Existing Customer Care Standards have been 
reviewed with a wide range of services and new set 
of Customer Care Standards that are widely 
applicable and will drive service improvement have 
been initially developed and shared with services. 
Currently these are being mapped against 
performance data to ensure that adherence to all 
Customer Care Standards can be adequately 
measured and fed into a new reporting structure.

 Detailed analysis of existing training resources has 
been completed and a list of training requirements 
based upon key objectives and challenges faced by 
services has been compiled. A proposal training 
portfolio has been planned to meet these 
requirements and is being shared with services 
ahead of development.

 A project team has been set up to review the 
content on the GCC website. Pages will be 
reviewed to ensure information is up to date and 
adequate ownership and contact details are clear. 
Project governance and a project approach have 
been finalised with an initial team meeting in 
January.

 Several meetings with internal teams to understand 
the current relationship and communication 
channels between the County Council and the 
Parish Councils have been completed, the 
discovery phase is ongoing.

 Match all proposed Customer Care Standards with 
performance metrics across all directorates and create a 
single performance dashboard to monitor Customer 
Experience across the Council. 

 Work with services to consider potential resident 
engagement opportunities and create a resident 
engagement plan to be shared alongside proposals.

 Share proposed Customer Care Standards, 
corresponding performance metrics and resident 
engagement plan through the Programme Governance 
Structure. Once agreed, share these with the Member 
steering group before progressing

 Create all of the Customer Experience Training 
resources that are planned for in-house development (2 
E-learning packages, 11 training videos, 4 supporting 
staffnet pages)

 Assess options for 2 remaining training interventions and 
if agreement is achieved with the Programme Group, 
prepare to tender for external training delivery

 Agree a detailed quality audit framework for all GCC 
website pages and begin to audit and update pages by 
service area

 Following the internal stakeholder engagement, external 
stakeholders will be engaged to further understand the 
relationship between GCC and Parish Councils. This will 
support the creation of project planning and governance 
with the aim of improving the working relationship and 
signing off a new Gloucestershire Charter.

P
age 106



35

Corporate Performance and Risk Report Quarter 3 2022/23
Overview of Performance

Achievements and Successes

Carbon Emissions 
(tonnes)

Annual Gully Emptying 
Programme Alcohol Treatment Reception Children 

with Obesity
Child Protection Plans Open 

more than 2 years

      

1,999.5 85.8% 37.6% 8.7% 1.3%
We continue to maintain lower 
levels of carbon emissions following 
the pandemic, and are performing 
well against target (2,245 tonnes 
CO2e)
Levels of emissions show a 12.3% 
reduction from the same period last 
year

Delivery is ahead of target for the 
gully emptying programme 
(85.8% against a target of 75%), 
which supports flood prevention. 
The structural maintenance 
programme is also ahead of 
target with 82% of the programme 
having been delivered (against a 
target of 75%)

The proportion of adult alcohol 
misusers who successfully 
completed treatment and did not 
represent within 6 months of 
completion has improved for the 
fourth quarter and is performing 
better than target for the second 
quarter.

Obesity levels among 
reception age children in 
Gloucestershire have seen a 
positive decrease to 8.7% 
from 13.6% the previous 
academic year and are lower 
than pre-pandemic levels 
(9.6%, 3-year average 
2017/18 to 2019/20).

As part of the focused work aimed at 
reducing long and repeat plans, we 
have a smaller proportion of children 
subject to a CPP for more than two 
years (1.3%, 8 children, down from 
3.4% at the end of Quarter 1, 30 
children). This is the lowest level since 
September 2018 and is better than the 
peer group average (1.6%, March 
2022). All but one of these children are 
in pre-proceedings. 

KEY: improving direction of travel /
worsening direction of travel /

remained the same (within 5%) 
performance based on peer comparator average (PCA)

P
age 107



36

Adult Social Care 
Safeguarding (Section 42) 

Enquiries open for more than 
26 weeks

Mental Health Assessments 
Leading to 

Support/Detainment

Safe and Well visits to those 
in High-Risk Groups

Freedom of Information and 
Environmental Information 

Regulations Responses  

   

16.9% 69.1% 86.2% 90%
At the end of Quarter 3, 16.9% of all 
open Section 42 Enquiries had been 
open for more than 26 weeks. This is 
an improvement from 20.1% in 
Quarter 2 and is better than target.

In Quarter 3, 69.1% of those 
assessed were detained or had other 
support or protection put in place. 
This is a 7% point increase compared 
with last quarter and is better than 
target. 

We continue to complete a high 
proportion of Safe and Well visits to 
the most vulnerable in our county. 

This is an improvement for the fourth 
quarter, with performance levels 

better than the same time last year 
(79%).

There has been continued 
improvement in the proportion of 
Freedom of Information (FOI) and 
Environmental Information 
Regulations (EIR) responses released 
within timescales. Performance has 
improved over the last two quarters, 
from 82% to 90% and is now meeting 
target. This is the result of 
implementing a new process for 
escalating requests at a much earlier 
stage where a response has not been 
forthcoming. 

P
age 108



37

Positive Direction of Travel

Residual Household 
Waste (Kgs)

Pregnant Smokers 
Quit

Case Audits rated 
Good or Better

% of pupils 
attending Good or 

Outstanding Primary 
schools

Permanent 
Admissions to Care 

(18-64 year olds)

Average Weeks 
awaiting Brokerage

   
 

420 90% 47% 88.6% 6.6 3.1 weeks
The amount of residual 
household waste continues 
to follow a reducing trend 
and the forecast per 
household, based on the 
financial year to date is 
420Kgs, the lowest since 
reporting started. The 
majority of waste is diverted 
from landfill and recycling 
rates are positive.

Following fluctuation over 
the last year, performance 
has improved to better 
than target but needs to 
stabilise. Performance 
remains better than 
national levels (46%, 
2021/22).  

Performance was at a 12-
month best in Quarter 3. 
In-month, the proportion of 
case audits rated Good or 
Better met target in 
November (50%), 
with performance 
increasing to 58% in 
December.

There has been an 
increase in the proportion 
of pupils attending good or 
outstanding primary 
schools for the third 
quarter, up from 86% in 
Quarter 4 2021/22. This is 
now better than target. 

The rate of permanent 
admission to residential and 
nursing care for those aged 
18-64 is better than target for 
the second successive 
quarter (6.6 per 100,000 
population against a target of 
13.0). 

The number of people 
awaiting the brokerage of 
support or care following 
assessment has decreased 
month on month since July 
2022. At the end of 
December 2022 this was 
down 21% to 331 people 
from 494 at the end of 
Quarter 2. The average 
waiting time for support or 
care improved to 3.1 
weeks (down from 4.0 
weeks in Quarter 2).

P
age 109



38

Areas of Focus/Potential Concern

Reduction in Public 
Transport Services Opiate Treatment Children’s 

Assessments

Long-term 
Placement Stability 
(children in care)

Timeliness of 
Financial Assets 

and Benefits 
Assessments

Turnover rate of 
Adult Social Care 
Social Workers


    

High 20 5% 73.6% 62.3% 89.1% 22.6%
The Government’s Bus 
Recovery Subsidy (BRS) 
has been extended to 31st 
March 2023 but the risk of 
community isolation and 
passenger levels not 
returning to pre-Covid 
levels is unlikely to abate in 
2023, as there remain 
recruitment and retention 
issues amongst operators. 

Following two quarter of 
static performance at 4.3% 
in relation to the successful 
treatment of Opiate users, 
there has been a marginal 
improvement in Quarter 2 
2022/23 (5%). Speed of 
recovery continues to be 
attributed to a halt on 
discharges and enhanced 
risk-management brought 
about by the pandemic 
which still affects this 
performance.

Assessment timeliness 
declined in Quarter 3 and 
was at a 12-month low 
(73.6%). This remains 
worse than target (90%) 
and the peer group 
average (82.4%, March 
2022). At a locality level, 
there is a significant 
disparity in performance, 
ranging from 42% to 84%. 
This disparity relates to 
areas that have 
experienced significant 
staffing shortages.

There has been slippage 
in long-term stability 
(62.3% from 65.9 at the 
end of March 2022). 
Performance continues to 
be worse than target 
(68%) and the peer group 
average (71.1%, March 
2022). A dip sample of 
cases is to be undertaken 
to support practice 
learning.

There were 610 financial 
and benefits assessments 
completed during the 
Quarter (up by 13.8% from 
536 in Quarter 2), of which 
89.1% took longer than 19 
working days to complete. 
The majority of cases 
continue to be significantly 
overdue as a result of 
ongoing work/delays in 
addressing legacy 
assessments.

The turnover rate for Social 
Workers and Senior 
Practitioners (ASYE, SW, 
SSW) in the rolling year 
was 22.6%, up from 17.2% 
in the rolling year to the 
end of Quarter 2. This 
relates to 14 leavers in the 
12 months to the end of 
December 2022. There 
has been an upturn in 
Social Worker recruitment 
with several appointments 
being made during Quarter 
3, but there remain 23 fte 
Social Work vacancies.

P
age 110



39

Fire Service Inspection 
Plan 

Number of Accidental 
Dwelling Fires

Firefighter Premises 
Familiarisation Visits

  

64% 70 82%
Annually, a Risk Based Inspection 
Programme (RBIP) is undertaken 
which incorporates the premises of 
highest risk should a fire incident 
occur. This is identified through risk 
profile work. Delivery of the 
inspection programme is behind the 
scheduled target (75%).

There has been a slight decrease 
in accidental dwelling fires this 
quarter, down 4% from Quarter 2 
and 1% compared with the same 
period last year. Achieving year-
on-year reduction continues to 
remain a challenge, with 
performance worse than target 
(55). 

Of the premises receiving a 
firefighter familiarisation visit in 
Quarter 3, 82% of inspections were 
reported as being within required 
frequency. Performance fluctuates 
from quarter to quarter resulting in 
improvements being insecure. 
Performance remains worse than 
target..

P
age 111



40

Long-Term Challenges

Road Safety (YTD) Children’s Contact 
Decisions

Children’s Initial 
Visiting

Education Health and 
Care Plans (EHCP)

Timeliness of Adult’s 
Care Act Plan Reviews

    


272 71.5% 66.9% High (16) 48.6%
Deaths and serious injuries 
on our roads remain higher 
than pre-pandemic levels. 
This highlights the need to 
implement the new Road 
Safety Policy which aims to 
halve the number of people 
killed or seriously injured by 
2032. The £600k Community 
Speed Watch programme 
(aimed at reducing speeds) 
is being implemented. A new 
Traffic Team has been 
established and will use data 
to develop traffic calming 
schemes, raise public 
awareness through 
education and enforce lower 
speed limits. 

Timeliness of initial decisions 
following contact improved 
slightly for the 2nd quarter 
(71.5% from 67.1% in Quarter 
1). Timeliness of end-end 
decision making also saw 
small improvement over the 
same period (70.8% from 
67.9%). Both measures 
remain significantly worse than 
target (90%). Contact demand 
reduced from around 8,700 to 
just under 8,500 contacts this 
quarter. However, demand 
remains high compared to 
Quarter 2 2020/21 (6,700) 
when timeliness of decision 
making was 92.4%. 

Timeliness of initial visits 
declined in Quarter 3, with 
two-thirds of children seen 
following referral within 
timescale (66.8% against a 
target of 85%). Quarterly 
performance has followed a 
declining trend, down from 
88% in March 2020) and is at 
a 3-year low. Performance 
across all localities was worse 
than target and ranged from 
46% to 76%. High vacancy 
levels in some teams are 
particularly impacting 
performance.

The risk relating to statutory 
timeliness for EHCP 
assessments, plan issue and 
annual amendments and the 
associated budgetary 
commitments, affecting the 
educational outcomes of 
vulnerable children remains 
high.

Just under half of the people 
receiving a service from Adult 
Social Care had an up-to-date 
review of their Care Act Plan. 
This is a slight improvement 
from 44.8% at the end of 
Quarter 2. There were 
improvements 18-64 years 
olds, older people and people 
receiving support for learning 
disabilities but a decline in up-
to-date reviews for people 
receiving support for mental 
health. Further improvements 
are expected in Quarter 4. 

P
age 112



41

Risk of Provider Failure Recruitment and Retention

   

High (20) High 20
The independent market continues to be in 
a state of uncertainty due to the continuing 
impact of the pandemic and the current 
economic tensions in relation to costs for 
staff, utilities, food and fuel. There is some 
improvement in the home care sector with 
an overall increase of 12% in delivery of 
home care hours with the same number of 
staff, as a result of the introduction of hyper 
local commissioning of home care.  We 
continue to work with the sector to improve 
recruitment and retention of the adult social 
care workforce and to try and balance 
supply of staff with the need for home care 
across the county. Care homes are still 
holding high levels of vacancies and 
coupled with increased costs, the risk of 
homes becoming unviable/unsustainable 
remains high. Work on changing the model 
for hospital discharge so more of the 
market can benefit from the short-term 
funding is underway and an update will be 
provided at the end of Quarter 4.

Challenges relating to recruitment, 
the job market and the cost-of-living 
crisis persist. Competition for qualified 
staff is particularly fierce and the 
Council continues to make a range of 
market related additional pay awards. 
Reliance on consultancy and agency 
staff remains high in some areas, as 
do vacancies for some services. We 
are introducing an employer brand to 
favourably promote the Council in the 
marketplace, utilising social media to 
target and attract candidates.

P
age 113



42

1. The proportion of Corporate Performance measures that were within tolerance of or better than 
target continued to see incremental improvement for the third quarter (64.9%, up from 58.3% in 
Quarter 4 2021/22). This is marginally below the target of 65%.

2. There were 27 Corporate Performance measures that were performing worse than target. 
Performance in Children’s Services accounted for just over 40% of these measures (12 
measures). The Fire Service had the highest proportion of measures that were worse than target 
(5 of 6, 83%). 

 

No. and % of Measures 
Better/Within Tolerance 

of Target

No. and % of 
Measures Worse 

than Target
Economy, Environment and Infrastructure 16   (89%) 2 (11%)
Prevention, Wellbeing and Communities 4   (67%) 2 (33%)
Children's Social Care 6   (35%) 11 (65%)
Education 5 (100%) 0   (0%)
Adult Social Care 12   (86%) 2 (14%)
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service 1   (17%) 5 (83%)
Corporate Resources 6   (55%) 5 (45%)

3. Performance against target remained the same for the majority of measures (84%). One measure 
reduced to within tolerance of target while two measures reduced to worse than target. However, 
performance for nine measures improved from worse than or within tolerance of target to better 
than target. 

Page 114



1

Corporate Performance Report

Quarter 3 2022/23 

Corporate Resources

Achievements and 
Successes

Positive Direction of 
Travel Areas of Focus/Potential Concern Long-Term 

Challenges
Freedom of Information and 
Environmental Information 

Regulations Responses  

Timeliness of Subject Access 
Request Responses Appraisal Discussions Funding for Future Financial 

Years Recruitment and Retention

    

90% 69% 62.6% High 20 High 20
There has been continued 
improvement in the proportion of 
Freedom of Information (FOI) and 
Environmental Information 
Regulations (EIR) responses 
released within timescales. 
Performance has improved over the 
last two quarters, from 82% to 90% 
and is now meeting target. This is 
the result of implementing a new 
process for escalating requests at a 
much earlier stage where a 
response has not been forthcoming. 

While the proportion of Subject 
Access Requests (SARs) 
released within the quarter 
remains below the Information 
Commissioner’s Office (ICO) 
recommended target of 90%, 
performance improved for the 
second quarter, from 44% to 69%. 
Improvement can be attributed to 
lower levels of demand within the 
quarter and close management 
oversight particularly in relation to 
backlog requests.

While there was improvement 
compared with last quarter, 
performance remains worse than 
target (85%). Appraisal 
discussions have been an area of 
focus this quarter, with EE&I 
achieving a completion rate of 
82.9% and Corporate Resources 
achieving 91.5%. Community 
Safety (44.6%) and Children’s 
Services (40.4%) had the lowest 
level of PDR completion. 

The risk level relating to 
reductions and changes to funding 
for future financial years and its 
potential to impact Core Services 
remains from High (20). There 
continues to be a considerable 
amount of uncertainty regarding 
future funding levels beyond 
March 2024, although the recent 
Funding Policy Statement (issued 
12th December 2022) provided 
high level funding assumptions for 
the following year.

Challenges relating to recruitment, 
the job market and the cost-of-
living crisis persist. Competition 
for qualified staff is particularly 
fierce and the Council continues 
to make a range of market related 
additional pay awards. Reliance 
on consultancy and agency staff 
remains high in some areas, as do 
vacancies for some services. We 
are introducing an employer brand 
to favourably promote the Council 
in the marketplace, utilising social 
media to target and attract 
candidates. 

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 7



2

Workforce

1. Overall sickness levels across GCC have decreased, from 2.20 days lost per FTE to 2.12 days. 
Quarter 2 of 2022/23 recorded historically high levels of sickness, bucking seasonal trends. While 
sickness marginally reduced this quarter, it is expected to increase during winter months due to a 
prevalence of coughs, cold and flu already becoming evident. Performance remains worse than target 
(1.80) and the comparator average over a 12-month period (9.07 compared with 7.38 days lost per 
FTE).

Measure Days Lost to Sickness 
per FtE

Days Lost to Long Term 
Sickness per FtE

Days Lost to Stress 
per FtE

GCC 2.12 1.29 0.53
Adults & PWC 3.21 1.76 0.54
Childrens 1.85 0.87 0.77
EE&I 1.46 0.37 0.20
Community Safety 3.24 2.37 0.66
Corporate Resources 1.51 0.66 0.23

Days lost to long term sickness decreased this quarter (1.19 days per FtE down from 1.44). Absence 
due to stress also reduced (0.52 days lost per FtE down from 0.69).

2. Across GCC, 62.6% of staff had had an appraisal with their manager during 2022/23. While this is an 
improvement compared with last quarter, performance remains worse than target (85%). 
Performance has been bolstered by the inclusion of data from the Fire Service’s PDRpro and SAP, 
accurately reflecting the proportion of staff who have undertaken an appraisal discussion during the 
year. In addition, appraisal discussions have been an area of focus this quarter, with EE&I achieving 
a completion rate of 82.9% and Corporate Resources achieving 91.5%. The PDR process is intended 
to provide a clear link between the work of individuals to their business plans and the Council 
Strategy. It also supports the review of learning and development needed to ensure that GCC’s 
workforce has the current skills and knowledge needed to deliver objectives. Community Safety 
(44.6%) and Children’s Services (40.4%) had the lowest level of PDR completion. 

Page 116



3

Measure Staff Appraisals 
Completed

GCC 62.6%
Adults & PWC 68.4%
Childrens 40.4%
EE&I 82.9%
Community Safety 44.6%
Corporate Resources 91.5%

3. Workforce turnover remained similar for a third quarter at 13.9% and challenges relating to 
recruitment, the job market and the cost-of-living crisis persist. The risk pertaining to the difficulty 
recruiting and retaining staff remains (High 20). National and regional labour markets continue to be 
highly competitive and wage settlement trends show that the public sector is still being considerably 
outstretched by the private sector. Competition for qualified staff is particularly fierce and the Council 
continues to make a range of market related additional pay awards. Reliance on consultancy and 
agency staff remains high in some areas. There are internal challenges regarding the lack of detailed 
information on turnover and improvement work is ongoing to develop this. In addition, we are 
introducing an employer brand to favourably promote the Council in the marketplace, utilising social 
media to target and attract candidates. 

Measure Staff Turnover

GCC 13.9%
Adults & PWC 15.6%
Childrens 13.3%
EE&I 10.5%
Community Safety 12.3%
Corporate Resources 15.9%

ICT

4. There were 3 Priority 1 (P1) incidents in Quarter 3 (Note: this is an organisation-wide issue, an issue 
causing an outage or one preventing a large volume of GCC staff from working). Performance met 
target (3) for the first time since Quarter 2 2021/22, reflecting the ongoing improvement activity and all 
three incidents related to third party services. Significant change activities have been undertaken to 
modernise/stabilise critical infrastructure, focused on a journey towards cloud technologies and both 
the network infrastructure and remote access solution are due to be refreshed/replaced as part of the 
agreed Transformation Programme. Nevertheless, there are ongoing challenges affecting stability 
and downtime and the risk relating to failure to ensure technology managed by ICT (including 
communications abilities) is fit for purpose remains High (15).

5. Ten security breaches occurred within Quarter 3. The risk rating relating to failure to protect the 
council's key information and data from Cyber Attack remains unchanged at High (15) as this 
situation can change quickly. A programme of ICT replacement and cyber improvement is underway. 
Independent assessments of back-up solutions have found implementations fit for purpose and the 
organisation recently received a Public Services Network accreditation. Technological controls and 
measures against cyber-attack are in place, such as ensuring devices are fully patched and reviewing 
backup service. Further work is ongoing to achieve Cyber Essentials Plus.

Page 117



4

Agile

6. The number of staff working from a GCC office has gradually increased over the quarter. Shire Hall’s 
occupancy rates averaged at 40% in Quarter 3, compared with 37% in Quarter 2. In October, the 
frequency of headcounts increased to monitor the impact of the rising energy costs on occupancy 
rates, and some areas recorded 72% occupancy within the quarter. This figure may be affected by 
recent refurbishment efforts, whereby the number of desks were reduced in some offices. The 
buildings and workspaces aspects of the Agile programme continues to make headway, supporting 
the wider cultural transformation. The refurbishments meet the Council’s requirement for modern, 
flexible, and collaborative spaces, with the introduction of new equipment, quiet booths, and informal 
breakout areas. The last occupancy count, which took place in January, was as high as 52% in some 
areas. 

7. Implementation of the revised Flexible Working Scheme is underway. Additional training, tools and 
guidance has been rolled out to support colleagues on agile arrangements, identifying stress signals 
and encouraging a good work/life balance. Efforts to promote the Health and Safety Executive’s good 
practice in relation to home working are underway and first aider and fire procedures are under 
review.  

Finance  

8. The risk level relating to reductions and changes to funding for future financial years and its potential 
to impact Core Services remains from High (20). There continues to be a considerable amount of 
uncertainty regarding future funding levels beyond March 2024, although the recent Funding Policy 
Statement (issued 12th December 2022) provided high level funding assumptions for the following 
year.

Legal

9. Resource and capacity issues continue to place pressure on Legal Services and impact performance 
and risk levels. Challenges within the recruitment market remain resulting in a high proportion of 
vacant lawyer positions filled by locums (35.0%). Progress has been made upskilling talent, to 
become case holding lawyers, through the ‘Grow Your Own Programme’ to relieve pressure on senior 
staff. This is a medium to long term strategy so is not expected to reduce reliance on Locums for 
some time yet. However, the first cohort of the “Grow Your Own Programme” are coming to the end 
of their apprenticeship and will be awarded their formal qualifications. A second cohort of paralegals 
are expected to begin their apprenticeship in Quarter 4.

10. The contract for a new Legal Case Management System has been awarded. However, the 
implementation plan is likely to be delayed as the capacity needed to migrate data is greater than 
originally estimated and capacity within ICT is limited.  This may delay the service’s ability to go live in 
June 2023 and the associated benefits, such as a new court bundling process for the Children’s Legal 
Team, and the creation of an online procedure manual in-line with the requirements of the Quality 
Assurance Framework.

Governance
 
11. Two decisions were upheld by the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) within 

the quarter. Both incidents related to SEND services; some decisions upheld last quarter also related 
to SEND. This area is coming under much closer focus from the LGSCO at a national level, with a 
report recently issued signalling their intention to take a stronger approach, particularly in cases 
where delays have led to young people not being provided with full-time education for a period.  
These issues arise from the significant increase in demand for Education, Health and Care Plans 
which is leading to delays in assessment and planning.  An improvement plan, and additional 
resources have been put in place, but these are being kept under close review.

Page 118



5

Gloucestershire Data Insights

12. Gloucestershire Data Insights (GDI) Business Analytics Platform work has stalled due to technical 
issues affecting the contractors’ ability to access GCC data systems.  ICT, Cantium and Itelligent-I 
(our strategic data partner) are working together to try to find a solution, both for the short, and longer 
term. In the meantime, this is further delaying the completion and roll-out of dashboards for Children’s 
and Adult’s Services, though in the case of Children’s, they continue to have access to real-time 
performance data through existing data reports. The Adult Social Care Brokerage dashboard, which 
has been built in-house, is fully operational, however, and has been deployed to the team and senior 
management to provide timely performance data.  

Information Management 

13. There has been continued improvement in the proportion of Freedom of Information (FOI) and 
Environmental Information Regulations (EIR) responses released within timescales. Performance has 
improved over the last two quarters, from 82% to 90% and is now meeting target. This is the result of 
implementing a new process for escalating requests at a much earlier stage where a response has 
not been forthcoming. 

14. While the proportion of Subject Access Requests (SARs) released within the quarter remains below 
the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) recommended target of 90%, performance improved for 
the second quarter, from 44% to 69%. Improvement can be attributed to lower levels of demand 
within the quarter and close management oversight particularly in relation to backlog requests. The 
growth of the backlog has therefore been stemmed and is beginning to see slight reduction (21 
requests) but the number of complex cases and vacancies within the team continue to present a 
challenge. No Subject Access Requests were escalated to the ICO in the quarter.  

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Quarter 3 2022/23

Purpose of the report
To provide a strategic overview of the Council's performance for Quarter 3 2022/23.

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page number
Key to Symbols 2
Tackling Climate Change 3
Improving Our Roads 4
Sustainable Growth 5
Levelling Up Our Communities 6
Transforming our Children’s Services  Children's Social
Services

8

Transforming Children’s Services  Education 10
Transforming Adult Social Care  Delivery 11
Transforming Adult Social Care  Commissioning 12
Transforming Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service 14
Delivering Our Ambitions 15

Corporate Performance Monitoring Report

1

P
age 121



Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Highly Likely
(5) 5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Possible
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Unlikely
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Remote
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with the Likelihood of each risk)

Risk Symbols
Risk Value Increasing
 Risk Value Decreasing
 No Change

Measure Symbols
 Performance Better than Target
 Performance Worse than Target
 Performance significantly worse than Target
 No information
 Missing Target
 No Value

Bigger is Better  A bigger value for this measure is good 
Smaller is Better  A smaller value for this measure is good
Plan is best  Where it is better for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Key to Symbols

2

P
age 122



Tackling Climate Change

Climate Change

Council Carbon Emissions, buildings & transport (exc schools)
Tonnes of CO2e

Smaller is Better Year to Date 2,279.60 4,218.82 6,299.94 1,091.04 1,999.46 2,245.00

Renewable energy generation (kWh) from the Councils Estate
(exc schools)

Bigger is Better Year to Date 31,665,414 48,759,032 65,607,181 17,715,555 32,115,591 n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep21 Dec21 Mar22 Jun22
Actual
Sep22

Target
Sep22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep21 Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Actual Sep22 Comments
Comparator
Group

Waste

Residual household waste per household (Kgs) Smaller is Better Forecast 440 440 436 428 420 479
% of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and
composting

Bigger is Better Forecast 51.5% 51.2% 52.0% 53.3% 52.7% 51.0%

Net power production (MWhr) by the Gloucestershire Energy
From Waste facility

Bigger is Better Forecast 34,138 33,547 35,227 28,620 33,276 29,100 n/a

% of waste diverted from landfill Bigger is Better Forecast 97.4% 97.5% 97.6% 97.9% 96.7% 92.8% n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

3

P
age 123

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Improving Our Roads

Highways

% of 2 hour emergency repairs made on time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 99.0% 99.0% 99.0% 99.0% 99.3% 96.0% n/a
% of 24 hour defects repaired on time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 96.0% n/a
% of 28 day defects repaired or made safe in time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 99.0% 99.0% 99.8% 100.0% 100.0% 95.0% n/a
% of structural maintenance programme delivered Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 75.0% 86.0% 48.0% 70.0% 82.5% 75.0% n/a

Number of Winter maintenance runs completed Smaller is Better Quarterly 66 117 6 0 105

A gritting 'run' means gritters being deployed from an
area (East, West or Central) to carry out winter
actions in accordance with the Adverse Weather
Policy.  This includes the key route network and the
secondary network where appropriate.  Actuals for
Quarter 3 include 96 key route runs and 9 secondary
route runs.  The period included an extended and
very cold period during December including
significant snowfall in parts of the county. The same
staff resource is used for winter runs and defect
repairs.

n/a

Average number of additional days to complete overdue 28
day defect repairs

Smaller is Better Quarterly 5.17 2.40 1.90 0.00 0.00 n/a

Overall resident satisfaction with Highways network Bigger is Better Annual 51.0% 52.0% 52.0% 50.0% 48.0% 49.0%

There is a downward trend across all Authorities,
especially in the 2 years post Covid. We are still
performing in the middle of our Peer
Group comparators (lowest 46%, highest 53%). It is
a difficult measure to forecast as sample size is small
and individual input may be localised rather than
reflective of work and progress being made across
the whole of the County's road network

n/a

% of principal roads where maintenance should be considered Smaller is Better Annual 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
% of the Nonprincipal classified roads where maintenance
should be considered

Smaller is Better Annual 5.0% 6.0% 5.0% 4.0% 5.0% 5.0%

% of unclassified roads where maintenance should be
considered

Smaller is Better Annual 13% 13% 12% 12% 13% 13%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22 Actual Dec22 Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec18 Dec19 Dec20 Dec21
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar18 Mar19 Mar20 Mar21
Actual
Mar22

Target
Mar22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Flooding

% delivery of the annual gully emptying programme (as
published on the website)

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 83.0% 100.0% 34.0% 65.2% 85.8% 75.0% n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Road Safety

Number of killed and seriously injured people Smaller is Better Calendar Year
to Date

238 327 94 175 272 238

KSI casualties remain above the prepandemic level,
highlighting the need to implement our new Road
Safety Policy. The new Road Safety Partnership was
launched in December, the Community Speedwatch
programme is being implemented and a new Traffic
Team established.

We will analyse these serious and fatal casualties to
identify where the increases have occurred, in order
to develop schemes, education and enforcement.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis
Actual Jul 
Sep 21

Actual Oct 
Dec 21

Actual Jan 
Mar 22

Actual Apr 
Jun 22

Actual Jul
 Sep 22

Forecast
Jul  Sep
22

Comments Jul  Sep 22
Comparator
Group

4

Number of killed and seriously injured people Smaller is Better Calendar Year
to Date

238 327 94 175 272 238

KSI casualties remain above the prepandemic level,
highlighting the need to implement our new Road
Safety Policy. The new Road Safety Partnership was
launched in December, the Community Speedwatch
programme is being implemented and a new Traffic
Team established.

We will analyse these serious and fatal casualties to
identify where the increases have occurred, in order
to develop schemes, education and enforcement.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis
Actual Jul 
Sep 21

Actual Oct 
Dec 21

Actual Jan 
Mar 22

Actual Apr 
Jun 22

Actual Jul
 Sep 22

Forecast
Jul  Sep
22

Comments Jul  Sep 22
Comparator
Group

P
age 124

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Sustainable Growth

Connectivity

% of premises with next generation broadband access (NGA)
Superfast

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 96.5% 96.6% 96.8% 96.9% 97.1% 99.0% Continued progress towards the target is being made. n/a

% Gigabit (DOCSIS 3.1 or FTTP) Broadband coverage Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 60.3% 62.6% 65.1% 64.0%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Growth Hubs

Number of lighttouch business interactions supported by the
Growth Hubs

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 65 65 59 40 64 100
Reduced capacity to promote the Growth Hubs
currently

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

5

P
age 125

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Levelling Up Our Communities

Addressing Public Health Inequalities

Proportion of all Opiate Users in treatment, who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

3.8% 4.1% 4.3% 4.3% 5.0% 6.3%

The Q2 performance is 5.0% (66/1,314), which is
slight increase from the previous quarter.   Projecting
forward by 6 months we are anticipating that this
performance will drop slightly to around 4.7%.  There
are multiple reasons for this low performance
including the halt on discharges and enhanced risk
management brought about by the pandemic which
still affects this metric.  It would require 23 further
completions to bring this into the LA family
comparator top quartile.

5.7%

Proportion of all NonOpiate Users in treatment, not
representing 6 months after completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

18.3% 20.3% 23.7% 26.4% 28.4% 33.2%

The Q2 performance is 28.4% (203/704), this is an
increase from last quarter.  Projecting forward 6
months from this point we are anticipating that the
performance will continue to increase, but more
slowly to around 29%.   There are multiple reasons
for this low performance including the halt on
discharges and enhanced riskmanagement brought
about by the pandemic which still affects this metric. 
61 further completions would be required to bring this
to LA family comparator top quartile.

33.2%

Proportion of adult alcohol misusers who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

23.3% 26.7% 29.5% 35.6% 37.6% 35.0%

The Q2 performance is 37.6% (311/827), this is an
increase from the last quarter.  Projecting forward 6
months we are anticipating that the performance will
drop slightly but remain above target, to around
37%.  25 further completions would be required to
bring this to LA family comparator top quartile.

36.9%

% of pregnant smokers achieving a 4 week quit Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

80.0% 67.0% 80.0% 66.0% 90.0% 70.0%

The target for this indicator is 70%.  The service
continues to perform well with 90% of pregnant
women achieving a 4week quit in Q2. This is higher
than the Q1 figure (66%) and significantly higher than
the latest national data (21/22) figure of 46%.  

n/a

% of HLS customers that achieve a significant risk factor
improvement Bigger is Better

Quarter in
Arrears 62.0% 67.3% 68.4% 71.0% 71.4% 65.0%

The numbers achieving an improvement was
1040/1457 compared to 1168/1644 Q1.  The
percentage achieving improvement is the same as Q1
at 71%, and higher than the target of 65%.  In Q2 the
service saw a decrease in numbers of people
accessing support across all lifestyles provision
except for smoking. 

The numbers achieving an improvement was
1040/1457 compared to 1168/1644 Q1.  The
percentage achieving improvement is the same as Q1
at 71%, and higher than the target of 65%.  In Q2 the
service saw a decrease in numbers of people
accessing support across all lifestyles provision
except for smoking. 

n/a

Good Performance High/Low
Reporting
Basis

Sep21 Dec21 Mar22 Jun22
Actual
Sep22

Target
Sep22

Comments
Comparator
Group

% Reception Children with obesity (including severe obesity) Smaller is Better Academic Year 9.8% 9.1% 10.0% 13.6% 8.7%

The 2021/22 school year NCMP data was the first full
year of data collection since the start of the Covid19
pandemic. We previously reported a significant
increase in levels of obesity and severe obesity in
2020/21 compared to prepandemic levels. The
2021/22 data indicate that rates have now decreased,
compared to last year. Obesity levels among
Reception age children in Gloucestershire have
reverted to prepandemic levels according to the
2021/22 data (8.7%)

n/a

% Year 6 Children with obesity (including severe obesity) Smaller is Better Academic Year 16.3% 18.3% 18.4% 21.6% 20.7%

The 2021/22 school year NCMP data was the first full
year of data collection since the start of the Covid19
pandemic. We previously reported a significant
increase in levels of obesity and severe obesity in
2020/21 compared to prepandemic levels. The
2021/22 data indicate that rates have now decreased,
compared to last year. Obesity levels among Year 6
children in Gloucestershire remain significantly above
prepandemic levels in 2021/22 data (20.7%)

n/a

Reception: Inequality in the prevalence of obesity (including
severe obesity

Smaller is Better Academic Year 7.4% 6.8% 5.3% 8.5%

OHID has removed this indicator from its published
dataset Public Health and Communities officers will
update our local obesity inequalities report by March
2023.The place where a child l ives continues to
impact on their weight status. In England 31.3% of
children living in the most deprived neighbourhoods
have obes i ty  compared  to 13.5%  in  the  least
deprived.

n/a

Year 6: Inequality in the prevalence of obesity (including
severe obesity)

Smaller is Better Academic Year 12.2% 16.7% 18.0% 16.3%

OHID has removed this indicator from its published
dataset Public Health and Communities officers will
update our local obesity inequalities report by March
2023.The place where a child l ives continues to
impact on their weight status. In England 31.3% of
children living in the most deprived neighbourhoods
have obes i ty  compared  to 13.5%  in  the  least
deprived.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep18 Sep19 Sep20 Sep21 Actual Sep22 Comments
Comparator
Group

Suicide rate per 100,000 Population Smaller is Better 3Year Average 10.4 10.2 11.0 11.3 11.3 11.4

The suicide rate in Gloucestershire for the three year
period 20192021 is 11.3 per 100,000 of the
population. This is a very slight increase from the rate
in the previous three year period (11.0 in 201820);
however the Gloucestershire rate remains in line with
the national and regional rate for suicide deaths. The
number of suicide deaths in 2021 registered also
remains in line with the average number of deaths
per year from suicide over the last 10 years in
Gloucestershire. The Gloucestershire Suicide
Prevention Partnership continues to monitor deaths
from suicide in the county as part of the ongoing
delivery of the countywide suicide prevention strategy
and action plan. 

11.4

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec18 Dec19 Dec20 Dec21
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

6

P
age 126

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Levelling Up Our Communities

Addressing Public Health Inequalities

Proportion of all Opiate Users in treatment, who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

3.8% 4.1% 4.3% 4.3% 5.0% 6.3%

The Q2 performance is 5.0% (66/1,314), which is
slight increase from the previous quarter.   Projecting
forward by 6 months we are anticipating that this
performance will drop slightly to around 4.7%.  There
are multiple reasons for this low performance
including the halt on discharges and enhanced risk
management brought about by the pandemic which
still affects this metric.  It would require 23 further
completions to bring this into the LA family
comparator top quartile.

5.7%

Proportion of all NonOpiate Users in treatment, not
representing 6 months after completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

18.3% 20.3% 23.7% 26.4% 28.4% 33.2%

The Q2 performance is 28.4% (203/704), this is an
increase from last quarter.  Projecting forward 6
months from this point we are anticipating that the
performance will continue to increase, but more
slowly to around 29%.   There are multiple reasons
for this low performance including the halt on
discharges and enhanced riskmanagement brought
about by the pandemic which still affects this metric. 
61 further completions would be required to bring this
to LA family comparator top quartile.

33.2%

Proportion of adult alcohol misusers who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

23.3% 26.7% 29.5% 35.6% 37.6% 35.0%

The Q2 performance is 37.6% (311/827), this is an
increase from the last quarter.  Projecting forward 6
months we are anticipating that the performance will
drop slightly but remain above target, to around
37%.  25 further completions would be required to
bring this to LA family comparator top quartile.

36.9%

% of pregnant smokers achieving a 4 week quit Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

80.0% 67.0% 80.0% 66.0% 90.0% 70.0%

The target for this indicator is 70%.  The service
continues to perform well with 90% of pregnant
women achieving a 4week quit in Q2. This is higher
than the Q1 figure (66%) and significantly higher than
the latest national data (21/22) figure of 46%.  

n/a

% of HLS customers that achieve a significant risk factor
improvement Bigger is Better

Quarter in
Arrears 62.0% 67.3% 68.4% 71.0% 71.4% 65.0%

The numbers achieving an improvement was
1040/1457 compared to 1168/1644 Q1.  The
percentage achieving improvement is the same as Q1
at 71%, and higher than the target of 65%.  In Q2 the
service saw a decrease in numbers of people
accessing support across all lifestyles provision
except for smoking. 

The numbers achieving an improvement was
1040/1457 compared to 1168/1644 Q1.  The
percentage achieving improvement is the same as Q1
at 71%, and higher than the target of 65%.  In Q2 the
service saw a decrease in numbers of people
accessing support across all lifestyles provision
except for smoking. 

n/a

Good Performance High/Low
Reporting
Basis

Sep21 Dec21 Mar22 Jun22
Actual
Sep22

Target
Sep22

Comments
Comparator
Group

% Reception Children with obesity (including severe obesity) Smaller is Better Academic Year 9.8% 9.1% 10.0% 13.6% 8.7%

The 2021/22 school year NCMP data was the first full
year of data collection since the start of the Covid19
pandemic. We previously reported a significant
increase in levels of obesity and severe obesity in
2020/21 compared to prepandemic levels. The
2021/22 data indicate that rates have now decreased,
compared to last year. Obesity levels among
Reception age children in Gloucestershire have
reverted to prepandemic levels according to the
2021/22 data (8.7%)

n/a

% Year 6 Children with obesity (including severe obesity) Smaller is Better Academic Year 16.3% 18.3% 18.4% 21.6% 20.7%

The 2021/22 school year NCMP data was the first full
year of data collection since the start of the Covid19
pandemic. We previously reported a significant
increase in levels of obesity and severe obesity in
2020/21 compared to prepandemic levels. The
2021/22 data indicate that rates have now decreased,
compared to last year. Obesity levels among Year 6
children in Gloucestershire remain significantly above
prepandemic levels in 2021/22 data (20.7%)

n/a

Reception: Inequality in the prevalence of obesity (including
severe obesity

Smaller is Better Academic Year 7.4% 6.8% 5.3% 8.5%

OHID has removed this indicator from its published
dataset Public Health and Communities officers will
update our local obesity inequalities report by March
2023.The place where a child l ives continues to
impact on their weight status. In England 31.3% of
children living in the most deprived neighbourhoods
have obes i ty  compared  to 13.5%  in  the  least
deprived.

n/a

Year 6: Inequality in the prevalence of obesity (including
severe obesity)

Smaller is Better Academic Year 12.2% 16.7% 18.0% 16.3%

OHID has removed this indicator from its published
dataset Public Health and Communities officers will
update our local obesity inequalities report by March
2023.The place where a child l ives continues to
impact on their weight status. In England 31.3% of
children living in the most deprived neighbourhoods
have obes i ty  compared  to 13.5%  in  the  least
deprived.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep18 Sep19 Sep20 Sep21 Actual Sep22 Comments
Comparator
Group

Suicide rate per 100,000 Population Smaller is Better 3Year Average 10.4 10.2 11.0 11.3 11.3 11.4

The suicide rate in Gloucestershire for the three year
period 20192021 is 11.3 per 100,000 of the
population. This is a very slight increase from the rate
in the previous three year period (11.0 in 201820);
however the Gloucestershire rate remains in line with
the national and regional rate for suicide deaths. The
number of suicide deaths in 2021 registered also
remains in line with the average number of deaths
per year from suicide over the last 10 years in
Gloucestershire. The Gloucestershire Suicide
Prevention Partnership continues to monitor deaths
from suicide in the county as part of the ongoing
delivery of the countywide suicide prevention strategy
and action plan. 

11.4

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec18 Dec19 Dec20 Dec21
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

7

P
age 127

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')


Transforming Children's Services
Children's Social Care

Quality Assurance

% of audits judged as good or better Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 31.0% 37.0% 40.0% 34.0% 47.0% 50.0%

Performance was at a 12month best in quarter 3. In
month, case audits rated Good or Better met target in
November, with performance increasing to 58% in
December.

n/a

% of Children open to Social Care with 2 or fewer Social
Workers in 6 months

Bigger is Better Snapshot 84.4% 84.2% 85.9% 86.5% 85.1% 90.0%

While performance is fractionally below tolerance
of target at the end of quarter 3, performance is
steady considering the significant churn that some
locality teams have experienced in recent months.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Contact Activity

% of referrals to Social Care that are rereferrals within 12
months

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 23.8% 25.5% 24.3% 26.2% 26.9% 21.5%

Rereferrals have followed a small increasing trend
over the last year, up from 23.8% in Quarter 3
2021/22 to 26.9% in Quarter 3 2022/23 (574 children
to 615 children).

20.1%

% of Initial Decisions made within 24 hours for all contacts Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 71.9% 70.6% 67.1% 68.1% 71.5% 90.0%

Timeliness of initial decisions following contact
improved slightly for the second quarter (71.5% up
from 67.1% in Quarter 1). Timeliness of endtoend
decision making also saw improvement over the last
two quarters (70.8% up from 67.9%). Both measures
remain significantly worse than target (90%). Contact
demand reduced from around 8,700 in Quarter 2 to
just under 8,500 contacts in Quarter 3. However,
demand remains high compared to Quarter 2 2020/21
when timeliness of decision making was 92.4% and
incoming demand was around 6,700 contacts.
Decision making for contacts rated as Red (risk to the
child is evident and a 4 hr decision is required) was
better than target for the second quarter.

n/a

% Initial visits in time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 75.3% 71.1% 72.8% 68.5% 66.9% 85.0%

Timeliness of initial visits declined in Quarter 3, with
twothirds of children seen following referral within
timescale. Quarterly performance has followed a
declining trend, down from 88% in March 2020 and is
at a 3year low. Performance across all localities was
worse than target, with timeliness ranging from 46%
to 76%.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

% of Children in Need who have been on a plan for 12 months
or more

Smaller is Better Snapshot 3.8% 4.2% 4.2% 4.8% 6.5% 5.0%

The proportion of children in need with a plan for
more than 12 months has followed an increasing
trend, up from 3.8% at the end of Quarter 3 2021 (89
children) to 6.5% (145 children) at the end of
December 2022. The reasons for this will be explored
at locality performance meetings to ensure that
progress is being made for these children.

n/a

% of Single Assessments completed within 45 working days Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 79.6% 77.4% 80.4% 81.0% 73.6% 90.0%

Assessment timeliness declined in Quarter 3 and was
at a 12month low (73.6%). This remains worse than
target (90%) and the peer group average (82.4%). At
a locality level, there is a significant disparity in
performance, ranging from 42% to 84%.

82.4%

% of Children becoming the subject of a Child Protection Plan
for a second or subsequent time

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 27.3% 29.5% 23.2% 42.0% 20.5% 23.5%

Performance has been better than target for two of
three quarters this financial year. CP Chairs are
applying increased rigour to determine the
appropriate level at which progress and risk can be
managed. 

25.3%

% of Children subject to Child Protection Plans lasting 2 years
or more

Smaller is Better Snapshot 2.4% 3.3% 3.4% 3.1% 1.3% 2.0%

This relates to 8 children. This is the lowest number of
children on plans for a protracted period since
September 2018.  Preproceedings are underway for
all but one child. 

1.6%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Children in Care

8

P
age 128

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Transforming Children's Services
Children's Social Care

Quality Assurance

% of audits judged as good or better Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 31.0% 37.0% 40.0% 34.0% 47.0% 50.0%

Performance was at a 12month best in quarter 3. In
month, case audits rated Good or Better met target in
November, with performance increasing to 58% in
December.

n/a

% of Children open to Social Care with 2 or fewer Social
Workers in 6 months

Bigger is Better Snapshot 84.4% 84.2% 85.9% 86.5% 85.1% 90.0%

While performance is fractionally below tolerance
of target at the end of quarter 3, performance is
steady considering the significant churn that some
locality teams have experienced in recent months.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Contact Activity

% of referrals to Social Care that are rereferrals within 12
months

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 23.8% 25.5% 24.3% 26.2% 26.9% 21.5%

Rereferrals have followed a small increasing trend
over the last year, up from 23.8% in Quarter 3
2021/22 to 26.9% in Quarter 3 2022/23 (574 children
to 615 children).

20.1%

% of Initial Decisions made within 24 hours for all contacts Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 71.9% 70.6% 67.1% 68.1% 71.5% 90.0%

Timeliness of initial decisions following contact
improved slightly for the second quarter (71.5% up
from 67.1% in Quarter 1). Timeliness of endtoend
decision making also saw improvement over the last
two quarters (70.8% up from 67.9%). Both measures
remain significantly worse than target (90%). Contact
demand reduced from around 8,700 in Quarter 2 to
just under 8,500 contacts in Quarter 3. However,
demand remains high compared to Quarter 2 2020/21
when timeliness of decision making was 92.4% and
incoming demand was around 6,700 contacts.
Decision making for contacts rated as Red (risk to the
child is evident and a 4 hr decision is required) was
better than target for the second quarter.

n/a

% Initial visits in time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 75.3% 71.1% 72.8% 68.5% 66.9% 85.0%

Timeliness of initial visits declined in Quarter 3, with
twothirds of children seen following referral within
timescale. Quarterly performance has followed a
declining trend, down from 88% in March 2020 and is
at a 3year low. Performance across all localities was
worse than target, with timeliness ranging from 46%
to 76%.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

% of Children in Need who have been on a plan for 12 months
or more

Smaller is Better Snapshot 3.8% 4.2% 4.2% 4.8% 6.5% 5.0%

The proportion of children in need with a plan for
more than 12 months has followed an increasing
trend, up from 3.8% at the end of Quarter 3 2021 (89
children) to 6.5% (145 children) at the end of
December 2022. The reasons for this will be explored
at locality performance meetings to ensure that
progress is being made for these children.

n/a

% of Single Assessments completed within 45 working days Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 79.6% 77.4% 80.4% 81.0% 73.6% 90.0%

Assessment timeliness declined in Quarter 3 and was
at a 12month low (73.6%). This remains worse than
target (90%) and the peer group average (82.4%). At
a locality level, there is a significant disparity in
performance, ranging from 42% to 84%.

82.4%

% of Children becoming the subject of a Child Protection Plan
for a second or subsequent time

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 27.3% 29.5% 23.2% 42.0% 20.5% 23.5%

Performance has been better than target for two of
three quarters this financial year. CP Chairs are
applying increased rigour to determine the
appropriate level at which progress and risk can be
managed. 

25.3%

% of Children subject to Child Protection Plans lasting 2 years
or more

Smaller is Better Snapshot 2.4% 3.3% 3.4% 3.1% 1.3% 2.0%

This relates to 8 children. This is the lowest number of
children on plans for a protracted period since
September 2018.  Preproceedings are underway for
all but one child. 

1.6%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Children in Care

9

Children in Need of Help & Protection

% of Children who are fostered who are placed with the in
house fostering service

Bigger is Better Snapshot 64.0% 68.0% 66.0% 66.0% 67.0% 70.0% n/a

% of Children in Care for more than 2.5 years in the same
placement for at least 2 years

Bigger is Better Snapshot 65.6% 65.9% 64.0% 63.0% 62.3% 68.0%

Ongoing declining trend from 69.3% at the end of
March 2021 to a two year low of 62.3% at the end of
December 2022. Dip sample of cases to be
undertaken to support practice learning.

71.1%

% Children in Care (CIC) reviewed in timescales Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 97.4% 97.4% 94.5% 96.0% 96.0% 100.0% n/a
% of Children in Care with 3 or more placements in the last 12
months

Smaller is Better Snapshot 13.2% 12.5% 12.3% 14.1% 13.8% 12.0% 9.7%

% Children in Care persistently absent Smaller is Better Snapshot 22.5% 23.9% 24.5% 16.4% 24.8% 5.0% 31.6%
% of children who have been admitted to care within 12
months of previously being in care

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 7.8% 10.3% 13.6% 4.8% 6.1% 7.0% 11.4%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Care Experienced Young People

% of Young People aged 1921 who were looked after aged 16
who were in suitable accommodation

Bigger is Better Snapshot 90.4% 93.8% 94.0% 90.7% 91.9% 95.0%

Performance for our care experienced adults (all
ages) improved for the first time in three quarters
(89%). However, the proportion of care experienced
adults considered to live in suitable
accommodation remains lower than March 2022
(93%). Performance is highest for our 1921 year
olds. For our 1618 and Over 21 year olds, a lower
proportion of people are considered to live in suitable
accommodation (86% and 84% respectively).

86.1%

% of Young People aged 1921 who were looked after aged 16
who were not in employment, education or training

Smaller is Better Snapshot 44.9% 45.1% 43.3% 45.0% 43.6% 25.0% 47.1%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

P
age 129

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Transforming Children's Services
Education

Education

Number of Suspensions (All Pupils) Smaller is Better Quarterly 1,459 1,603 1,423 800 1,621 1,696 n/a
Number of pupils permanently excluded (all pupils) Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 35 40 21 9 33 42 n/a
% of pupils attending good or outstanding Secondary Schools Bigger is Better Snapshot 85.0% 91.0% 93.0% 94.4% 94.4% 85.0% n/a
% of pupils attending good or outstanding Primary Schools Bigger is Better Snapshot 87.0% 86.0% 87.0% 87.8% 88.6% 88.0% n/a
% of good or outstanding Early Years Settings Bigger is Better Snapshot 90.9% 91.1% 90.4% 90.5% 90.9% 92.0% n/a

% of pupils Persistently absent Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 21.0%

The latest published data is for Autumn & Spring term
2021/22.
All schools are expected to sign up to the DfE data
sharing system by September 2023. Currently about
80% of schools are sending pupil attendance data
daily via school management information systems,
consequently this measure will be reported from Q3
2023/24 when all schools have signed up.

n/a

Rate per 1,000 of children with an Education Health and Care
Plan

Plan is Best Latest Quarter 27.6 28.0 29.2 30.3 30.0

% of pupils achieving grades 95 in English and Maths Bigger is Better Academic Year 47.3% 47.8% 54.9% 57.3% 55.8%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22 Actual Dec22 Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis
Academic
Year Ending
2018

Academic
Year Ending
2019

Academic
Year Ending
2020

Academic
Year Ending
2021

Academic Year Ending
2022

Comments
Comparator
Group

10

P
age 130

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')


Transforming Adult Social Care
Delivery

Contact Activity

% of all ASC Contacts with a decision within 1 working day Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 96.6% 93.8% 92.0% 92.4% 94.0% 95.0%

Overall 94% of Contacts had a decision within 1
working day. This can be broken down as follows:
95.7% of contacts received by the Customer
Services Centre had a decision within 1 working
day.
91.0% of all other contacts had a decision within 1
working day.

n/a

% of ASC contacts signposted or closed Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 35.4% 39.9% 37.4% 37.0% 36.1% 33.0% n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Assessments, Brokerage and Review

% of Service Users who have had a review/ reassessment of
their needs within the last 12 months

Bigger is Better Snapshot 42.0% 50.7% 42.4% 44.8% 48.6% 60.0%

At the end of December 2022 there were 2,353
individuals overdue a Care Act Review which is a
decrease of 245 compared to the position at the end
of September 2022. This equates to 48.6% of the
total longterm Social Care clients who have an up
todate review.

n/a

Average number of weeks people have been awaiting
Brokerage

Smaller is Better Snapshot 4.8 4.0 3.1 n/a

% of FAB Assessments Open after 60 working days (as a
proportion of all Open Assessments)

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 70.4% 71.1% 76.1%

At the end of September 2002 there 472 Open
Assessments of which 359 had been open for 60
working days or longer. This includes 10 Assessments
which were commenced in 2021/22.

n/a

% of FAB Assessments taking more than 19 working days to
close (as a proportion of all closed Assessments)

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 87.4% 88.2% 89.1%
There were 614 Assessments closed in the quarter of
which 547 (89.1%) took more than 19 working days
to complete.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22 Actual Dec22 Comments
Comparator
Group

Hospital Discharge and Reablement

% of clients who need no long term care after their period of
reablement

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 91.3% 89.4% 90.0% 90.2% 85.8% 85.0% 81.0%

Delayed transfers of care from hospital due to Adult Social
Care per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.50
DTOC measures were suspended on 1st March 2020
There is no data available at present.

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Adult Safeguarding

% of Section 42 enquiries this quarter where the risk was
reduced or removed

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 87.3% 81.8% 81.7% 82.6% 83.1% 85.0%

There were 148 Section 42 closures during Quarter 3.
Of these 17 (11.5%) were closed with the Risk
Remaining, however there were 8 closures (5.4%)
where the outcome was 'Inconclusive'

90.3%

% of S42 Enquiries open for more than 26 weeks Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 26.2% 24.2% 17.7% 20.1% 16.9% 25.0%

At the end of December 2022 there were 160 Open
Section 42 Enquiries (down from 169 at the end of the
Quarter 2 2022/23). Of these 27 (16.9%) had been
open for more than 26 weeks.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

11

P
age 131

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Transforming Adult Social Care
Commissioning

Quality Assurance

% of GCC Commissioned Providers judged to be Good or
Outstanding by CQC

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 92.6% 91.2% 91.3% 90.2% 88.1% 90.0%

Latest data from CQC (in relationship to 235 Social
Care providers) indicates:
207 providers are rated as Good or Outstanding 
down from 212 at Quarter 2 2022/23
28 providers are rated as Requires Improvement 
up from 23 at Quarter 1 2022/23
There are no providers rated Inadequate 
unchanged from Quarter 2 2022/23

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Assessments

Average waiting time for a Carers Care Act Compliant
Assessment (in working days)

Smaller is Better Snapshot 17.0 17.0 6.0 6.0 18.0 30.0 n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Long Term Care

Permanent admissions 1864 to residential & nursing care
homes per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 14.8 15.6 13.7 5.8 6.6 13.0

There were 25 permanent admissions in the year to
31 December 2022. Admission rates for the previous
4 quarters have been refreshed to reflect 2021 mid
year population estimates and delays in data entry.

13.0

Permanent admissions aged 65+ to residential & nursing care
homes per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 266.3 247.9 234.4 242.9 235.1 496.1

There were 331 permanent admissions in the year to
31 December 2022. Admission rates for the previous
4 quarters have been refreshed to reflect 2021 mid
year population estimates and delays in data entry.

496.1

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Mental Health

% of referrals for an AMHP assessment that led to support or
protection being put in place

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 60.5% 57.4% 62.2% 62.1% 69.1% 60.0%

There were 307 AMHP Assessments completed in
the Quarter (down by 12.5% from Quarter 2). The
outcome from 212 Assessments (69.1%) was
detention or other support being put in place.

n/a

% of Adults receiving secondary Mental Health services in
settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Snapshot 89.0% 89.0% 89.0% 88.0% 87.0% 85.0%

Latest figure as at November 2022. This is a local
figure (recorded as settled) as supplied by GHC. The
comparator group figure relates to ASCOF Indicator
1H (assessment of whether the assessment is in
settled accommodation is within the last 12 months)
where Gloucestershire's outturn was 22%. Changes
made nationally to accommodation criteria mean that
it is not possible to match previous recording to new
criteria. This has impacted performance against
ASCOF 1H nationally.

27.5%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Snapshot 78.6% 78.6% 78.6% 78.6% 34.4% 72.0%

Figures used are the published ASCOF figures. Data
quality issues have been identified within the 2021/22
statutory return whereby not all LD clients had their
Short and Long Term (SAL)T category populated.
There are actions in place to address this before the
end of the current financial year – the statistics can
be run locally and the current outturn (mid January
2023) is 63%

72.0%

Total number of people in Employment with a Disability (or
work limiting health condition) supported by GCC Forward
Services

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 547 558 632 575
This includes 54 people who are known to Social
Services n/a

% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.4% 3.1% 0.8% 2.7% 5.3%
Locally benchmarked in line with ASCOF definition –
includes 30 individuals who were undertaking
voluntary or unpaid work as at 31 March 2022

5.0%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar18 Mar19 Mar20 Mar21 Actual Mar22 Comments
Comparator
Group

12

P
age 132

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Transforming Adult Social Care
Commissioning

Quality Assurance

% of GCC Commissioned Providers judged to be Good or
Outstanding by CQC

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 92.6% 91.2% 91.3% 90.2% 88.1% 90.0%

Latest data from CQC (in relationship to 235 Social
Care providers) indicates:
207 providers are rated as Good or Outstanding 
down from 212 at Quarter 2 2022/23
28 providers are rated as Requires Improvement 
up from 23 at Quarter 1 2022/23
There are no providers rated Inadequate 
unchanged from Quarter 2 2022/23

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Assessments

Average waiting time for a Carers Care Act Compliant
Assessment (in working days)

Smaller is Better Snapshot 17.0 17.0 6.0 6.0 18.0 30.0 n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Long Term Care

Permanent admissions 1864 to residential & nursing care
homes per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 14.8 15.6 13.7 5.8 6.6 13.0

There were 25 permanent admissions in the year to
31 December 2022. Admission rates for the previous
4 quarters have been refreshed to reflect 2021 mid
year population estimates and delays in data entry.

13.0

Permanent admissions aged 65+ to residential & nursing care
homes per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 266.3 247.9 234.4 242.9 235.1 496.1

There were 331 permanent admissions in the year to
31 December 2022. Admission rates for the previous
4 quarters have been refreshed to reflect 2021 mid
year population estimates and delays in data entry.

496.1

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Mental Health

% of referrals for an AMHP assessment that led to support or
protection being put in place

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 60.5% 57.4% 62.2% 62.1% 69.1% 60.0%

There were 307 AMHP Assessments completed in
the Quarter (down by 12.5% from Quarter 2). The
outcome from 212 Assessments (69.1%) was
detention or other support being put in place.

n/a

% of Adults receiving secondary Mental Health services in
settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Snapshot 89.0% 89.0% 89.0% 88.0% 87.0% 85.0%

Latest figure as at November 2022. This is a local
figure (recorded as settled) as supplied by GHC. The
comparator group figure relates to ASCOF Indicator
1H (assessment of whether the assessment is in
settled accommodation is within the last 12 months)
where Gloucestershire's outturn was 22%. Changes
made nationally to accommodation criteria mean that
it is not possible to match previous recording to new
criteria. This has impacted performance against
ASCOF 1H nationally.

27.5%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Snapshot 78.6% 78.6% 78.6% 78.6% 34.4% 72.0%

Figures used are the published ASCOF figures. Data
quality issues have been identified within the 2021/22
statutory return whereby not all LD clients had their
Short and Long Term (SAL)T category populated.
There are actions in place to address this before the
end of the current financial year – the statistics can
be run locally and the current outturn (mid January
2023) is 63%

72.0%

Total number of people in Employment with a Disability (or
work limiting health condition) supported by GCC Forward
Services

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 547 558 632 575
This includes 54 people who are known to Social
Services n/a

% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.4% 3.1% 0.8% 2.7% 5.3%
Locally benchmarked in line with ASCOF definition –
includes 30 individuals who were undertaking
voluntary or unpaid work as at 31 March 2022

5.0%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar18 Mar19 Mar20 Mar21 Actual Mar22 Comments
Comparator
Group

13

Learning Disability

P
age 133

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')


Transforming Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service

Response

Average Response times to dwelling fires Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 7.03 9.14 9.17 9.17 9.55 9.00

The average response time was higher in December
(11 minutes 6 seconds) compared to October and
November (9 minutes 4 seconds and 9 minutes 2
seconds). This can be attributed to higher numbers of
dwelling fires in December (45, compared to 25 in
October and 32 in November) and to delays in
responding due to poor weather in December
impacting OnCall turnout time, traffic due to road
closures and staffing issues.

8.54

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Prevention

% of Safe and Well visits undertaken to those in high risk
groups

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 78.4% 79.0% 80.0% 82.0% 86.2% 75.0%

This is the result of effective campaign and
information sharing work with the Safeguarding
Adults Board and Fire Safety SubGroup, which has
raised awareness of the people most at risk of fire
and improved the targeting of requests for safe and
well.

69.0%

Rate of Safe and Well visits undertaken per 1,000 population Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 0.89 0.89 0.94 0.93 0.87 2.35
Performance continues to be significantly below target
and comparable group. 559 visits were completed.

1.30

Number of Accidental Dwelling Fires Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 74 60 68 73 70 55

There has been a slight decrease in accidental
dwelling fires this quarter, down 4% from Quarter 2
and 1% compared with the same period last year.
Data provided by ORH has identified areas of the
county most at risk of dwelling fires and this will
enable the team to target campaigns to the areas
which need it most.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Protection

% of 7.2d premises within required frequency Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 68.8% 88.9% 93.0% 75.0% 82.0% 100.0%

Of the premises receiving a 7.2 d inspection in
Quarter 3, 82% of inspections were reported as being
within required frequency, an improvement compared
to the previous quarter (75%). Performance remains
worse than target

n/a

% of Annual Risk Based Inspection Plan Programme of work
completed within timeframes

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 19.0% 45.0% 64.0% 75.0%

Annually GFRS have a Risk Based Inspection
Programme (RBIP) which incorporates the highest
risk premises identified through their risk profile
work. 1196 premises (figure amended from 1,452 in
Quarter 2) require inspection during 2022/23.
Performance remains worse than target, with 768
premises inspected so far since April 2022

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

14

P
age 134

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Delivering Our Ambitions

Performance

% of Council Strategy indicators that are on or ahead of
target.

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 59.2% 60.0% 58.1% 59.7% 65.0% n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Workforce

Days lost to Sickness per FTE (excluding Schools and GFRS) Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 2.55 2.36 1.93 2.20 2.12 1.80
Q3 22/23 GCC (excluding schools and GFRS) overall
sickness is 2.12 per FTE, lower than last quarter,
lower than the same quarter last year.

n/a

% of appraisals completed Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 46.7% 48.4% 11.9% 34.3% 62.6% 85.0%

Performance in Quarter 3 includes information
captured across both Fire Service and Corporate
systems and therefore accurately reflects the
proportion of staff who have had an appraisal
discussion during 2022/23.

n/a

Employee Engagement Index Bigger is Better Annual 93.4% 94.4% 96.3% 94.2% 95.0% n/a

GCC Turnover (staff leaving as a % of all staff) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 12.1% 13.3% 13.9% 14.0% 13.9%
Q3 22/23 GCC (excluding schools and GFRS) 12 month staff turnover
= 13.89, marginally lower than last quarter (14.01%), higher than the
same point last year (12.08%)

n/a

Turnover of all adults social workers and senior practitioners Smaller is Better Rolling Year 15.3% 15.5% 15.4% 17.2% 22.6%

Q3 22/23: ASW frontline (ASYE, SW, SSW) 12 month turnover rate =
22.58%. 14 leavers in 12 months. Turnover rate is higher than the 12
months to last quarter (17.24%), and the highest rate in more than
12 months. 

n/a

Turnover of all children's social workers and senior
practitioners

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 22.9% 24.8% 26.2% 24.7% 24.0%

Q3 22/23: 12m Turnover % (for frontline CSW (ASYE, SW,
SSW) is 24.02%. 55 leavers during the 12 month period. Turnover %
remains similar, but maginally lower, than to the 12 months to last
quarter (24.66%).

n/a

Days lost to sickness/absence per FTE  Rolling Year Smaller is Better Rolling Year 7.91 8.93 9.35 9.40 9.07 7.38

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec17 Dec18 Dec19 Dec20
Actual
Dec21

Target
Dec21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Corporate Governance

Number of reportable security incidents Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 1 0 2 1 0 14 n/a

Number of information decision notices upholding the
requestors position Smaller is Better 0 0 0 0 0 2

There have been no formal decision notices received
this quarter that uphold the requesters position.

During this quarter there were 3 ICO complaints
received. 2 in relation to late FOI responses and 1 in
relation to a late response to an FOI internal review

n/a

% of FOI/EIR requests responded to on time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 81.0% 83.0% 82.0% 85.0% 90.0% 90.0% n/a
% of SAR requests responded to on time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 50.0% 44.0% 44.0% 64.0% 69.0% 90.0% n/a

Number of Cases Upheld by Local Government Ombudsman Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 4 5 2 4 2 2 n/a
Number of RIDDOR reportable incidents Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 0 3 1 1 0 5 n/a
Audit recommendations outstanding beyond target date Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 1 8 5 7 9 0 n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Total number of ICT Priority 1 incidents raised per quarter Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 10 17 5 6 3 3

Number of Priority 1 incidents has reduced and has
returned to target levels, reflecting the ongoing
improvement in the stability of ICT services. All three
incidents related to third party services including two
services owned outside of DICT.

Oct22
25/10  The search programme within the Liquidlogic
Children's System application was consuming too
much memory, which caused the primary application
server to become unavailable. This was resolved by
the vendor and no root cause details were provided.

Nov22
07/11  People's Network PCs unable to connect to
network. Confirmed by Libraries as caused by a
password expiry change they implemented which was
not reflected in the library computer system software
by their third party, Lorensbergs.

Dec22
20/12  ServiceNow (IT Service Management system)
was unavailable due to a planned change to update
security certificates, overrunning the change window.
Reports of degradation to Egress and SAP Concur
applications were received, but user impact was very
limited.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

15

64.9%

P
age 135

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')


Delivering Our Ambitions

Performance

% of Council Strategy indicators that are on or ahead of
target.

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 59.2% 60.0% 58.1% 59.7% 65.0% n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Workforce

Days lost to Sickness per FTE (excluding Schools and GFRS) Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 2.55 2.36 1.93 2.20 2.12 1.80
Q3 22/23 GCC (excluding schools and GFRS) overall
sickness is 2.12 per FTE, lower than last quarter,
lower than the same quarter last year.

n/a

% of appraisals completed Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 46.7% 48.4% 11.9% 34.3% 62.6% 85.0%

Performance in Quarter 3 includes information
captured across both Fire Service and Corporate
systems and therefore accurately reflects the
proportion of staff who have had an appraisal
discussion during 2022/23.

n/a

Employee Engagement Index Bigger is Better Annual 93.4% 94.4% 96.3% 94.2% 95.0% n/a

GCC Turnover (staff leaving as a % of all staff) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 12.1% 13.3% 13.9% 14.0% 13.9%
Q3 22/23 GCC (excluding schools and GFRS) 12 month staff turnover
= 13.89, marginally lower than last quarter (14.01%), higher than the
same point last year (12.08%)

n/a

Turnover of all adults social workers and senior practitioners Smaller is Better Rolling Year 15.3% 15.5% 15.4% 17.2% 22.6%

Q3 22/23: ASW frontline (ASYE, SW, SSW) 12 month turnover rate =
22.58%. 14 leavers in 12 months. Turnover rate is higher than the 12
months to last quarter (17.24%), and the highest rate in more than
12 months. 

n/a

Turnover of all children's social workers and senior
practitioners

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 22.9% 24.8% 26.2% 24.7% 24.0%

Q3 22/23: 12m Turnover % (for frontline CSW (ASYE, SW,
SSW) is 24.02%. 55 leavers during the 12 month period. Turnover %
remains similar, but maginally lower, than to the 12 months to last
quarter (24.66%).

n/a

Days lost to sickness/absence per FTE  Rolling Year Smaller is Better Rolling Year 7.91 8.93 9.35 9.40 9.07 7.38

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec17 Dec18 Dec19 Dec20
Actual
Dec21

Target
Dec21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Corporate Governance

Number of reportable security incidents Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 1 0 2 1 0 14 n/a

Number of information decision notices upholding the
requestors position Smaller is Better 0 0 0 0 0 2

There have been no formal decision notices received
this quarter that uphold the requesters position.

During this quarter there were 3 ICO complaints
received. 2 in relation to late FOI responses and 1 in
relation to a late response to an FOI internal review

n/a

% of FOI/EIR requests responded to on time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 81.0% 83.0% 82.0% 85.0% 90.0% 90.0% n/a
% of SAR requests responded to on time Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 50.0% 44.0% 44.0% 64.0% 69.0% 90.0% n/a

Number of Cases Upheld by Local Government Ombudsman Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 4 5 2 4 2 2 n/a
Number of RIDDOR reportable incidents Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 0 3 1 1 0 5 n/a
Audit recommendations outstanding beyond target date Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 1 8 5 7 9 0 n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Total number of ICT Priority 1 incidents raised per quarter Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 10 17 5 6 3 3

Number of Priority 1 incidents has reduced and has
returned to target levels, reflecting the ongoing
improvement in the stability of ICT services. All three
incidents related to third party services including two
services owned outside of DICT.

Oct22
25/10  The search programme within the Liquidlogic
Children's System application was consuming too
much memory, which caused the primary application
server to become unavailable. This was resolved by
the vendor and no root cause details were provided.

Nov22
07/11  People's Network PCs unable to connect to
network. Confirmed by Libraries as caused by a
password expiry change they implemented which was
not reflected in the library computer system software
by their third party, Lorensbergs.

Dec22
20/12  ServiceNow (IT Service Management system)
was unavailable due to a planned change to update
security certificates, overrunning the change window.
Reports of degradation to Egress and SAP Concur
applications were received, but user impact was very
limited.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec21 Mar22 Jun22 Sep22
Actual
Dec22

Target
Dec22

Comments
Comparator
Group

16

ICT

P
age 136

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')

	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes
	Action table 07.12.22
	Budget - January
	Minutes


	4 WORK PLAN
	5 Finance Update
	6 Strategic Performance Report 3rd quarter
	Slide 1: Strategic Risk  Monitoring Report
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4: Matters arising this quarter: This section is to highlight for discussion at CLT and will be removed before public/Cabinet stages of reporting.
	Slide 5: SR 10.4: Insufficient Business Continuity Management
	Slide 6: SR 10.8 - Dept for Transport's Covid Bus Recovery Subsidy (BRS) is withdrawn (new risk transferred from Gold register)
	Slide 7: SR 5.3: Adult Social Care provider failure
	Slide 8: SR 8.1 Difficulties in Recruiting and Retaining Experienced workers
	Slide 9: SR 2.4b Changes to Future Funding
	Slide 10: SR 7.6: Unable to support all those who can, to live independently at home
	Slide 11: SR 14.1 Implementation of the Community Infrastructure Levy
	Slide 12: SR 3.1. Failure to ensure that ICT remains fit for purpose
	Slide 13: SR 3.2 Failure to protect the council's key information and data from Cyber Attack.
	Slide 14: SR 7.5: Insufficient workforce capacity in Children’s Services
	Slide 15: SR 7.7: Failure to develop sufficient placement capacity
	Slide 16: SR 10.6: Capacity and capability to deliver Fire Service improvement
	Slide 17: SR 11.1 Failure to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of information.
	Slide 18: SR 7.10: Implementation of the ‘Care Cap’ cost of care exercise 
	Slide 19: SR 7.1: Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire 
	Slide 20: SR 12.1: Failure of GCC/Gloucestershire to mitigate and adapt to a more volatile climate
	Slide 21: SR 10.7 - COVID19 - Inability to protect and support GCC employees and partner/contractor key workers (new risk transferred from Gold)
	Slide 22: SR 8.2 - Staff fatigue and burnout
	Slide 23: SR 1.2 Capacity for Procurement activity 
	Slide 24: SR 7.4: Failure to Close the gap in Educational Outcomes
	Slide 25: SR 7.8: Risk of legal action being taken due to failures in completing Deprivation of Liberty assessments.
	Slide 26: SR 7.2 Ineffective Social Care Practice
	Slide 27: SR 1.1 – Failure in Corporate Governance
	Slide 28: SR 1.4 Contract management capacity
	Slide 29: SR 6.1 – Relationships with key partners
	Slide 30: SR 7.9 – Insufficient planning and oversight of international resettlement and asylum immigration
	Slide 31: SR 1.5 - Compliance with Public Sector Equalities Duty
	Slide 32: SR 1.3 Failure to ensure the effective management of Health and Safety (new risk)
	Slide 33: SR 2.4a - Reductions and changes to Funding (current year)
	Performance and Risk Monitoring Report Quarter 3 2022-23

	7 Corporate Resources performance report
	Corporate Performance Scorecard Q3 2022-23




